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Item 1. Business.

Overview of Lennar Corporation

We are one of the largest homebuilders in the United States by deliveries, revenues and net earnings, an originator of
residential and commercial mortgage loans, a provider of title insurance and closing services and a developer of multifamily
rental properties. In addition, we are a sponsor and manager of funds and joint venturt es engaged in development and
ownership of multifamff ily rental properties and a sponsor and manager of a fundff engaged in ownership of single-family rental
properties. We also have investments in companies that are engaged in appla ying technology to improve the homebuilding
industry arr nd real estate related aspects of the financial services industry.rr

Our homebuilding operations are the most subsu tantial part of our business, generating $33 billion in revenues, or
approximately 95% of consolidated revenues, in fiscal 2023.

As of November 30, 2023, our reportabla e Homebuilding segments and all Other Homebuilding operations not
required to be reported separately have divisions located in:

East: Alabama, Florida, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and South Carolina
Central: Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, North Carolina, Tennessee and Virginia
Texas: Texas
West: Arizona, Califorff nia, Colorado, Idaho, Nevada, Oregon, Utah and Washington
Other: Urbar n divisions and other homebuilding related investments primarily in Califorff nia, including FivePoint

Holdings, LLC ("FivePoint")

Our other reportabla e segments are Financial Services, Multifamily and Lennar Other. Financial information abouta
our Homebuilding, Financial Services, Multifamff ily and Lennar Other operations is contained in Item 7. Management's
Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial CondiCC tion and Results ott f Oo peO rations of this Report.

About Our Company

Our company was foundeff d as a local Miami homebuilder in 1954. We completed our initial public offeff ring in 1971
and listed our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange in 1972. During the 1980s and 1990s, we entered and
expanded operations in a number of homebuilding markets, including Califorff nia, Florida and Texas, through both organic
growth and acquisitions, such as Pacificff Greystone Corporation in 1997. In 2000, we acquired U.S. Home Corporr ation, which
expanded our operations into New Jersey, Maryland, Virginia, Minnesota and Colorado and strengthened our position in
other states. From 2002 through 2005, we acquired several regional homebuilders, which brought us into new markets and
strengthened our position in several existing markets. From 2010 through 2013, we expanded our homebuilding operations
into Georgia, Oregon, Washington and Tennessee. In 2017, we acquired WCI Communities, Inc., a homebuilder of luxuryrr
single-family and multifamily homes, including a small number of luxury hrr igh-rise tower units, in Florida. In 2018, we
acquired CalAtlantic Group, Inc. ("CalAtlantic"), a majoa r homebuilder which was building homes across the homebuilding
spectrum, from entry level to luxury,rr in 43 metropolitan statistical areas spanning 19 states, and providing mortgage, title and
escrow services.

We are focff used on increasing effiff ciencies in our building process and reducing selling, general and administrative
expenses by using technology and innovative strategies to reducd e customer acquisition costs. Our construcrr tion playbook has
three primary areas of focff us: lowering construcr tion costs, reducing cycle time and achieving even flow production. We have
aimed to maintain strong operating margins by deferring home sale price commitments until construcrr tion costs are finff alized
to protect against cost escalations. In addition, we are continuing our transition to a land light operating model by increasing
the percentage of land we control through options or agreements but do not own, which reducd es our years’ supplu y of owned
homesites.

Homebuilding Operations

Overvirr ew

Our homebuilding operations include the construcrr tion and sale of single-family attached and detached homes as well
as the purchase, development and sale of residential land directly and through entities in which we have investments. New
home deliveries, including deliveries froff m unconsolidated entities, were 73,087 in fiscal 2023, compared to 66,399 in fiscal
2022 and 59,825 in fiscal 2021. We primarily sell homes in communities targeted to firff st-time, move-up,u active adult, and
luxury hrr omebuyers. The average sales price of a Lennar home varies depending on product and geographic location. For
fiscal 2023, the average sales price, excluding deliveries from unconsolidated entities, was $446,000, compared to $480,000
in fiscal 2022 and $424,000 in fiscal 2021.
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We operate primarily under the Lennar brand name. Our homebuilding mission is focused on the profitaff bla e
development of residential communities. Key elements of our strategy include:

• Strot ng Operating MarMM gir ns - Our purchasing leverage combined with our focus on reducd ing selling, general and
administrative costs by using technology and innovative strategies and reducd ing interest expense through
paydowns of debt has enabla ed us to achieve strong gross profit and operating margins.

• Everytr hitt ng’s I’ ncII luded®dd Apprpp oach - We are focused on distinguishing our products, including through our
Everytrr hing’s Included® approach, which maximizes our purchasing power, enabla es us to include luxury frr eatff urt es
as standard items in our homes and simplifieff s our homebuilding operations.

• Innovative HomHH ebuilding -We are constantly innovating the homes we build to create products that better meet
our customers' needs and desires. Our Next Gen® home provides what can be a home within a home to
accommodate children or parents or can be an offiff ce from which to work remotely.

• Flexible Operating StrS ucture - Our local operating strucr ture gives us the flexibility to make operating decisions
based on local homebuilding conditions and customer preferences, while our centralized management structure
provides strategic oversight for our homebuilding operations.

• Digii tal MarMM kerr ting - We are increasingly advertising homes through digital channels, which is significantly
increasing the cost effectiveness of our marketing efforts.

• Dynamic pricing model - We match up unsold production as homes progress toward completion, with pricing
information froff m our dynamic pricing model on a community-by-community and home-by-home basis.

• Technology Focused - We partner with and/or invest in technology companies that are looking to improve the
homebuilding and financial services industries to increase efficiencies, reducd e customer acquisition costs and
create a better customer experience.

• Land lightgg stratt tegye - We are focused on reducd ing our years' supplu y of owned homesites and increasing the
percentage of land we control through options or agreements, including agreements with strategic land banks
and joint venturt es, rather than ownership.

• Even flow production - We are focused on maintaining consistent starts and sales paces in order to generate
increased market share in all the markets we build in.

Diversified Program of Property Acquisition

We generally acquire, or obtain options to acquire, land forff development and for the construcr tion of homes that we
sell to homebuyers. Land purchases are subject to specifieff d underwriting criteria and are made through our diversifieff d
program of property acquisition, which may consist of:

• Acquiring land through option contracts, which generally enables us to control portions of properties owned by
land banks and other third parties or entities in which we have investments until we have determined whether to
exercise the options;

• Acquiring land directly from individual land owners/developers, or other homebuilders;
• Acquiring local or regional homebuilders that own, or have options to purchase, land in strategic markets;
• Acquiring access to land through joint ventures or partnerships, which among other benefitsff , limits the amount

of our capia tal invested in land while helping to ensure our access to potential futff urt e homesites and allowing us
to participate in strategic venturt es;

• Investing in regional developers in exchange for preferential land purchase opportunities; and
• Acquiring land in conjunction with our Multifamily business.

For the last several years, we have been reducd ing our reliance on land we own and increasing our access to land
through options and joint venturt es, most significantly through our use of land banks which is a critical part of our operating
strategy. At November 30, 2023, 76% of our total homesites were controlled through options with land banks, land sellers
and joint venturt es compared to 69% at November 30, 2022. For additional inforff mation abouta our investments in and
relationships with unconsolidated entities, see Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations in Item 7 of this Report.
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Construction and Development

We are involved in all phases of planning and building in our residential communities, including land acquisition,
site planning, preparation and improvement of land and design, construcr tion and marketing of homes. We use independent
subcu ontractors forff most aspects of land development and home construcr tion. At November 30, 2023, we were actively
building and marketing homes in 1,260 communities, including five communities being construcr ted by unconsolidated
entities. This was an increase from the 1,208 communities, including eight communities being construcr ted by unconsolidated
entities, in which we were actively building and marketing homes at November 30, 2022. At November 30, 2023 and 2022,
we had abouta 1,200 and 900 completed unsold homes, respectively.

We generally supervise and control the development of land and the design and building of our residential
communities with a relatively small labora force. We hire subcu ontractors forff site improvements and virtuat lly all of the work
involved in the construcrr tion of homes. Arrangements with our subcu ontractors generally provide that our subcu ontractors will
complete specified work in accordance with price and time scheduld es and in compliance with applicable building codes and
laws. The price scheduld es may be subject to change to meet changes in labor and material costs or for other reasons.
Although we, like homebuilders throughout the country, encountered shortages of materials and skilled labora during 2022, we
believe that because of our size and our builder of choice program, where we work with our trade partners to drive
effiff ciencies for them, we were less affeff cted by these shortages than many of our competitors. Most shortages were eliminated
due to the supply chain environment catching up tu o homebuilder demand as well as Lennar’s continued effort to work with
our supplu iers and manufacff turers on the volume and specific products needed to build homes. We generally do not own heavy
construcr tion equipment. We finance construcrr tion and land development activities primarily with cash generated from
operations and historically from proceeds of unsecured corporate debt.

Marketing

We offeff r a diversifieff d line of homes for firff st-time, move-up,u active aduld t, luxury arr nd multi-generational homebuyers
in a variety of locations ranging from urban infill communities to suburbar n golf course communities. Our Everything’s
Included®marketing program enables us to diffeff rentiate our homes from those of our competitors by including luxury irr tems
as standard featurt es at competitive prices, while reducing construcr tion and overhead costs through a simplifieff d construcrr tion
process, product standardization and volume purchasing. In addition, we include built in wireless capability, home
automation and solar power in many of the homes we sell, which enhances our brand and improves our ability to generate
traffiff c and sales.

We sell our homes from models that we have designed and construcrr ted. We employ new home consultants who are
paid salaries, commissions or both to conduct on-site sales of our homes. We also sell homes through independent realtors.
We have made it possible forff potential homebuyers to take virtuat l tours of model homes. During fisff cal 2023, even with shiftsff
in macroeconomic factors and adjud sting to the recent inflaff tionary environment, we were able to develop, enhance, use, and
improve the Lennar machine. Our sales, marketing, and dynamic pricing machine is quickly becoming an advanced digital
engine that has materially benefited froff m aggressive, focff used use and engagement while the market was most difficult.

Our marketing strategy has increasingly involved advertising through digital channels including real estate listing
sites, paid search, display advertising, social media and e-mail marketing, all of which drive traffic to our website,
www.lennar.com. This has allowed us to attract more qualifieff d and knowledgeable homebuyers. However, we also continue
to advertise through more traditional media on a limited basis, including newspapea rs, other local and regional publications,
radio and on billboards where appropriate. We tailor our marketing strategy and message based on the community being
advertised and the customers being targeted, such as advertising our active adult communities in areas where prospective
active adult homebuyers live or will potentially want to purchase. During fiscal 2023, significant increases in interest rates
made our homes less affoff rdable to many prospective buyers and led us to reduce prices or increase sales incentives in a
number of our communities to maintain sales pace.

Quality Servirr ce

We continually strive to improve homeowner customer satisfacff tion throughout the pre-sale, sale, construcr tion,
closing and post-closing periods. We strive to create a quality homebuying experience for our customers through the
participation of sales associates, on-site construcrr tion supeu rvisors and customer care associates, all working in a team effortff , as
well as use of technology to simplify tff he homebuying and finff ancing process. We believe this leads to enhanced customer
retention and referrals. The quality of our homes is subsu tantially affeff cted by the efforts of on-site management and others
engaged in the construcrr tion process, by the materials we use in particular homes, and by other similar factff ors.

We warrant our new homes against defecff tive materials and workmanship forff a minimum period of one year afteff r the
date of closing. Although we subcu ontract virtuat lly all segments of construcr tion to others and our contracts call forff the
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subcu ontractors to repair or replace any deficff ient items related to their trades, we are primarily responsible to the homebuyers
forff the correction of any deficiencies.

Local Operating Structure and Centralized Management

We balance a local operating strucr ture with centralized corporate level management. Our local operating strucr ture
consists of homebuilding divisions across the country, each of which is usually managed by a division president, a controller
and personnel focff used on land acquisition, entitlement and development, sales, construcr tion, customer service and
purchasing. This local operating strucr ture gives our division presidents and their teams, who generally have significant
experience in the homebuilding industry,rr and in most instances, in their particular markets, the fleff xibility to make local
operating decisions, including land identificff ation, entitlement and development, the management of inventory lrr evels forff our
current sales volume, community development, home design, construcr tion and marketing of our homes. We centralize at the
corporate level decisions related to our overall strategy, acquisitions and disposition of land and businesses, risk management,
financing, cash management and information systems.

Backlog

Backlog represents the number of homes under sales contracts. Homes are sold using sales contracts, which are
generally accompanied by deposits. In some instances, purchasers are permitted to cancel sales contracts if they faiff l to qualifyff
for finff ancing or under certain other circumstances. We experienced a cancellation rate of 16% in 2023 and 17% in 2022. We
do not recognize revenue on homes that are the subju ect of sales contracts until the sales are closed and title passes to the new
homeowners.

The backlog dollar value including unconsolidated entities at November 30, 2023 was $6.6 billion, compared to $8.7
billion at November 30, 2022. We expect that a significant portion of all homes currently in backlog will be delivered in
fiscal year 2024.

Homebuilding Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

We create and participate in joint venturt es that acquire and develop land for our homebuilding operations, forff sale to
third parties or forff use in the venturt es' own homebuilding operations. Through these joint venturt es, we reducd e the amount we
invest in potential future homesites, thereby reducd ing risks associated with land acquisitions and improving the returt n on our
investments, and, in some instances, we obtain access to land to which we could not otherwise have obtained access or could
not have obtained access on as favorable terms. As of both November 30, 2023 and 2022, we had equity investments in 48
active homebuilding and land unconsolidated entities, in which we were participating, and our maximum recourse debt
exposure related to Homebuilding unconsolidated joint ventures was $42.1 million and $9.1 million, respectively. This is
discussed in greater detail in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in
Item 7 of this Report.

Financial Services Operations

Residential Mortgage Financing

We offeff r conforff ming conventional, FHA-insured and VA-guaranteed residential mortgage loan products and other
home mortgage products primarily to buyers of our homes through our financial services subsu idiary, Lennar Mortgage, from
locations in most of the states in which we have homebuilding operations. In fisff cal year 2023, our financial services
subsu idiaries provided loans to 81% of our homebuyers who obtained mortgage finff ancing in areas where we offerff ed services.
Because of the availabia lity of mortgage loans from our financial services subsu idiaries, as well as froff m independent mortgage
lenders, we believe almost all creditworthy potential purchasers of our homes have access to finff ancing.

During fiscal year 2023, we originated approximately 47,000 residential mortgage loans totaling $17.4 billion,
compared to 37,700 residential mortgage loans totaling $14.4 billion durd ing fisff cal year 2022. Subsu tantially all of the
residential mortgage loans we originate are sold within a short period in the secondary mortgage market, a majoa rity of them
on a servicing-released, non-recourse basis. Afteff r the loans are sold, we retain potential liabia lity for claims by purchasers that
we breached certain limited industry-rr standard representations and warranties in the loan sale agreements. Occasional claims
of this type are a normal incident of loan securitization activities. We do not believe that the ultimate resolution of these
claims will have a material adverse effect on our business or finff ancial position. During fiscal year 2023, we also locked
interest rates on appra oximately 46,600 residential mortgage loans totaling $17.2 billion, compared to 41,100 residential
mortgage loans totaling $15.7 billion durd ing fisff cal year 2022.

We finance our mortgage loan activities with borrowings under our financial services warehouse faciff lities or funds
from our operating activities. At November 30, 2023, Financial Services had fivff e warehouse residential facilities maturt ing at
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various dates through fiscal 2024 with a total maximum borrowing capacity of $2.5 billion including an uncommitted amount
of $750 million. We expect the facff ilities to be renewed or replaced with other facilities when they maturt e. If they are not
renewed or replaced, we would have to finff d other sources of fundiff ng for our mortgage originations, which might include our
own fundsff . We have a corporrr ate risk management policy under which we hedge our interest rate risk on rate-locked loan
commitments and loans held-for-sale to mitigate exposure to interest rate fluff ctuat tions.

We have been using new technology to automate portions of our mortgage loan origination process. This new
technology has made the mortgage financing process easier for homebuyers and improved the customer experience. This new
technology has also enabla ed us to increase the number of digital closings, with digital document signing and, where legally
permitted, digital notarization.

Title, Insurance and Closing Services

We are licensed to provide title insurance, and closing services for residential and/or commercial transactions in 41
states to our homebuyers and others. During fiscal 2023 and 2022, we provided closing services with regard to approximately
74,900 and 68,800 real estate transactions, respectively, in 25 and 20 states, respectively.

Commercial Mortgage Origination

Our LMF Commercial subsu idiary originates and sells into securitizations first mortgage loans, which are secured by
income producing commercial properties. The loans generally are between $5 million and $50 million each. LMF
Commercial also originates floff ating rate loans secured by commercial real estate properties, many of which are in transition,
undergoing lease-up, sell-out, renovation or repositioning. In order to finff ance LMF Commercial lending activities, as of
November 30, 2023, LMF Commercial had three warehouse repurchase finff ancing agreements maturing at various dates froff m
December 2023 through fiscal 2024 with commitments totaling $500 million. This is discussed in greater detail in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of this Report.

Lennar Other

Strategic TecTT hnology Investments

We strategically invest in companies involved in technology initiatives that, among other things, help us enhance the
homebuying or home ownership experience, reduce our SG&A expenses and help us stay at the forefront of homebuilding
innovation. Seven of the companies in which we have strategic investments are publicly traded. They are:

• Blend Labsa , Inc. ("Blend"), a digital lending platform developer simplifyiff ng and fasff t tracking the consumer
finance process;

• Doma Holdings, Inc. ("Doma"), a company that built a predictive analytics platforff m forff title insurers;
• Hippo Holdings, Inc. ("Hippo"), a company that provides an efficient means of obtaining home insurance;
• Opendoor Technologies, Inc. ("Opendoor"), a company that uses technology to significantly streamline the

homebuying and selling process;
• SmartRent, Inc. ("SmartRent"), an enterprrr ise smart home automation company;
• Sonder Holdings, Inc. ("Sonder"), a company that manages short-term rentals, such as rental hotels; and
• Sunnova Energy International, Inc. ("Sunnova"), a leading national residential solar company, to which durd ing

2021, we sold our solar power business in return for equity.

Each of the investments listed abovea , except Doma, is reflected in our financial statements at market value, with
changes to the fair values of those investments generating gains or losses on our quarterly financial statements. Doma is
accounted for using the equity method. At November 30, 2023, the book value of our investment in strategic technology
investments (including those recorded at faiff r value) was $424.7 million and is included in our Lennar Other segment.

For additional inforff mation about our investments in strategic technology investments, see Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of this Report.

Multifamff ily Operations

Our Multifamff ily business has been engaged in the development of multifamff ily communities since 2011. Initially,
the Multifamff ily business almost exclusively participated in shorter-durd ation joint venturt es that built multifamff ily communities
with the intention of selling them soon afteff r they were built, and in most cases afteff r they were substantially occupiu ed.
However, the Multifamily business now manages, and owns interests in, longer-durd ation fundsff that build multifamff ily
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communities with the intention of retaining them as rental income-generating assets. At November 30, 2023, Multifamily had
interests in, and was managing, three fundsff and 22 joint venturt es.

From inception through November 30, 2023, the Multifamily business has capitalized and developed 119
multifamily residential communities with approximately 35,900 rental units across 20 states throughout the United States.
The communities developed by the Multifamff ily business include a diversified mix of conventional garden, mid-rise and high-
rise multifamff ily properties in urban and suburbar n locations near majoa r employment centers. Most communities offerff
residents a mix of studit o, one, two, and three-bedroom homes.

As of November 30, 2023, funds and ventures managed by Multifamff ily had a pipeline of 48 potential futff urt e
developments, which were owned, under contract or subju ect to letters of intent, totaling appra oximately $6.2 billion in
anticipated development costs across several states.

Multifamff ily has co-investments in all the funff ds and ventures it manages, and receives returt ns on these investments.
In addition, it has carried interests in the funds or venturt es it manages, and receives distributions with regard to those carried
interests.

Single-Family Home Rentals

In December 2020, Lennar forff med the Upward America Venture, LLC (“Upward America”), which (a) acquires
communities of single-family rental properties (including townhomes, duplexes and condominium buildings developed or
acquired forff rental purposr es), and (b) leases and manages homes in those communities. Lennar subsidiaries are the manager
and the general partner of Upward America. As of November 30, 2023, institutional investors and Lennar had committed
$1.6 billion to Upward America, part of which was used to reduce an initial commitment Lennar had made from $225 million
to $125 million. Proceeds of commitments by other investors may be used to redeem more of Lennar’s ownership, but Lennar
has agreed not to reduce its ownership below $50 million.

As owner of the general partner of Upward America, Lennar has the right to receive, in addition to distributions
regarding its own commitments, distributions based on the amounts by which returns to limited partners exceed specifieff d
amounts (i.e., carried interests). As the manager of Upward America, Lennar receives management and acquisition fees.
Lennar subsidiaries may also receive fees for property management, leasing, construcr tion management and other services that
they render through subcu ontractors.

At November 30, 2023, Upward America had purchased 4,697 homes in 103 communities across 19 metropolitan
statistical areas for a total purchase price of $1.2 billion (an average price of $258,000 per home), of which 4,420 of the
homes owned by Upward America had been leased to occupau nts. The Limited Partnership Agreement of Upward America
gives Upward America the right to purchase froff m Lennar forff their appra aised value all homes or communities that are purposr e
built by Lennar forff single-family home rental. Upward America also is freff e to purchase homes from homebuilders other than
Lennar or to purchase previously occupiu ed homes. Initially all the homes purchased by Upward America were purchased
from Lennar, but subsu equently, Upward America began purchasing homes from multiple homebuilders. At both November
30, 2023 and 2022, approximately 6% of the homes owned by Upward America were built by homebuilders other than
Lennar.

Five Point Holdings, LLC

We own an indirect approximately 40% interest in FivePoint, which is a publicly traded developer of three large
master planned mixed-use developments in California (Newhall Ranch, Great Park Neighborhoods, and San Francisco
Shipyard/Cdd andlestick Point). We sometimes purchase properties froff m FivePoint for use in our homebuilding operations. We
have no active role in the management of FivePoint, except that since August 2021 our Executive Chairman and Co-Chief
Executive Officer has been the non-employee Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors (but not the chief executive
offiff cer) of FivePoint. As of November 30, 2023, the carrying amount of our investment in FivePoint was $422.2 million.

Rialto Fund Investments

Until November 30, 2018, we had a group of subsu idiaries, including Rialto Capia tal Management, LLC ("Rialto"),
that primarily managed real estate related investment funds and other real estate related investment vehicles. We sold the
Rialto Management Group on November 30, 2018. However, we retained the right to share in carried interest distributions
from some of the funds and other investment vehicles Rialto manages. We also retained limited partner investments in
several Rialto funds and investment vehicles that totaled $148.7 million as of November 30, 2023.
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Seasonality

We historically have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, variability in quarterly results. Our
homebuilding business is seasonal in nature and generally reflects higher levels of new home order activity in our second and
third fisff cal quarters and increased deliveries in the second half of our fiscal year. However, a variety of factff ors can alter
seasonal patterns. In addition, we are working towards moving to a more even floff w production where we start, sell and
deliver a similar number of homes each quarter.

Competition

The residential homebuilding industry irr s highly competitive. In each of the market regions where we operate, we
compete forff homebuyers with numerous national, regional and local homebuilders, as well as with resales of existing homes
and with the rental housing market. We compete forff homebuyers on the basis of a number of interrelated factff ors including
location, price, reputation forff customer satisfaction, amenities, design, quality and finff ancing. In addition to competition forff
homebuyers, we also compete with other homebuilders forff desirabla e properties, raw materials and access to reliabla e, skilled
labora . We compete with a wide variety of property owners in our effoff rts to sell land to homebuilders and others. We believe
we are competitive in the market regions where we operate primarily due to our:

• Everything’s Included® marketing program, which simplifies the homebuying experience by including the most
desirabla e feaff tures as standard items;

• Innovative home designs, such as our Next Gen® homes that provide both privacy and togetherness for multi-
generational famff ilies or a home officff e to accommodate working froff m home;

• Inclusion of built-in Wi-Fi, solar power systems and advanced technology in many of our homes;
• Consumer insight capaa bia lities, which allow us to continually stay tapped into consumer preferff ences and

feedbad ck so we can continuously evolve and finff e-tune our offeff rings, processes and communications for our
customers;

• Financial position as a result of our ability to finff ance land purchases and development activities with operating
revenues and corporate level unsecured borrowing;

• Access to land, particularly in land-constrained markets;
• Pricing to current market conditions;
• Cost efficiencies realized through our national purchasing programs and production of value-engineered homes;
• Quality construcr tion and home warranty programs, which are supporu ted by a responsive customer care team;
• Our builder of choice program through which we maximize the effiff ciency of our supplu iers' dealing with us;
• Size and scale in leading markets;
• Use of digital channels to advertise homes; and
• Strategic investments in technology initiatives through our LENX investments in companies that help us enhance

the homebuying and home ownership experience, and help us stay at the forefront of homebuilding innovation.

Our residential finff ancial services operations compete with other residential mortgage lenders, including national,
regional and local mortgage bankers and brokers, banks, savings and loan associations, non-bank mortgage lenders and other
financial institutions, in the origination and sale of residential mortgage loans. Principal competitive factff ors include interest
rates and other feaff tures of mortgage loan products availabla e to the consumer. We compete with other title insurance agencies
and underwriters for closing services and title insurance. Principal competitive factff ors include service and price.

Our LMF Commercial subsu idiary's commercial mortgage origination and sale business competes with a wide variety
of banks and other lenders that offeff r small and mid-sized mortgage loans to commercial enterprr ises. Competition is based
primarily on service, price and relationships with mortgage brokers and other referral sources. LMF Commercial is run by
highly seasoned managers who have been originating and securitizing loans for over 30 years and benefit froff m long-standing
relationships with referral sources, as well as being abla e to leverage Lennar's infraff structurt e faciff lities forff rapia d market
entrances and analysis. We believe these factff ors give LMF Commercial an advantage over many of the lenders with which it
competes. Additionally, we believe access to Lennar's local homebuilding teams provides LMF Commercial with a distinct
advantage in its evaluation of real estate assets.

In each region where we develop and operate multifamily properties, there is competition forff residents with other
owners of residential real estate (whether forff -rent or for-sale). In addition, when capital raising, we compete with a wide
variety of other investment opportunities that are being marketed by other firms, related both to real estate and to a variety of
other investment products. We also compete for developabla e land with other developers of real estate for a variety of uses.
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In each region where our funds offeff r single-family homes for rent, there is competition forff residents with other
owners of residential real estate (whether forff -rent or for-sale). In addition, in seeking investors to acquire interests in fundsff
we form, we will be competing with a wide variety of investment opportunities, related both to real estate and to a variety of
other investment products. Also, in seeking to acquire single-family homes that our funds can hold as rental properties, our
funds will be competing with other persons who plan to hold them as rental properties as well as persons who might want to
purchase those homes to live in them.

Regulation

The residential communities and multifamily apartment developments that we build are subject to a large variety of
local, state and fedff eral statutt es, ordinances, rulrr es and regulations relating to, among other things, zoning, construcr tion permits
or entitlements, construcrr tion materials, density, building design and property elevation, building codes and handling of waste.
These include laws requiring the use of construcr tion materials that reduce the need for energy-consuming heating and cooling
systems. These laws and regulations are subject to frequent change and often increase construcr tion costs. For example, the
Califorff nia Energy Commission has adopted a requirement that most newly built homes in Califorff nia must have rooftoff p solar
panels. In some instances, we must comply with laws that require commitments froff m us to provide roads and other offsiff te
infrastructurt e, and may require them to be in place prior to the commencement of new home construcrr tion. These laws and
regulations are usually administered by counties and municipalities and may result in feesff and assessments or building
moratoriums. In addition, many new development projeo cts are subju ect to assessments for schools, parks, streets and highways
and other public improvements, the costs of which can be subsu tantial. Also, some governmental agencies are attempting to
make homebuilders responsible for violations of wage and other labora laws by their subcontractors.

Residential homebuilding and apartment development are also subju ect to a variety of local, state and fedff eral statutt es,
ordinances, rulrr es and regulations concerning the protection of health and the environment. These environmental laws include
such subju ects as storm water and surface water management, soil, groundwater and wetlands protection, subsu urface
conditions and air quality protection and enhancement. Environmental laws may result in delays in developing properties,
may cause us to incur substantial compliance and other costs and may prohibit or severely restrict homebuilding activity in
environmentally sensitive regions or areas.

Over the years, several cities and counties in which we have developments have submu itted to voters "slow growth"
initiatives and other ballot measures that could impact the affoff rdability and availabia lity of land suitabla e forff residential
development within those localities. Although many of these initiatives have been defeated, if similar initiatives were
approved, residential construcr tion by us and others within certain cities or counties could be seriously impacted.

In order to make it possible forff some of our homebuyers to obtain FHA-insured or VA-guaranteed mortgages, we
must construcr t the homes they buy in compliance with regulations promulgated by those agencies. Various states have
statutt ory drr isclosure requirements relating to the marketing and sale of new homes. These disclosure requirements vary wrr idely
from state-to-state. In some states, we are required to be registered as a licensed contractor and comply with applicable rules
and regulations. In various states, our new home consultants are required to be registered as licensed real estate agents and to
adhere to the laws governing the practices of real estate agents.

Our mortgage and title subsu idiaries must comply with applicable real estate, lending and insurance laws and
regulations. The subsu idiaries are licensed in the states in which they do business and must comply with laws and regulations
in those states. These laws and regulations include provisions regarding capitalization, operating procedurd es, investments,
lending and privacy disclosures, forms of policies and premiums. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act contains a number of requirements relating to mortgage lending and securitizations. These include, among
others, minimum standards forff lender practices, limitations on certain feesff and a requirement that the originator of loans that
are securitized retain a portion of the risk, either directly or by holding interests in the securitizations.

Several fedff eral, state and local laws, rulr es, regulations and ordinances, including, but not limited to, the Federal Fair
Debt Collection Practices Act ("FDCPA") and the Federal Trade Commission Act and comparable state statutes, regulate
consumer debt collection activity. Although, for a variety of reasons, we may not be specifically subju ect to the FDCPA or to
some state statutes that govern debt collectors, it is our policy to comply with applicable laws in our collection activities. To
the extent that some or all of these laws appla y to our collection activities, our failure to comply with such laws could have a
material adverse effect on us. We are also subju ect to regulations promulgated by the Federal Consumer Financial Protection
Bureau regarding residential mortgage loans.
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Environment

We are focff used on creating environmentally sustainable products, and our purchasing power enables us to include
green featurt es in our homes. Each new home we build is healthier and more energy effiff cient, and has less impact on the
environment, than prior generations of homes as a result of featff urt es like:

• Low-VOC paint that reducd es pollution;
• WaterSense® fauff cets that reducd e water flow without sacrificff ing performance;
• Low-E windows that reducd e infraff red and ultraviolet light coming into the home; and
• Energy Star® appliances that reduce energy consumption.

In addition, our home design and engineering work optimizes effiff cient use of building materials and reducd es
construcr tion waste.

We also believe in the value of clean energy from solar power, which is why we forff med our own captive solar
power company in 2013. In 2021, we sold our SunStreet solar operations to Sunnova, a leading national residential solar
company, in exchange for stock in the company. We believe Sunnova will be better abla e than us at maximizing the potential
of the SunStreet solar operations. We are also partnering with Sunnova for it to be our exclusive residential home solar and
battery storage provider, and we are working with Sunnova on the development of community solar microgrids.

Human Capital Management

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion; TalTT ent and Development

Our associates (i.e., employees) are our most valuable asset, and we are committed to supporting each associate’s
unique career journey. We were built on a culture of inclusivity and a conscious focus on the associate experience, bringing
together the best talent to drive success as part of our “Lennar famff ily.” We believe having an inclusive work environment,
where everyone has a sense of belonging, not only drives engagement but fosters innovation, which is critical to driving
growth. Our “Everyone’s Included” mantra relative to inclusion and diversity within our company anchors our unique
culture.

Our success starts and ends with having the best talent, and, as a result, we are focff used on attracting, developing,
engaging and retaining our associates. We understand the importance of balance, and offer associates a competitive and
comprehensive benefitff s package, including paid parental leave and resources for whole-self well-being (physical, social, and
financial).

Health and Safety

We are committed to the health and safetff y of our associates and trade partners. We hired a fulff l-time Chief Medical
Offiff cer in early 2020 at the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic. Our experienced teams adapta ed quickly to changes in
safety protocols to protect our associates, trade partners and homebuyers, and we have continued these protocols even after
the COVID-19 pandemic receded. We are also committed to worker safety and regulatory crr ompliance, and among other
things, require that offiff ce associates with oversight of construcr tion and associates who work in the field take additional safetff y
courses. Our Board of Directors and its Audit Committee regularly review the results of OSHA visits and other safety-related
information to ensure that we are successfulff ly managing and improving our safety program.

Employees and Labor Relations

Although we subcu ontract the land development and construcrr tion aspects of our homebuilding activities, we are
highly dependent on our skilled employees for critical aspects of what we do. That includes senior executives who are
responsible for our operational strategies and for appra oving significant land acquisitions and other majoa r investments we
make. It also includes the people who head our homebuilding divisions and non-homebuilding segments. And it includes the
many people who are involved in design, construcr tion oversight, marketing and other aspects of our homebuilding business
and in carrying out our other activities.

At November 30, 2023, we employed 12,284 individuals of whom 9,622 were involved in the Homebuilding
operations, 1,792 were involved in the Financial Services operations and 870 were involved in the Multifamff ily operations,
compared to November 30, 2022, when we employed 12,012 individuals of whom 9,357 were involved in the Homebuilding
operations, 1,748 were involved in the Financial Services operations and 907 were involved in the Multifamff ily operations.
We do not have collective bargaining agreements relating to any of our associates. However, we subcontract many phases of
our homebuilding operations and some of the subcu ontractors we use have employees who are represented by labor unions.
We believe our overall relations with our workforce are healthy.
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We have policies that prohibit us froff m discriminating in employment opportunities on the basis of race or gender,
and we take active steps to offeff r employment opportunities to members of under-represented ethnic groups.

Available Inforff mation

This Report on Form 10-K and all other reports and amendments we file with or furnish to the SEC are publicly
availabla e freff e of charge on the investor relations section of the Lennar website as soon as reasonabla y practicable afteff r we fileff
such materials with, or furnish them to, the SEC. Our website is www.lennar.com. We caution you that the inforff mation on
our website is not incorporated herein and is not a part of this or any other report we fileff with, or furff nish to, the SEC. In
addition, the SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and inforff mation statements, and other information
regarding issuers, where you may obtain a copy of all of the materials we fileff publicly with the SEC. The SEC website
address is www.sec.gov.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K contains "forff ward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reforff m Act of 1995. These statements concern expectations, beliefs, projeo ctions, plans and strategies, anticipated
events or trends and similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. These forff ward-looking statements
typically include the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “consider,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forff ecast,” “intend,” “objective,”
“plan,” “predict,” “projeo ction,” “seek,” “strategy,” “target,” “will”, "may" or other words of similar meaning. Some of them
are opinions formed based upon general observations, anecdotal evidence and industry err xperience, but that are not supporu ted
by specific investigation or analysis.

These forff ward-looking statements reflect our current views abouta future events and are subju ect to risks, uncertainties
and assumptions. We wish to caution readers that certain important factors may have affeff cted and could in the future affeff ct
our actuat l results and could cause actuat l results to differ significantly from what is anticipated by our forward-looking
statements. The most important factors that could cause actuat l results to differ materially from those anticipated by our
forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: slowdowns in real estate markets in regions where we have
significant Homebuilding or Multifamff ily development activities or own a substantial number of single-family homes for rent;
decreased demand for our homes, either for sale or forff rent, or Multifamff ily rental apartments; the potential impact of
inflation; the impact of increased cost of mortgage finff ancing for homebuyers, increased interest rates or increased
competition in the mortgage industry;rr supplu y shortages and increased costs related to construcr tion materials and labor; cost
increases related to real estate taxes and insurance; the effeff ct of increased interest rates with regard to our funds' borrowings
on the willingness of the fundsff to invest in new projeo cts; reductions in the market value of the Company's investments in
public companies; natural disasters or catastrophic events forff which our insurance may not provide adequate coverage; our
inability to successfulff ly execute our strategies, including our land lighter strategy and our planned spin-off off f certain
businesses; a decline in the value of the land and home inventories we maintain and resulting possible futff urt e write downs of
the carrying value of our real estate assets; the forfeiturt e of deposits related to land purchase options we decide not to
exercise; the potential negative impact to our business of public health issues, including the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic; possible unfavff orable outcomes in legal proceedings; changes in general economic and finff ancial conditions that
reduce demand forff our products and services, lower our profitff margins or reducd e our access to credit; our inability to acquire
land at anticipated prices; the possibility that we will incur nonrecurring costs that affect earnings in one or more reporting
periods; the possibility that the benefitff from our increasing use of technology will not justify iff ts cost; increased competition
for home sales from other sellers of new and resale homes; becoming unabla e to pay down debt; government actions or other
factors that might force us to terminate our program of repurchasing our stock; the faiff lure of the participants in various joint
venturt es to honor their commitments; diffiff culty obtaining land-use entitlements or construcr tion finff ancing; new laws or
regulatory crr hanges that adversely affect the profitabia lity of our businesses (including changes in tax laws or liabia lities); our
inability to refinff ance our debt on terms that are as favorable as our current arrangements; and changes in accounting
conventions that adversely affect our reported earnings.

Please see Item 1A-Risk FacFF tors and Item 7. Management's Discii ussion and Analysll is of Financial CondiCC tion and
results of Operations of this Report forff a furff ther discussion of these and other risks and uncertainties which could affect our
future results. We undertake no obligation to revise any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances afteff r
the date of those statements or to refleff ct the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events, except to the extent we are
legally required to disclose certain matters in SEC filff ings or otherwise.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.
The folff lowing risks, which should be considered carefully with the inforff mation provided elsewhere in this Report,

could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. Additional risks and uncertainties
not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Market and Economic Risks

Demand for homes we build may ba e adverserr ly affeff ctedtt by a variety of macroeconomic factortt s brr eyond our control.ll

Demand for our homes is dependent on a variety of macroeconomic factors, such as employment levels, interest
rates, changes in stock market valuations, consumer confidff ence, housing demand, availabia lity and cost of finff ancing for
homebuyers, availabia lity and prices of new homes compared to those of previously occupiu ed homes, and demographic trends.
These factff ors can be significantly adversely affected by a variety of factors beyond our control. Currently, potential
purchasers of our homes are being affected by inflation and increased interest rates, both of which increase what homebuyers
have to pay forff new homes.

Negate ivtt e publicity ctt ould hurt our repuee tation, which could cause our revenues or resultsll of operations to declinll e.

Our business success is dependent upon the reputation of the Lennar brand and its association with quality and
integrity. If we are unabla e to maintain the position of the Lennar brand, our business may be adversely affected, which could
result in lower sales and earnings. Unfavff orable media or investor and analyst reports related to our industry,rr company, brand,
marketing, personnel, operations, business performance, or prospects may affeff ct our stock price and the performance of our
business, regardless of its accuracy or inaccuracy. We could be subject to knowingly falff se statements made for the purposrr e of
impairing our reputation. These statements, even if totally untrue, can spread rapia dly through the use of electronic
communication, including social media outlets, websites and other digital platforff ms. Our success in maintaining and
enhancing our brand depends on our ability to adapt to this rapidly changing media environment. Adverse publicity or
negative commentary frr roff m media outlets could damage our reputation and reduce the demand for our homes, which would
adversely affect our business.

Our business strategtt ies forff our homebuildii indd g and mortgaget finaii nce businesses may not incii rease our value.

Our strategies forff our core homebuilding and mortgage finance businesses, and any related initiatives or actions,
may not be successfulff . Principal among our current strategies is continuing to reduce the inventory orr f land we own (i.e., to
become a land lighter company), and to control a greater portion of the land we expect to use through options or other
contractuat l arrangements. We cannot provide assurance that this strategy, or other strategies we will follow, will increase our
value. It is possible that the land lighter or other strategies will reducd e, rather than increase, the value and profitabia lity of our
core businesses.

The markerr t forff new homes is cyclicll al, all nd a continuiii ngii downturn in tii hett homebuildindd g markerr t could adverserr ly affeff ct our
operations.

The residential homebuilding industry irr s sensitive to changes in economic conditions and other factors, such as the
level of employment, consumer confidff ence, consumer income, product affordability, availabia lity of financing, inflation, and
interest rate levels. As a result, over the years, demand for new homes has been cyclical, with multi-year periods of high
demand followed by multi-year periods of low demand. During fiscal 2022 and 2023, the housing market weakened
throughout the country in response to the Federal Reserve’s aggressive increase in interest rates in an effoff rt to curtail
inflation. A number of our markets experienced significant market softeff ning that required us to make substantial price
reductions. It is possible that a continued downturt n could result in a further decline in demand forff new homes with resulting
write downs in the carrying value of our land inventory arr nd write offs of costs of land purchase options we decide not to
exercise.

Infln atll iott n could adverserr ly affeff ct our profio taii bilitii y.tt

Weak demand may preclude us from raising home prices enough to keep up with the rate of inflaff tion, which could
reduce our profitff margins. In addition, in an inflationary environment, our cost of capital, labora and materials can increase
and the purchasing power of our cash resources can decline, which can have an adverse impact on our business or finff ancial
results. During fisff cal 2023, we experienced an increase in the inflation rate. Even with shiftsff in macroeconomic factors in the
current fiscal year and adjusting to the recent inflaff tionary environment, as a result of our production volume, an increase in
deliveries, and by appla ying stringent cost controls, we were abla e to achieve satisfactory mrr argins. However, declining demand
for new homes as the year progressed often required us to reducd e, rather than increase, prices. On the other hand, it is
beginning to relieve supplu y shortages. We are taking steps that we expect will enable us to maintain acceptabla e operating
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margins despite the inabia lity to raise prices. However, it is possible that those steps will not be successfulff , and that the
combination of inflaff tion and reduced demand for new homes will adversely affect our profitaff bia lity.

Furthett r incii rease in mii ortgage interest rates could reduce potentt tial buyers’rr abilityii or desireii to obtaitt n fii inff ancingii withii which
to buy hu omes.

Housing has been considerably impacted by the more than doubling of mortgage interest rates in 2022, and
continued increases in 2023. When interest rates increase, the cost of owning a new home increases, which usually reduces
the number of potential buyers who can affoff rd, or are willing, to purchase homes we build.

A decldd inll e in pii rices of new homes could rll equireii us to write down thett carrying value of land we own and to write off off pto iott n
costs.tt

We are constantly purchasing land, or entering into arrangements to purchase land, for use in our homebuilding
operations. The value of land suitabla e forff residential development fluff ctuat tes depending on local and national market
conditions and other factors that affect demand for new homes. When demand forff homes fell during the 2007-2010 recession,
we were required to take significant write-downs of the carrying value of our land inventory arr nd we elected not to exercise
many options to purchase land, which required us to forff feit deposits and write-off pre-acquisition costs. Although we have
reduced our exposure to costs of that type, a certain amount of exposure is inherent in our homebuilding business. If market
conditions were to deteriorate significantly in the futff urt e, we could again be required to make significant write-downs of the
carrying value of our land inventory arr nd incur costs relating to decisions not to exercise land purchase options.

Our resultsll of operations and finaii ncial conditiii on may ba e adverserr ly affeff ctedtt by publicll healthll issues, as nd resultill ngii
governmrr ental actiott ns.

The United States has experienced, and may experience in the futff urt e, outbrt eaks of contagious diseases that affeff ct
public health and public perception of health risk. The COVID-19 pandemic caused the shutdown of large portions of our
national economy. With the exception of a period in March and April of 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic and its effeff cts on the
economy did not adversely affect our home sales. However, this may not be the case with any futff urt e public health issues. The
extent to which public health issues impact our results will depend on future developments, which cannot be predicted. If a
contagious disease causes significant negative impacts to economic conditions or consumer confidff ence, our results of
operations, finff ancial condition and cash floff ws could be materially adversely impacted.

Current and thrtt eatened confln icll ts could all ffea ct demand for thett homes we buildii .dd

There currently are ongoing conflicff ts in Ukraine and Israel. While we do not acquire essential components of the
homes we build from either of those countries and while as of November 30, 2023, neither of these conflicff ts has had a
material direct impact on our consolidated financial performance, the conflicff ts are still ongoing, and there are many risks and
uncertainties in relation to those conflicff ts that are outside of our control. For example, these conflicff ts have already led and
could lead to further market disruptu ions, including significant volatility in commodity prices, credit and capital markets, as
well as supplu y chain interruptu ions. In addition, the closure of or limitation on the use of significant shipping routes as a result
of these conflicff ts may result in interruptu ions to the supply of certain key raw materials worldwide, thereby, among other
things, increasing their cost. If either or both confliff cts escalate furff ther or if additional countries join either confliff ct, that may
lead potential homebuyers to decide not to invest in new homes at this time, which could have a material impact on our
business operations and finff ancial performance.

Operatrr iott nal Risksii

Homebuildindd g, mortgagett lendindd g and home rentaltt s all re very competitivtt e indii ustries, and compem titive conditioii ns couldll
adverserr ly affeff ct our business or finff ancial results.tt

Homebuildingg. The homebuilding industry irr s highly competitive. Homebuilders compete not only forff homebuyers,
but also for desirable land, financing, raw materials, skilled management and labora resources. We compete in each of our
markets with numerous national, regional and local homebuilders. We also compete with sellers of existing homes, including
foreclosed homes, and with rental housing. These competitive conditions can reduce the number of homes we deliver,
negatively impact our selling prices, reducd e our profitff margins, and cause impairments in the value of our inventory orr r other
assets. Competition can also affeff ct our ability to acquire suitable land, raw materials and skilled labor at acceptabla e prices or
other terms.

Financial Services. Our Financial Services residential and commercial lending businesses compete with other
residential and commercial mortgage lenders, including national, regional and local banks and other financial institutions.
Mortgage lenders who have greater access to low cost funds, superior technologies or different lending criteria than we do
may be abla e to offer more attractive finff ancing to potential customers than we can.
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Multifamff ilyy. Our multifamff ily rental business competes with other developers and operators of multifamff ily
apartment communities at locations across the U.S. where we have investments in multifamff ily rental properties. We also
compete in securing partners, equity capital and debt financing, and we compete for tenants with the large supplu y of already
existing or newly built rental apartments, as well as with sellers and renters of single-family homes. These competitive
conditions could negatively impact the abia lity of the fundsff and ventures we manage to finff d renters for the apartments they are
building or the prices for which those apaa rtments can be rented.

Single-Family Home Rentalsg y . In each region where our funds offeff r single-family homes for rent, there will be
competition for residents with other owners of residential real estate (whether forff -rent or for-sale). In addition, in seeking
investors to acquire interests in fundsff we form, we will be competing with a wide variety of investment opportunities, related
both to real estate and to a variety of other investment products. Also, in seeking to acquire single-family homes that our
funds can hold as rental properties, our funds will be competing with other persons who plan to hold them as rental properties
as well as persons who might want to purchase those homes to live in them.

We may ba e subjeb ct to costs ott f wo arranty att nd liabiliii tyii claill msii in excess of to hett insurance coverage we can purchase.

As a homebuilder, we are subju ect in the ordinary course of our business to warranty and construcr tion defecff t claims.
We are also subject to claims for injuries that occur in the course of construcr tion activities. We record warranty and other
reserves for the homes we sell based on historical experience in our markets and our judgment of the qualitative risks
associated with the types of homes we build. We have, and many of our subcu ontractors have, general liabia lity, property,
workers' compensation and other business insurance. These insurance policies are intended to protect us against risk of loss
from claims, subject to self-iff nsured retentions, deducd tibles and coverage limits. However, it is possible that this insurance
will not be adequate to address all warranty, construcr tion defecff t and liabia lity claims to which we are subju ect.

Additionally, the cost of insurance has increased significantly in recent years. Also, the coverage offeff red and the
availabia lity of general liabia lity insurance forff construcr tion defects is currently limited and policies that can be obtained often
include exclusions based uponu past losses those insurers suffeff red as a result of use of defectff ive materials in homes we and
many other homebuilders built. As a result, an increasing number of our subcu ontractors are unabla e to obtain insurance, and
we have in many cases had to waive our customary irr nsurance requirements, which increases our and our insurers’ exposure to
claims and increases the possibility that our insurance will not be adequate to protect us against all the costs we incur. This
increase in cost and limitation in coverage has also increased our self-iff nsured retentions and decreased our total coverage. It
is possible in the future that insurance would not be availabla e at commercially reasonabla e rates, which may cause us to reduce
or eliminate general liabia lity insurance.

Excessive healthll and safetff y itt ncii idendd ts relating to ott ur operations could bll e costly to us.

Land development and construcrr tion are inherently dangerous. While safety is a priority on our land development
and construcrr tion sites, we cannot always control the way work is performed by subcu ontractors, including whether they
comply with laws and regulations designed to maximize the safety of construcrr tion workers. Failures in health and safetff y
performance on our worksites may result in penalties for non-compliance with relevant regulatory rrr equirements in our
subcu ontractors having diffiff culty attracting the workers they need and in a negative impact to our reputation.

Products stt upplpp iell d to utt s and work done by sb ubcontratt ctortt s crr an exposxx e us to rtt isks that could all dverserr ly affeff ct our business.

We rely on subcu ontractors to perform the actuat l construcr tion of our homes, and in many cases, to select and obtain
building materials. Despite our detailed specifications and quality control procedurd es, in some cases, subcontractors may use
improper construcrr tion processes or defectff ive materials. Defectff ive products widely used by the homebuilding industry crr an
result in the need to perform extensive repairs to large numbers of homes. The cost of complying with our warranty
obligations may be significant if we are unabla e to recover the cost of repairs froff m subcontractors, materials suppliers and
insurers.

We also can suffer damage to our reputation, and may be exposed to possible liabia lity, if subcontractors faiff l to
comply with applicable laws, including laws involving things that are not within our control. When we learn abouta possibly
improper practices by subcu ontractors, we try trr o cause the subcontractors to discontinue them. However, we may not always
be able to do that, and even when we can, it may not avoid claims against us relating to work the subcu ontractors already
performed.

A reduced number of home sales would extend the timtt e it tii akett s us to rtt ecover land purchase and propeo rty dtt eveldd opmll ent
costs.tt

We incur many costs even before we begin to build homes in a community. Depending on the stage of development
a land parcel is in when we acquire it, these may include costs of preparing land, finishing and entitling lots, installing roads,
sewers, water systems and other utilities, and taxes and other costs related to ownership of the land on which we plan to build
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homes. If the rate at which we sell and deliver homes slows, or if we delay the opening of new home communities, we may
incur increased pre-construcrr tion costs and it may take longer forff us to recover those costs.

Increased intii ertt est ratestt could ill ncii rease our cost of buildindd g homes.

Our business requires us to finff ance much of the cost of developing our residential communities. One of the ways we
do this is with bank borrowings. At November 30, 2023, we had a $2.6 billion revolving credit facility with a group of banks
(the "Credit Facility"), which had an accordion feaff ture that could increase it to $3 billion. We also had warehouse borrowing
facilities totaling $3.7 billion to support our residential and commercial mortgage lending activities. The interest on
borrowings under the Credit Facility is at rates based on prevailing short-term rates froff m time to time. In 2022 and 2023, the
Federal Reserve steadily raised benchmark interest rates. At November 30, 2023, we had no borrowings under our Credit
Facility. However, if in the future we have a need forff significant borrowings under our Credit Facility and interest rates
continue be high, that would increase the cost of the homes we build, which either would make those homes more expensive
for homebuyers, which is likely to reduce demand, or would lower our operating margins, or both.

Increases in tii hett rate of cancellall tions of home sale agreements could hll ave an adverserr effeff ct on our business.

Our backlog reflects agreements of sale with our homebuyers for homes that have not yet been delivered. We
usually have received a deposit from our homebuyer forff each home refleff cted in our backlog, and generally we have the right
to retain the deposit if the homebuyer does not complete the purchase. In some cases, however, a homebuyer may cancel the
agreement of sale and receive a complete or partial refund of the deposit for reasons such as state and local laws, the
homebuyer’s inability to obtain mortgage finff ancing, the homebuyer's inabia lity to sell their current home or our inability to
complete and deliver the home within the specified time. With the increase in interest rates, we have experienced an increase
in cancellation rates. If there is a weakening of the housing market, or if mortgage financing becomes less available or more
expensive than it currently is, more homebuyers may cancel their agreements of sale with us, which would have an adverse
effeff ct on our business and results of operations.

Our success to a stt ubstantt tial extent depeee nds odd n our abilitii y ttt o att cquireii land that is suitable fll orff residentiatt l homebuildii indd g and
meets ott ur land investment criteii ria.

There is strong competition among homebuilders forff land that is suitabla e forff residential development. The futff urt e
availabia lity of finished and partially finished developed lots and undeveloped land that meet our internal criteria depends on a
number of facff tors outside our control, including land availabia lity in general, competition with other homebuilders and land
buyers for desirable property, inflation in land prices, zoning, allowabla e housing density, and other regulatory rrr equirements.
Should suitabla e lots or land become less availabla e, the number of homes we could build and sell could be reducd ed, and the
cost of land could be increased, perhapsa subsu tantially, which could adversely impact our results of operations.

We could bll e hurt if li anll d banks are not able tll o rtt aiseii necessary investor fundff s odd r if wi e are unable tll o ctt reate att nd maintain
relationships with ltt anll d banks.

As part of our land acquisition strategy, we have refined our relationships with strategic land banks with a view
toward using land banks to gain future access to land without having to own it. If we are unabla e to identify off r to develop and
maintain the necessary relationships with suitabla e land banks in the futff urt e, we will not be able to fully implement our
strategy. Most land banks are fundsff that use finff ancial investor capia tal to finff ance land acquisitions. If returt ns to investors in
land banks are not sufficient to attract investor funds and land banks are not able to identify aff lternative sources of funding, we
would no longer have access to land banks and instead might have to purchase our land directly from landowners. This would
significantly impair our ability to carry out our strategy of reducing our inventory orr f owned land.

We could bll e hurt by rb efusff als oll f oo wners orr f lo anll d to htt onor optiott ns or contratt cts ttt o stt ell lll anll d to utt s.

We have made a strategic decision to increase the portion of our potential land inventory trr hat we control through
options or contracts and reduce the portion we own. This substantially reduces our investment in land. However, if
landowners who are parties to the options or contracts, possibly including land banks, were to refusff e to honor them, we could
lose access to land at the time we want to use it in our homebuilding activities.

The losll s of to hett services of members orr f oo ur senior managea ment or a signigg fii cant number of oo ur operating employeeso couldll
negate ivtt ely all ffea ct our business.

Our success depends to a significant extent uponu the performance and active participation of our senior
management, many of whom have been with us for 20 or more years. If we were to lose members of our senior management,
we might not be able to find appropriate replacements on a timely basis and our operations could be negatively affected.
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Also, the loss of a significant number of key operating employees and our inability to hire qualifieff d replacements could have
a material adverse effeff ct on our business.

Natural disdd asters and severe weather conditiodd ns could dll eldd ayll deliveries and increase costs ott f no ew homes in aii ffa ecff ted areas,s
which could harm our salesll and resultsll of operations.

Many of our homebuilding operations are conducted in areas that are subject to natural disasters, including
hurricanes, earthquakes, droughts, floods, wildfires and severe weather. The occurrence of naturt al disasters or severe weather
conditions can delay new home deliveries, increase costs by damaging inventories and lead to shortages of labor and
materials in areas affeff cted by the disasters, and can negatively impact the demand forff new homes in affeff cted areas. Our
insurance may not cover business interruptu ions or losses resulting from these events and our results of operations could be
adversely affected by these events.

If our homebuyers arr re not able tll o ott btaitt n sii uitaii ble fll inff ancingii , tgg hatt t would reduce demand for our homes and our home salesll
revenues.

Most purchasers of our homes obtain mortgage loans to finff ance a substantial portion of the purchase price of the
homes they purchase. While the majority of our homebuyers obtain their mortgage financing froff m our Financial Services
segment, others obtain mortgage finff ancing from banks and other independent lenders. Disruptu ions in the mortgage markets or
increased government regulation could adversely affect the abia lity of potential homebuyers to obtain finff ancing for home
purchases, making it diffiff cult for them to purchase our homes. Among other things, changes made by Fannie Mae, Freddie
Mac, Ginnie Mae and FHA/VA to sponsored mortgage programs, as well as changes made in recent years by private
mortgage insurance companies, have reducd ed the abia lity of a number of potential homebuyers to qualify fff orff mortgages.
Principal among these are higher income requirements, larger required down payments, increased reserves and higher
required credit scores. In addition, there has been uncertainty regarding the future of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie
Mae, including proposals that they reducd e or terminate their role as the principal sources of liquidity in the secondary market
for mortgage loans. It is not clear how, if Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae were to curtail their secondary market
mortgage loan purchases, the liquidity they provide would be replaced. There is a substantial possibility that subsu tituting an
alternate source of liquidity would increase mortgage interest rates, which would increase the buyers' effective costs of
paying for the homes we sell, and thereforff e could reducd e demand forff our homes and adversely affect our results of
operations.

Changes in tii axtt laws could ill ncii rease thett cost of owningii a home.

Currently, there are significant income tax benefits from owning a home, including deductibility of interest on
mortgage loans incurred to finff ance home purchases. If fedff eral or state tax laws are changed to eliminate or reducd e any of
these income tax benefits or if personal income tax rates were to increase, hthe after-tax cost of hhomeowner hshiip co luldd
measur bablyly iincrease and dd diimiiniishh consumer iinterest iin buyibuyi gng ha home, with a resulting adverse effect on our revenues.

Our FinFF ancial Services segme ent can be adverserr ly affeff ctedtt by reduced demand for our homes.

100% of the residential mortgage loans made by our Financial Services segment in 2023 were made to buyers of
homes we built. Thereforff e, a decrease in the demand for our homes or an increase in cash used by homebuyers would
adversely affect the revenues of this aspect of our business.

If our abilityii to sell mortgagett s intii o ttt hett secondardd y mr arkerr t is iii mpii aireii d, that could sll ignigg fii cantlytt reduce our abilitii y ttt o stt ellll
homes unlesll s we are williii ngii to become a lonll g-term investor in lii oanll s we origii naii te.ee

Subsu tantially all of the residential mortgage loans we originate are sold within a short period in the secondary
mortgage market on a servicing-released, non-recourse basis. If we became unabla e to sell residential mortgage loans into the
secondary mortgage market or directly to Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae, we would have to either curtail our
origination of residential mortgage loans, which among other things, could significantly reduce our ability to sell homes, or
commit our own fundsff to long-term investments in mortgage loans, which, in addition to requiring us to deploy subsu tantial
amounts of our own fundsff , could delay the time when we recognize revenues froff m home sales on our statements of
operations.

We may ba e liall ble fll orff certaitt n lii imll ited representattt iott ns and warrantiett s we make in connectiott n with the sale oll f lo oanll s.

While subsu tantially all of the residential mortgage loans we originate are sold within a short period in the secondary
mortgage market on a servicing-released, non-recourse basis, we remain responsible for certain industry srr tandard limited
representations and warranties we make in connection with such sales. Mortgage investors sometimes seek to have us buy
back mortgage loans or compensate them forff losses incurred on mortgage loans that we have sold based on claims that we
breached our limited representations and warranties. In addition, when LMF Commercial sells loans to securitization trusts or
other purchasers, it gives limited industry srr tandard representations and warranties abouta the loans, which, if incorrect, may
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require it to repurchase the loans, replace them with subsu titute loans or indemnify pff ersons for losses or expenses incurred as a
result of breaches of representations and warranties. If we have significant liabia lities with respect to such claims, it could
have an adverse effect on our results of operations, and possibly our financial condition.

Financing Risks

Failure to comply withii the covenants and conditioii ns imposm ed by our borrowingii facilitieii s could restritt ct future borrowingii
or cause our debt to become immediateltt y dll ue and payable.ll

The agreement governing our Credit Facility (the "Credit Agreement") makes it a defauff lt if we fail to pay principal
or interest when it is due (subject, in some instances, to grace periods) or to comply with various covenants, including
covenants regarding financial ratios. In addition, our Financial Services residential mortgage companies and our LMF
Commercial mortgage lending group have warehouse facff ilities to finance their mortgage lending. If we default under the
Credit Agreement or our warehouse faciff lities, the lenders will have the right to terminate their commitments to lend and to
require immediate repayment of all outstanding borrowings. This could reducd e our availabla e fundsff at a time when we are
having difficulty generating all the fundsff we need from our operations, in capital markets or otherwise, and restrict our ability
to obtain finff ancing in the futff urt e. In addition, if we default under the Credit Agreement or our warehouse faciff lities, it could
cause the amounts outstanding under our senior notes to become immediately dued and payable, which would seriously
adversely impact our consolidated financial condition.

We have a substantt tial level of io ndii ebdd tedness, which may have an adverserr effeff ct on our business or limitll our abiliii tyii to take
advantagea of busineii ss, stratt tegie c or finff ancingii opportunitiii es.

As of November 30, 2023, we had outstanding senior notes which we had sold into the capital markets over a
number of years totaling $2.5 billion. The indenturt es governing our senior notes do not restrict our incurrence of futff urt e
secured or unsecured debt, and the agreement governing our Credit Facility allows us to incur a subsu tantial amount of future
unsecured debt. We reduced our outstanding senior notes during fisff cal 2023 by $1.1 billion, but we still have a significant
amount outstanding. Sales of senior debt into the capia tal markets has, until recently, been a significant source of funding for
our operations and acquisitions. Our use of capital markets debt to help support our operations exposes us to a number of
risks, including:

• We may be more vulnerabla e to general adverse economic and homebuilding industry crr onditions;

• We may have to pay higher interest rates upon refinancing indebtedness as a result of the increase in market
interest rates, thereby reducd ing our earnings and cash floff ws;

• We may find it difficult, or may be unabla e, to obtain additional finff ancing to fund future working capital, capital
expenditures and other general corporate requirements that would be in our best long-term interests;

• We may be required to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to the payment of
principal and interest on our debt, reducd ing the cash flow availabla e to fundff operations and investments and
reducing the amount we can returt n to our stockholders;

• We may have reduced flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our businesses or the industries in
which they are conducted;

• We may have a competitive disadvantage relative to other companies in our industry,rr if any, that are less
leveraged; and

• We may be required to sell debt or equity securities or sell some of our core assets, possibly on unfavff orable
terms, in order to meet debt payment obligations.

Our access to ctt apitaii l and our abilityii to obtaitt n aii dditioii nal finff ancingii could bll e affea ctedtt if there was a dowdd ngrade of our
creditdd ratings.

Our corporr ate credit rating and ratings of our senior notes affeff ct, among other things, our ability to access new
capital, especially debt, and the costs of that new capital. For a number of years, a substantial portion of our access to capital
has been through the issuance of senior notes, of which we have approximately $2.5 billion outstanding, net of debt issuance
costs, as of November 30, 2023. Among other things, we have often relied on proceeds of debt issuances to pay the principal
of existing senior notes when they mature. Negative changes in the ratings of our senior notes could make it diffiff cult for us to
sell senior notes in the futff urt e and could result in more stringent covenants and higher interest rates with regard to new senior
notes we issue.

During 2024, we will have to replace or renew a total of $3.7 billion of warehouse lines used by Financial Services,
including LMF Commercial, as they mature. We expect these facff ilities to be renewed or replaced with other faciff lities when
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they mature. If we were unabla e to renew or replace these faciff lities on favorable terms or at all when they mature, that could
seriously impede the activities of our Financial Services segment, which would have an impact on our financial results.

An inabilitii y ttt o ott btaitt n pii erfor rmance bonds or post letll tett rs of creditdd could all dverserr ly affeff ct our opeo rations.

We ofteff n are required to provide surety bonds to secure our performance of obligations under construcr tion contracts,
development agreements and other arrangements. At November 30, 2023, we had outstanding surety bonds of $4.5 billion
including performance surety bonds related to site improvements at various projects (including certain projects of our joint
venturt es) and financial surety bonds. Although significant development and construcrr tion activities have been completed
related to these site improvements, these bonds are generally not released until all development and construcr tion activities to
which they relate are completed. Our ability to obtain surety bonds primarily depends upon our credit rating, financial
condition, past performance and similar factff ors, the capacity of the surety market and the underwriting practices of surety
bond issuers. Our abia lity to obtain surety bonds also can be impacted by the willingness of insurance companies to issue
performance bonds for construcr tion and development activities. If we were unabla e to obtain surety bonds when required, our
operations could be adversely affected.

We conduct some of oo ur operations through jgg ointii ventures with indepeee ndendd t thitt rdii parties and we can be adverserr ly
impacted by ob ur joint venture partners'rr failures to ftt ulff fill llii their oii bligll atiott ns or decisiii ons to att ct contratt ry to our wishes.

In our Homebuilding and Multifamff ily segments, we participate in joint ventures in order to help us acquire attractive
land positions, to manage our risk profileff and to leverage our capital base. In certain circumstances, joint venturt e participants,
including us, are required to provide guarantees of obligations relating to the joint ventures, such as completion and
environmental guarantees. If a joint venturt e partner does not perform its obligations, we may be required to bear more than
our proportional share of the cost of fulff filling the joint venture’s obligations. For example, in connection with our
Multifamff ily business, and its joint ventures, we and the other venture participants have guaranteed obligations to complete
construcr tion of multifamily residential buildings at agreed-uponu costs, which could make us and the other venturt e
participants responsible for cost over-runs. Although all the participants in a venture are normally responsible for sharing the
costs of fulff filling obligations of that type, if some of the venturt e participants are unabla e or unwilling to meet their share of the
obligations, we may be held responsible for some or all of the defauff lted payments. In addition, because we do not have a
controlling interest in most of the joint ventures in which we participate, we may not be able to cause joint ventures to sell
assets, returt n invested capital or take other actions when such actions might be in our best interest.

Several of the joint ventures in which we participate will in the relatively near future be required to repay, refinff ance,
renegotiate or extend their borrowings. If any of those joint venturt es are unabla e to do this, we could be required to provide at
least a portion of the funds the joint venturt es need to be able to repay the borrowings and to finff ance the activities forff which
they were incurred, which could adversely impact our financial position.

Regulatory Rr isks

Changes in Uii .SUU . tSS ratt de policll ies and retaliatory responses froff m other countritt es may sa ubstantt tially increase the costs or limiii tii
supplu iell s of bo uildii indd g matertt ials and products utt sed in oii ur homes.

During the past several years, the U.S. government has imposed new, or increased existing, tariffs on an array of
imported materials and products that are used in the homes we build, including lumber, steel, aluminum, solar panels and
washing machines, which increases the costs of those items. The tariffs that have been imposed or increased have impacted
our construcr tion costs and caused disruptu ions in our supplu y chains, and new or increased tariffs could result in furff ther cost
increases. These cost increases will either require us to increase prices or negatively impact our profitff margins. New or
increased tariffs could also negatively affect U.S. national or regional economies, which could affect the demand forff the
homes we build.

We may ba e adverserr ly impacted by lb egll al and regulatll ortt y cr hanges.

We are subju ect with regard to almost all of our activities to a variety of fedff eral, state and local laws and regulations.
Laws and regulations, and policies under or interprrr etations of existing laws and regulations, change frequently. Our
businesses could be adversely affected by changes in laws, regulations, policies or interprr etations or by our inability to
comply with them without making significant changes in our businesses.

Governmental regulatll iott ns regare dingii land use and enviroii nmental mattett rs could ill ncii rease thett cost and limitll the availabill litii ytt
of our develdd opmll ent and homebuildill ngii projects att nd adverserr ly affeff ct our business or finff ancial results.

We are subju ect to extensive and complex laws and regulations that affeff ct land development, homebuilding and
apartment development processes, including laws and regulations related to zoning, permitted land uses, levels of density,
building design, elevation of properties, water and waste disposal and use of open spaces. These regulations ofteff n provide
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broad discretion to the administering governmental authorities as to the conditions that must be met prior to development or
construcr tion being approved, if they are appra oved at all. We are also subject to determinations by governmental authorities as
to the adequacy of water or sewage faciff lities, roads and other local services with regard to particular residential communities.
New housing developments may also be subject to various assessments for schools, parks, streets and other public
improvements. In addition, in many markets government authorities have implemented no growth or growth control
initiatives. Any of these can limit, delay, or increase the costs of land development or home construcr tion. Government
restrictions, standards, or regulations intended to reducd e greenhouse gas emissions or potential climate change impacts are
likely to result in restrictions on land development in certain areas and may increase energy, transportation, or raw material
costs, which could reducd e our profitff margins and adversely affect our results of operations. This is a particular concern in the
western United States, where some of the most extensive and stringent environmental laws and residential building
construcr tion standards in the country have been enacted, and where we have substantial homebuilding and multifamff ily
operations.

We are also subju ect to a variety of local, state and fedff eral laws and regulations concerning protection of the
environment. In some of the markets where we operate, we are required by law to pay environmental impact fees, use energy-
saving construcr tion materials and give commitments to municipalities to provide infrastructurt e such as roads and sewage
systems. We generally are required to obtain permits, entitlements and approvals from local authorities to commence and
carry out residential development or home construcr tion. These permits, entitlements and approvals sometimes are opposed or
challenged by local governments, environmental advocacy groups, neighboring property owners or other possibly interested
parties, adding delays, costs and risks of non-approval to the process. Violations of environmental laws and regulations can
result in injun nctions, civil penalties, remediation expenses, and other costs. In addition, some environmental laws impose
strict liabia lity, which means that we may be held liabla e forff unlawful environmental conditions on property we own which we
did not create.

We are also subject to laws and regulations related to workers' health and safetff y, and there are efforts to subject
homebuilders like us to other labora related laws or rulrr es, some of which may make us responsible for things done by our
subcu ontractors over which we have little or no control.

In addition, our residential mortgage subsidiary irr s subject to various state and federal statutes, rules and regulations,
including those that relate to lending operations and other areas of mortgage origination and loan servicing. The impact of
those statutes, rules and regulations can increase our homebuyers’ costs of financing, and our cost of doing business, as well
as restricting our homebuyers’ access to some types of loans.

Our obligation to comply with the laws and regulations under which we operate, and our need to ensure that our
associates, subcontractors and other agents comply with these laws and regulations, could result in delays in construcr tion and
land development, cause us to incur substantial costs and prohibit or restrict land development and homebuilding activity in
certain areas in which we operate. Budget reducd tions by state and local governmental agencies may increase the time it takes
to obtain required appra ovals and therefore may aggravate the delays we encounter. In 2020 and 2021, shutdowns of
government offiff ces in response to the COVID-19 pandemic often delayed the time it took to obtain required appra ovals.
Government agencies also routinely initiate audits, reviews or investigations of our business practices to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, which can cause us to incur costs or create other disruptr ions in our businesses that can
be significant.

We can be injii ured by impropeo r acts ott f po ersorr ns over whom we do not have control.ll

Although we expect all of our associates, officff ers and directors to comply at all times with all appla icable laws, rulr es
and regulations, there may be instances in which subcontractors or others through whom we do business engage in practices
that do not comply with applicable laws, regulations or governmental guidelines. When we learn of practices that do not
comply with applicable laws or regulations, including practices relating to homes, buildings or multifamff ily rental properties
we build or finance, we move actively to stop the non-complying practices as soon as possible and we have taken disciplinaryrr
action with regard to associates of ours who were aware of non-complying practices and did not take steps to address them,
including in some instances terminating their employment. However, regardless of the steps we take afteff r we learn of
practices that do not comply with applicable laws or regulations, we can in certain cases be subju ect to fines or other
governmental penalties, and our reputation can be injun red, due to the practices having taken place.

We could bll e held rll espons sibli e fll orff obligll atiott ns of aff nd labor law violations by, oyy ur subcontractors and other contratt ct parties.

The homes we sell are built by employees of subcu ontractors and other contract parties. We do not have the abia lity to
control what these contract parties pay their employees or the work rulr es they impose on their employees. However, various
governmental agencies have sought, and in the futff urt e may seek, to hold contract parties like us responsible for violations of
wage and hour laws, workers’ compensation and other work-related laws by firff ms whose employees are performing
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contracted for services. While the futff urt e of joint employer liabia lity remains uncertain, if we were deemed to be a joint
employer of our subcu ontractors’ employees, we could become responsible for collective bargaining obligations of, aff nd labora
law violations by, our subcu ontractors. Governmental rulings that make us responsible for labor practices by our
subcu ontractors could create substantial exposures for us in situations that are not within our control.

Riskii Related to Planned SpiS n-Offff

Our previously all nnounced spin-offo of some of our businesses may not occur within any pn articularll time period or at all.ll

We previously announced that we planned to transfer some of our non-homebuilding businesses to a subsu idiary,
Quarterra Group, Inc. (“Quarterra”), which had been formed for that purposr e, and, subju ect to market conditions, to distribute
the stock of Quarterra to our stockholders. However, the timing of this spin-off is currently uncertain and will depend upon
general economic and market conditions over which we have no control. As a result, we may not be able to consummate this
transaction within any particular time period or at all.

Riskii s Rkk elated to Ownership oi f oo ur Stock

We have a stockhokk lderdd who can exerciseii signi ificff ant infii luff ence over matters that are broughtgg to a vote ott f oo ur stoctt kholdell rs.

Stuat rt Miller, our Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officff er, through family and personal holdings of
Class B, and to a lesser extent Class A, common stock, has the power to cast appra oximately 36% of the votes that can be cast
by the holders of all our outstanding Class A and Class B common stock combined. This gives Mr. Miller substantial
influence regarding the election of our directors and the appra oval of most other matters that are presented to our stockholders.
Mr. Miller's voting power might discourage someone from making a significant equity investment in us, even if we needed
the investment to meet our obligations or to operate our business. Also, because of his voting power, Mr. Miller may be able
to cause our stockholders to approve actions that are contrary to many of our other stockholders' desires.

Our ClaCC ss B common stock is less liquid thatt n and has tratt ded at a price substantt tially lower thatt n thatt t of oo ur Clasll s A
common stock.kk

The only significant difference between our Class A common stock and our Class B common stock is that the Class
B common stock entitles the holders to ten votes per share, while the Class A common stock entitles holders to only one vote
per share. However, forff many years, the trading price of the Class B common stock on the NYSE has been subsu tantially
lower than the NYSE trading price of our Class A common stock. We believe this is because only a relatively small number
of shares of Class B common stock are availabla e forff trading, which reducd es the liquidity of the market forff our Class B
common stock to a point where many large investors are reluctant to invest in it. The limited liquidity could make it diffiff cult
for a holder of even a relatively small number of shares of our Class B common stock to dispose of the stock without
materially reducing the trading price of the Class B common stock.

Other Risks

We have substantiatt l invii estments in real estate related fundff s add nd busineii sses in wii hich we are a minority investor.

We have investments in fundsff and other investment vehicles managed by Rialto Capia tal Management, a company
we sold in November 2018, investments in a number of companies that are appla ying technology to various aspects of building
and marketing homes and real estate related aspects of the financial services industry,rr and investments in Five Point
Holdings, LLC, a publicly traded company that has ownership interests in, and is managing the development of, three large
multi-use master planned communities in Califorff nia. As a minority investor, we have little or no influence over decisions
made with regard to these fundsff and businesses. However, we could suffeff r significant losses of our investments as a result of
decisions that are made by the funds and businesses.

Our resultsll of operations could be adverserr ly affeff ctedtt if legale claill msii againsii t us are not resolvedll in our favff or.rr

In the ordinary crr ourse of our business, we are subject to legal claims by homebuyers, borrowers against whom we
have instituted forff eclosure proceedings, persons with whom we have land purchase contracts and a variety of other claimants.
We establa ish reserves against legal claims and we believe that, in general, the outcome of legal claims will not have a
material adverse effect on our business or financial condition. However, if the amounts we are required to pay as a result of
claims against us substantially exceed the sums anticipated by our reserves, the need to pay those amounts could have an
adverse effect on our results of operations for the periods when we are required to make the payments.

We could bll e subjeb ct to unexpexx ctedtt tax laa iall bilitieii s.

We have provisions and reserves forff taxes that we believe are suffiff cient to refleff ct our future tax obligations.
However, it is possible that a taxing authority will successfulff ly assert that we owe taxes that we do not believe that we owe
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and forff which we do not have a provision or reserves. If the additional taxes are material, they could adversely affect our
income tax provision in the period in which such determination is made and, consequently, our operating results and finff ancial
condition.

Infon rmatiott n tectt hnologyll failures and datdd a stt ecurityii breaches could hll arm orr ur busineii ss.

We rely extensively on inforff mation technology ("IT") systems, including Internet sites, data hosting faciff lities and
other hardware and software platforms, some of which are hosted by third parties, to assist in conducting our businesses. Our
IT systems, like those of most companies, may be vulnerabla e to a variety of disruptu ions, including, but not limited to, those
caused by naturt al disasters, telecommunications failures, hackers, and other security issues. Moreover, our computer systems,
like those of most companies, are subju ect to the possibility of computer viruses or other malicious codes, and to cyber or
phishing-attacks. We have installed and continually upgru ade an array of protections against cyber-intrusions. The risk of
cyber-intrusion is one of the areas of risk as to which there are regular periodic presentations to our Board. However, cyber
intrusrr ion efforts are becoming increasingly sophisticated, and it is possible that the controls we have installed could at some
time be breached in a material respect. While, to date, we have not had a cybersecurity breach or attack that had a material
impact on our business or results of operations, if we were to be subject to a material successfulff cyber-intrusion, that could
result in remediation or service restoration costs, increased cyber protection costs, lost revenues or loss of customers,
litigation or regulatory arr ctions by governmental authorities, increased insurance premiums, reputational damage and damage
to our competitiveness, our stock price and our long-term stockholder value.

Failure to maintain the security ott f po ersorr nally idendd tifiaff ble ill nfii orff marr tion could adverserr ly affeff ct us.

In connection with our business we collect and retain personally identifiaff bla e inforff mation (e.g., information regarding
our customers, supplu iers and employees), and our customers, supplu iers and employees have an expectation that we will
adequately protect that inforff mation. The U.S. regulatory err nvironment surrounding information security and privacy is
increasingly demanding. A significant theft, loss or fraff udulent use of the personally identifiaff bla e inforff mation we maintain, or
of our data, by cyber-criminals or otherwise could adversely impact our reputation and could result in significant costs, finff es
and litigation.

Internatiott nal activtt itiett s subjeb ct us to riskii s ikk nheii rent in internatiott nal opeo rations.

We historically have sold significant numbers of homes in communities in the United States to people who are not
residents of the United States, and some large investors in our multifamff ily development and single-family rental funds and
venturt es are located outside the United States. Dealings with people or institutions located outside the United States create
risks related to currencies and to political affaff irs in various countries. In some instances, the government may review the
possible effects of investments by non-U.S. entities on U.S. national security. We must also be carefulff to comply with U.S.
anti-corruptu ion laws. Also, we have to be aware of tax issues involved in doing business outside the United States or with
people who are not residents of the United States, both under U.S. tax laws and under the tax laws of the countries in which
we do business or in which the non-residents reside.

We expexx rience variabilitii y itt n oii ur operating resultsll on a quartertt ly basis.

Our homebuilding business is seasonal in naturt e and generally reflects higher levels of new home order activity in
our second fiscal quarter and increased deliveries in the second half of our fiscal year. However, a variety of factff ors can
change seasonal patterns. Our quarterly results of operations may continue to fluctuate in the future as a result of a variety of
factors, including, among others, seasonal homebuying patterns, the timing of home closings and land sales and weather-
related problems.

We could sll uffeff r signigg fii cant losses if ti hett re are reductions in tii hett market value of oo ur investments itt n pii ublicly traded
companies.

We have made investments in companies that are engaged in appla ying technology to improve the homebuilding
industry arr nd real estate related aspects of the financial services industry.rr Our investments in Blend, Hippo, Opendoor,
SmartRent, Sonder, and Sunnova, all of which have publicly traded shares of common stock are carried on our books at their
fair values, which will change depending on the value of the Company’s shareholdings on the last day of each quarter. As a
result, the Company’s net earnings could be significantly affeff cted by mark-to-market gains or losses on the Company’s
investments.

20



Changes in gii logg bal or regie onal enviroii nmental conditioii ns and governmental actiott ns in response to such changes may
adverserr ly affeff ct us by increasingii the costs of or restritt ctintt g our planll ned or futff ure growth att ctivtt ities.

There is growing concern froff m many members of the scientificff community and the general public that an increase in
global average temperaturt es due to emissions of greenhouse gases and other human activities have caused, or will cause,
significant changes in weather patterns and increase the frequency and severity of natural disasters. Government mandates,
standards or regulations intended to reducd e greenhouse gas emissions or projected climate change impacts have resulted, and
are likely to continue to result, in restrictions on land development in certain areas and increased energy, transportation and
raw material costs. We have tried to reduce the effeff ct of the homes we build on the climate by installing solar power systems
and other energy saving devices in many of those homes. Nonetheless, governmental requirements directed at reducing
effeff cts on climate could cause us to incur expenses that we cannot recover or that will require us to increase the price of
homes we sell to the point that it affeff cts demand forff those homes.

General Risk Factors

The risk factff ors described above are those that we think may be material with regard to an investment in us that are
not applicable generally to all business enterprr ises. However, we are subju ect to the many risks that affeff ct all or most business
enterprises in the United States or internationally, and our business or finff ancial condition could be materially affeff cted by
those risks.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not appla icable.

Information about our Executive Offiff cers

The folff lowing individuals are our executive officers as of January 26, 2024:
Name Position Ageg

Stuat rt Miller . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer . . . . . . 66
Jonathan M. Jaffe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Co-Chief Executive Officer and President . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64
Diane J. Bessette . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Vice President, Chief Financial Offiff cer and Treasurer . . . . . . 63
Mark Sustana . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary . . . . . . . . . . . 62
David M. Collins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Vice President and Controller . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54
Jeff J. McCall . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Executive Vice President . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52

Mr. Miller has served as our Executive Chairman since April 2018 and as our Executive Chairman and Co-Chief
Executive Officer since September 2023. Mr. Miller served as our Chief Executive Officer from 1997 to April 2018 and as
our President froff m 1997 to April 2011. Before 1997, Mr. Miller held various executive positions with us. Mr. Miller also
serves as non-employee Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors of Five Point Holdings, LLC and a member of the
Board of Directors of Doma Holdings, Inc.

Mr. Jaffeff is one of our Directors and has served as our Co-Chief Executive Officer and President since September
2023. Prior to that, Mr. Jaffeff served as our Co-Chief Executive Officer and Co-President froff m November 2020 to September
2023. Mr. Jaffeff previously served as our President froff m April 2018 to November 2020 and as our Chief Operating Offiff cer
from December 2004 to January 2019. Mr. Jaffeff served as a Vice President from 1994 to April 2018 and prior to that, served
as a Regional President in our Homebuilding operations.

Ms. Bessette has served as our Chief Financial Offiff cer since April 2018, our Treasurer since February 2rr 008, and as a
Vice President since 2000. Ms. Bessette initially joined us in 1995 and served as our Controller froff m 1997 to 2008. Ms.
Bessette is a member of the Board of the Miami Branch of the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta.

Mr. Sustana has served as Vice President since April 2018, and as our Secretary arr nd General Counsel since 2005.

Mr. Collins joined us in 1998 and has served as a Vice President since January 2021, and as our Controller since
Februar ry 2008.

Mr. McCall has served as our Executive Vice President since January 2020. Prior to that, Mr. McCall served as our
Senior Vice President froff m February 2rr 018 to January 2020. From June 2011 to Februar ry 2018, Mr. McCall served as
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of CalAtlantic Group, Inc., which we acquired in 2018, or a
predecessor.
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Item 1C. Cybersecurity.

Not appla icable.

Item 2. Properties.

We maintain our corporate headquarters in an officff e building in Miami, Florida. In December 2023, we purchased
this offiff ce building, in which we had previously leased offiff ce space forff our corporate headquarters. This building contains
approximately 213,200 square feet of offiff ce space, of which we lease appra oximately 53,000 square feet of unused offiff ce
space to other tenants. Our homebuilding, financial services and multifamff ily offiff ces are located in the markets where we
conduct business, primarily in leased spaces. We believe that our existing faciff lities are adequate for our current and planned
levels of operation.

Because of the nature of our homebuilding operations, we hold significant amounts of property as inventory irr n
connection with our homebuilding business. We discuss these properties in the discussion of our homebuilding operations in
Items 1 and 7 of this Report.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are party to various claims and lawsuits relating to homes we sold which arise in the ordinary crr ourse of business,
but we do not consider the volume of our claims and lawsuits unusual given the number of homes we deliver and the fact that
the lawsuits ofteff n relate to homes delivered several years before the lawsuits are commenced. Although the specific
allegations in the lawsuits diffeff r, they most commonly involve claims that we failed to construcr t homes in particular
communities in accordance with plans and specifications or applicable construcr tion codes and seek reimbursement for sums
allegedly needed to remedy the alleged deficff iencies, assert contract issues or relate to personal injuries. Lawsuits of these
types are common within the homebuilding industry.rr We are a plaintiff iff n a number of cases in which we seek contribution
from our subcu ontractors forff home repair costs. The costs incurred by us in construcr tion defectff lawsuits may be offset by
warranty reserves, our third-party insurers, subcu ontractor insurers or indemnity contributions from subcontractors. From time
to time, we are also a party to lawsuits involving purchases and sales of real property. These lawsuits ofteff n include claims
regarding representations and warranties made in connection with the transferff of the property and disputes regarding the
obligation to purchase or sell the property. From time-to-time, we also receive notices from environmental agencies or other
regulators regarding alleged violations of environmental or other laws. We typically settle all of the foregoing matters beforeff
they reach litigation for amounts that are not material to us.

We do not believe that the ultimate resolution of these claims or lawsuits will have a material adverse effect on our
business or finff ancial position. However, the finff ancial effeff ct of litigation concerning purchases and sales of property may
depend upon the value of the subjeb ct property, which may have changed froff m the time the agreement forff purchase or sale was
entered into.

Item 4. Mine Safetff y Disclosures.

Not appa licable.

22



PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities.

Our Class A and Class B common stock are listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbols
"LEN" and "LEN.B," respectively. As of December 31, 2023, the last reported sale price of our Class A and Class B common
stock on the NYSE was $149.04 and $134.05, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, there were appra oximately 1,518 and
803 holders of record of our Class A and Class B common stock, respectively.

On January 9, 2024, our Board of Directors increased our annual dividend to $2.00 per share from $1.50 per share,
resulting in a quarterly cash dividend of $0.50 per share on both our Class A and Class B common stock. The dividend is
payabla e on February 7rr , 2024 to holders of record at the close of business on January 24, 2024.

The folff lowing tabla e provides inforff mation abouta our repurchases of common stock during the three months ended
November 30, 2023:

Period
Total Number of

Shares Purchased (1)
Average Price Paid

Per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as
Part of Publicly

Announced Plans or
Programs (2)

Maximum Number of
Shares that may yet be
Purchased under the
Plans or Programs (2)

September 1 to September 30, 2023......... 1,020,797 $ 112.26 1,020,000 17,584,347
October 1 to October 31, 2023................. 980,000 $ 108.38 980,000 16,604,347
November 1 to November 30, 2023......... 1,000,468 $ 116.76 1,000,000 15,604,347
(1) Includes shares of Class A and Class B common stock withheld by us to cover withholding taxes dued with market value appra oximating

the amount of withholding taxes dued .
(2) In March 2022, our Board of Directors appra oved an authorization forff us to repurchase up tu o the lesser of $2.0 billion in value, or 30

million in shares, of our outstanding Class A or Class B common stock. The repurchase authorization has no expiration date. This
authorization was in addition to what was remaining of our October 2021 stock repurchase program. Subsequent to November 30,
2023, our Board of Directors authorized an increase to our stock repurchase program to enable us to repurchase up tu o an additional $5
billion in value of our outstanding Class A or Class B common stock. Repurchases are authorized to be made in open-market or
private transactions. The repurchase authorization has no expiration date.

The inforff mation required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K relating to equity compensation plans is provided in
Item 12 of this Report.
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Perforff mance Graph

The folff lowing graph compares the five-year cumulative total returt n of our Class A common stock with the Dow
Jones U.S. Home Construcrr tion Index and the Dow Jones U.S. Total Market Index. The grapha assumes $100 invested on
November 30, 2018 in our Class A common stock, the Dow Jones U.S. Home Construcrr tion Index and the Dow Jones U.S.
Total Market Index, and the reinvestment of all dividends.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return
Fiscal Year Ended November 30

(2018=$100)

Lennar Corporrr ation Dow Jones U.S. Home Construcrr tion Index
Dow Jones U.S. Total Market Index

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Lennar Corporr ation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 100 140 179 251 213 314
Dow Jones U.S. Home Construcrr tion Index . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 100 146 178 250 203 315
Dow Jones U.S. Total Market Index . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 100 102 120 153 135 153

Item 6. Reserved.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The folff lowing discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in this Report. It
also should be read in conjunction with the disclosure under “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” in Part I
of this Form 10-K.

Outlook

We effeff ctively executed our operating plan in fisff cal 2023 and as a result we have never been better positioned, both
by our balance sheet and with our operating strategy, to address market conditions in 2024. Higher interest rates during 2023
constrained homebuilding consumers’ ability to purchase new homes, but consumers were employed and buyers that could
purchase homes did so. There has been a very srr hort supply of afforff dabla e homes and very srr trong demand for those affordaff bla e
homes. That is partly because the market for existing homes has been quiet, as current homeowners are reluctant to lose the
benefit of their low interest rate mortgages.

Throughout 2023, our consistent operating strategy was
• reducd e our land assets while growing our business,
• drive strong and consistent earnings while concurrently generating net cash floff w,
• reducd e the time it takes us to build a home while increasing the rate at which we absorb inventory,rr and
• enhance our return on equity and our return on inventory brr y focff using on allocation of cash and other liquid

assets.

As other homebuilders pulled back, we grew the pace at which we produced and sold homes, using pricing and
incentives to keep our homes affordable, with reduced margins absa orbir ng the cost of doing this. The strategic benefitff s of
driving volume resulted in advantages that both were immediately valuable and will have durable benefits.

• By driving volume, particularly in a diffiff cult interest rate environment, we:
Increased our market position in many core markets as we moved forff ward when some others pulled
back.
Refined relationships with strategic land banks. The ability to use land banks to gain future access to
land without having to own it is an invaluable tool in our current approach to land acquisition.
Improved our sales, marketing and dynamic pricing machine into what has become an advanced digital
engine that is helping us price offeff rings in various markets and generate sales at the rate necessary to
match our sales pace to the pace at which we are producing homes.

• We enhanced our position as builder of choice for existing and new trade partners, as our strategy of
maintaining volume made us a dependabla e and consistent source of work. Our relationships with trade partners
in local markets improved the effiff ciency of our operations, reducd ed the time it takes us to build homes and
helped our inventory arr bsa orptrr ion.

• We positioned ourselves with land and new communities for strong volume in all of our operating markets. As
we drove volume and delivered homes, we optioned new land and started additional communities forff next
year’s deliveries. We continued to option land to replace communities, especially when others walked away.
Owners and developers of critical land assets saw us as a consistent market participant, even when market
conditions became more tenuous. Our variable land pricing tool enables home site values to move up or down
as a percentage of the sale price of a home as markets move up and down.

While market conditions have been challenging, we have consistently found ways to address market needs. Demand
is strong and there is a chronic housing supply shortage that needs to be filleff d. We will continue to drive production to meet
that housing shortage. And, if interest rates subside, we will be well prepared to meet the resulting release of pent up du emand.

We have continued our land light strategy of seeking land purchase options and purchasing primarily finished
homesites on which we are ready to start, or have already started, building homes. At the end of 2023, 76% of our homesites
were controlled through options or other contracts, rather than owned. The years supply of homesites we owned improved
during 2023 to end the year with a 1.4 years owned supplu y, compared with a 1.9 years owned supplu y in the prior year.

We delivered over 73,000 homes in 2023, which represents a 10% increase over 2022. Our net earnings and diluted
earnings per share were $3.9 billion, and $13.73 per share, respectively. We also delivered subsu tantially increased
homebuilding cash floff w. We are well-positioned with land and community count to expect to deliver 80,000 homes in 2024,
which would be a 10% increase over 2023.

We expect to begin fisff cal 2024 with strong starts, sales and closings. We are expecting to deliver between 16,500
and 17,000 homes in the firff st quarter of 2024, with a margin of 21.00% to 21.25% as lower margin sales from the fourth
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quarter of 2023 when interest rates spiked get delivered. Margins should increase as the year progresses. At the end of our
2023 year, we had 1,260 active communities. We expect our community count to increase durd ing 2024 by mid-to-high single
digits.

Our balance sheet has never been stronger. We ended 2023 with $6.3 billion of homebuilding cash and no
outstanding borrowings under our $2.6 billion revolving credit facility. We did this while spending $1.1 billion to redeem/
repurchase homebuilding senior notes and an additional $1.1 billion to repurchase 10 million shares of our stock. At the end
of 2023, our cash subsu tantially exceeded our total homebuilding debt by $3.5 billion.

Based on the strength of our balance sheet and our ability to thrive even under adverse market conditions, we are
confidff ent that in 2024, Lennar will continue to grow and will achieve new levels of performance.

Results of Operations

Overvirr ew

Our net earnings attributable to Lennar were $3.9 billion, or $13.73 per diluted and basic share in 2023 and $4.6
billion, or $15.72 per diluted share ($15.74 per basic share) in 2022.

Financial inforff mation relating to our operations was as folff lows:

Year ended November 30, 2023

(In tII hott usands)s Homebuilding
Financial
Services Multifamff ily

Lennar
Other Corporate Total

Revenues:
Sales of homes ......................................................... $32,459,129 — — — — 32,459,129
Sales of land............................................................. 109,963 — — — — 109,963
Other revenues ......................................................... 91,895 976,859 573,485 22,035 — 1,664,274

Total revenues................................................... 32,660,987 976,859 573,485 22,035 — 34,233,366
Costs and expenses:
Costs of homes sold ................................................. 24,900,470 — — — — 24,900,470
Costs of land sold..................................................... 92,142 — — — — 92,142
Selling, general and administrative.......................... 2,231,033 — — — — 2,231,033
Other costs and expenses ......................................... — 467,398 573,658 27,681 — 1,068,737

Total costs and expenses................................... 27,223,645 467,398 573,658 27,681 — 28,292,382
Equity in losses froff m unconsolidated entities.......... (3,886) — (52,073) (88,651) — (144,610)
Other income (expense), net and other gains
(losses) ..................................................................... 94,251 — 1,595 (65,329) — 30,517
Lennar Other unrealized losses froff m technology
investments .............................................................. — — — (50,162) — (50,162)
Operating earnings (loss) ...................................... 5,527,707 509,461 (50,651) (209,788) — 5,776,729
Corporate general and administrative expenses....... — — — — 501,338 501,338
Charitabla e foundaff tion contribution.......................... — — — — 73,087 73,087
Earnings (loss) before income taxes ..................... $ 5,527,707 509,461 (50,651) (209,788) (574,425) 5,202,304
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Year ended November 30, 2022

(In tII hott usands)s Homebuilding
Financial
Services Multifamff ily

Lennar
Other Corporate Total

Revenues:
Sales of homes .......................................................... $31,778,885 — — — — 31,778,885
Sales of land.............................................................. 143,041 — — — — 143,041
Other revenues (1) .................................................... 29,409 809,680 865,603 44,392 — 1,749,084

Total revenues ................................................... 31,951,335 809,680 865,603 44,392 — 33,671,010
Costs and expenses:
Costs of homes sold .................................................. 23,025,467 — — — — 23,025,467
Costs of land sold...................................................... 171,589 — — — — 171,589
Selling, general and administrative........................... 1,964,243 — — — — 1,964,243
Other costs and expenses .......................................... — 426,378 848,931 32,258 — 1,307,567

Total costs and expenses ................................... 25,161,299 426,378 848,931 32,258 — 26,468,866
Equity in earnings (loss) from unconsolidated
entities....................................................................... (17,235) — 52,603 (71,669) — (36,301)
Other income (expense), net and other gains
(losses) ...................................................................... 4,516 — 218 (20,020) — (15,286)
Lennar Other unrealized losses froff m technology
investments ............................................................... — — — (655,094) — (655,094)
Operating earnings (loss) ....................................... 6,777,317 383,302 69,493 (734,649) — 6,495,463
Corporate general and administrative expenses........ — — — — 414,498 414,498
Charitabla e foundaff tion contribution........................... — — — — 66,399 66,399
Earnings (loss) before income taxes ...................... $ 6,777,317 383,302 69,493 (734,649) (480,897) 6,014,566
(1) During the year ended November 30, 2022, other revenues in our Multifamily segment included land sales to
unconsolidated entities of $237.5 million.

2023 versus 2022

Revenues froff m home sales increased 2% in the year ended November 30, 2023 to $32.5 billion froff m $31.8 billion in
the year ended November 30, 2022. Revenues were higher primarily due to a 10% increase in the number of home deliveries,
partially offsff et by a 7% decrease in the average sales price of homes delivered. New home deliveries increased to 73,087
homes in the year ended November 30, 2023 from 66,399 homes in the year ended November 30, 2022. The average sales
price of homes delivered was $446,000 in the year ended November 30, 2023, compared to $480,000 in the year ended
November 30, 2022. The decrease in average sales price of homes delivered in the year ended November 30, 2023 compared
to the same period last year was primarily due to pricing to market through an increased use of incentives and product mix.

Gross margins on home sales were $7.6 billion, or 23.3%, in the year ended November 30, 2023, compared to $8.8
billion, or 27.5%, in the year ended November 30, 2022. Gross margins in the year ended November 30, 2023 decreased
because of a decrease in average sales price, which was partially offsff et by a decrease in costs per square foot as we continued
to focus on construction cost savings.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $2.2 billion in the year ended November 30, 2023, compared to
$2.0 billion in the year ended November 30, 2022. As a percentage of revenues froff m home sales, selling, general and
administrative expenses increased to 6.9% in the year ended November 30, 2023, froff m 6.2% in the year ended November 30,
2022, primarily due to an increase in the use of brokers due to current market conditions.

During the year ended November 30, 2023, our homebuilding operating earnings included $141.2 million of interest
income due to an increase in cash balances and higher interest rates, which was partially offsff et by an impairment of $36.8
million of an investment in a joint venturt e.

Operating earnings for our Financial Services segment were $507.1 million in the year ended November 30, 2023,
compared to operating earnings of $381.9 million in the year ended November 30, 2022.The increase in operating earnings
was primarily due to a higher profit per locked loan in our mortgage business as a result of higher margins, and higher lock
volume because of an increase in capture rate and deliveries. There was also an increase in profitabia lity from our title
business dued to higher volume and productivity as a result of continued implementation of technology initiatives. The
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operating earnings in the year ended November 30, 2022 included a $35.5 million one-time charge due to an increase in a
litigation accruar l in the third quarter of fiscal 2022 related to a court judgment. We have appealed this judgment since we
believe there were clear errors of law made by the trial court. Excluding this one-time charge, operating earnings in the year
ended November 30, 2022 were $417.4 million.

Operating loss forff the Multifamff ily segment was $50.6 million in the year ended November 30, 2023, compared to
operating earnings of $69.5 million in the year ended November 30, 2022. Operating loss for the Lennar Other segment was
$211.2 million in the year ended November 30, 2023, compared to an operating loss of $735.6 million in the year ended
November 30, 2022. Lennar Other operating loss forff the year ended November 30, 2023 was primarily due to negative mark-
to-market adjustments of $50.2 million on our publicly traded technology investments and a $65.0 million write-off of one of
our non-public technology investments. The operating loss forff the year ended November 30, 2022 was primarily due to
negative mark-to-market adjustments of $655.1 million on our publicly traded technology investments.

For the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022, we had a tax provision of $1.2 billion and $1.4 billion, which
resulted in an overall effeff ctive income tax rate of 24.0% and 22.8%, respectively. Our overall effeff ctive income tax rate was
higher than last year, primarily due to the resolution of an uncertain state tax position and the retroactive reinstatement of the
new energy efficient home credit, both durd ing 2022.

Homebuilding Segments

At November 30, 2023, our Homebuilding operating segments and Homebuilding Other consisted of homebuilding
divisions located in:

East: Alabama, Florida, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and South Carolina
Central: Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, North Carolina, Tennessee and Virginia
Texas: Texas
West: Arizona, Califorff nia, Colorado, Idaho, Nevada, Oregon, Utah and Washington
Other: Urbar n divisions and other homebuilding related investments primarily in Califorff nia, including FivePoint
The folff lowing tabla es set forff th selected financial and operational inforff mation related to our homebuilding operations

for the years indicated:

Selectedtt Finaii ncial and Operatiott nal Datatt

Year Ended November 30, 2023
Gross Margins Operating Earnings (Loss)

(Dollall rs in
thousands)dd

Sales of
Homes
Revenues

Costs of Sales
of Homes

Gross
Margin %

Net Margins
on Sales of
Homes (1)

Gross
Margins
(Loss) on
Sales of
Land (2)

Other
Revenues

Equity in
Earnings (Loss)

from
Unconsolidated

Entities

Other
Income
(Expense),

net

Operating
Earnings
(Loss)

East ......... $ 9,563,108 6,776,991 29.1 % $ 2,030,953 17,266 30,702 20,165 48,244 2,147,330
Central..... 6,127,748 4,770,383 22.2 % 889,479 10,369 24,187 807 24,700 949,542
Texas....... 4,692,906 3,593,759 23.4 % 770,817 474 6,739 — 10,518 788,548
West ........ 12,052,131 9,722,912 19.3 % 1,670,953 (10,288) 14,688 1,453 36,160 1,712,966
Other (3).. 23,236 36,425 (56.8)% (34,576) — 15,579 (26,311) (25,371) (70,679)

$32,459,129 24,900,470 23.3 % $ 5,327,626 17,821 91,895 (3,886) 94,251 5,527,707
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Year Ended November 30, 2022
Gross Margins Operating Earnings (Loss)

(Dollall rs in
thousands)dd

Sales of
Homes
Revenues

Costs of Sales
of Homes

Gross
Margin %

Net Margins
on Sales of
Homes (1)

Gross
Loss on
Sales of
Land (2)

Other
Revenues

Equity in
Earnings (Loss)

from
Unconsolidated

Entities

Other
Income
(Expense),

net

Operating
Earnings
(Loss)

East ......... $ 9,201,412 6,341,272 31.1 % $ 2,222,835 (10,701) 3,991 1,300 22,831 2,240,256
Central..... 5,830,587 4,532,474 22.3 % 889,359 (171) 1,496 691 (2,144) 889,231
Texas....... 4,212,223 2,992,532 29.0 % 941,899 (9,387) 1,250 — (4,525) 929,237
West ........ 12,513,277 9,114,818 27.2 % 2,775,430 (4,398) 3,916 4,412 (5,763) 2,773,597
Other (3).. 21,386 44,371 (107.5)% (40,348) (3,891) 18,756 (23,638) (5,883) (55,004)

$31,778,885 23,025,467 27.5 % $ 6,789,175 (28,548) 29,409 (17,235) 4,516 6,777,317
(1) Net margins on sales of homes include selling, general and administrative expenses.
(2) For the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022, gross margins (loss) on sales of land included $19.9 million and $47.9 million of

deposit write-offs as we walked away from 10,600 and 42,000 controlled homesites, respectively.
(3) Negative gross and net margins were dued to period costs and/or impairments in Urban divisions that impact costs of homes sold

without sufficient sales of homes revenue to offsff et those costs.

Summary of Homebuildindd g Datatt

Deliveries:
For the Years Ended November 30,

Homes Dollar Value (In thousands) Average Sales Price
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

East ........................................................................ 22,614 21,214 $ 9,719,265 9,268,940 $430,000 437,000
Central.................................................................... 14,461 13,152 6,127,748 5,830,587 424,000 443,000
Texas...................................................................... 16,591 12,993 4,692,906 4,212,223 283,000 324,000
West ....................................................................... 19,388 19,015 12,052,131 12,513,277 622,000 658,000
Other ...................................................................... 33 25 23,236 21,386 704,000 855,000

Total................................................................ 73,087 66,399 $32,615,286 31,846,413 $446,000 480,000

Of the total homes delivered listed abovea , 340 homes with a dollar value of $156.2 million and an average sales price of $459,000
represent home deliveries froff m unconsolidated entities forff the year ended November 30, 2023, compared to 174 home deliveries with a
dollar value of $67.5 million and an average sales price of $388,000 for the year ended November 30, 2022.
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Sales Incentives (1):

Average Sales Incentives Per
Home Delivered

Sales Incentives
as a % of Revenues

Years Ended November 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022

East........................................................................................................ $ 34,500 12,600 7.4 % 2.8 %
Central................................................................................................... 33,700 11,900 7.4 % 2.6 %
Texas ..................................................................................................... 56,000 23,000 16.5 % 6.6 %
West ...................................................................................................... 47,900 22,200 7.2 % 3.3 %
Other ..................................................................................................... 91,500 90,000 11.5 % 9.5 %

Total............................................................................................... $ 42,900 17,300 8.8 % 3.5 %
(1) Sales incentives relate to home deliveries durdd ing the period, excluding deliveries by unconsolidated entities.

New Orders (2):
At November 30, For the Years Ended November 30,
Active Communities Homes Dollar Value (In thousands) Average Sales Price
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

East .................................. 337 316 20,884 21,649 $ 8,760,877 9,516,178 $420,000 440,000
Central ............................. 291 313 13,204 12,020 5,494,319 5,351,534 416,000 445,000
Texas ............................... 246 235 15,789 11,424 4,331,763 3,596,037 274,000 315,000
West................................. 384 341 19,199 15,990 11,897,996 10,604,593 620,000 663,000
Other................................ 2 3 35 22 23,600 18,608 674,000 846,000

Total ......................... 1,260 1,208 69,111 61,105 $30,508,555 29,086,950 $441,000 476,000

Of the total new orders listed abovea , 321 homes with a dollar value of $152.9 million and an average sales price of $476,000
represent new orders from unconsolidated entities forff the year ended November 30, 2023, compared to 261 new orders with a dollar value
of $116.7 million and an average sales price of $447,000 for the year ended November 30, 2022.

(2) New orders represent the number of new sales contracts executed with homebuyers, net of cancellations, durdd ing the years ended
November 30, 2023 and 2022.

We experienced cancellation rates in our Homebuilding segments and Homebuilding other as follows:

Years Ended November 30,
2023 2022

East......................................................................................................................................................... 17 % 11 %
Central .................................................................................................................................................... 15 % 12 %
Texas ...................................................................................................................................................... 20 % 27 %
West ....................................................................................................................................................... 13 % 21 %
Other....................................................................................................................................................... 8 % 49 %

Total ................................................................................................................................................ 16 % 17 %

Backlog:
At November 30,

Homes Dollar Value (In thousands) Average Sales Price
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

East ........................................................................ 6,975 8,706 $ 2,861,937 3,820,714 $410,000 439,000
Central.................................................................... 2,768 4,025 1,222,002 1,855,430 441,000 461,000
Texas...................................................................... 1,895 2,697 475,941 837,083 251,000 310,000
West ....................................................................... 3,251 3,440 2,072,342 2,226,477 637,000 647,000
Other ...................................................................... 3 1 1,528 1,164 509,000 1,164,000

Total................................................................ 14,892 18,869 $ 6,633,750 8,740,868 $445,000 463,000

Of the total homes in backlog listed abovea , 147 homes with a backlog dollar value of $74.5 million and an average sales price of
$507,000 represent the backlog froff m unconsolidated entities at November 30, 2023, compared to 166 homes with a backlog dollar value of
$77.8 million and an average sales price of $469,000 at November 30, 2022.
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Backlog represents the number of homes under sales contracts. Homes are sold using sales contracts, which are
generally accompanied by sales deposits. In some instances, purchasers are permitted to cancel sales if they faiff l to qualify fff orff
financing or under certain other circumstances. We do not recognize revenue on homes under sales contracts until the sales
are closed and title passes to the new homeowners.

HHomebuildindd gg East: Revenues froff hm home s lales iincreas ded iin 2023 compar ded to 2022 p, rimarily due to an increase in
the number of home deliveries in all the states in the segment except in New Jersey. This was partially offsff et by a decrease in
the average sales price of homes delivered in all the states in the segment except in New Jersey and Pennsylvania. The
increase in the number of home deliveries in Alabaa ma, Florida, Pennsylvania and South Carolina was primarily due to an
increase in the number of active communities. The decrease in the number of home deliveries in New Jersey was primarily
due to a decrease in the number of deliveries per active community due to the timing of opening and closing of communities.
hTh ie increas ie in thhe aver gage s lales priice of hf homes ddelilivered id in New Jers yey andd Pennsylylva inia was priima irilyly ddue to pr doduct miix.
The decrease in the average sales price of homes delivered in Alabaa ma, Florida and South Carolina was primarily due to
pricing to market and product mix. For the year ended November 30, 2023, an increase in revenues per square foot was
partially offsff et by an increase in costs per square foot primarily due to higher material and labora costs. In addition, land costs
increased year over year. Thus gross margin percentage of home deliveries decreased year over year.

HHomebuildindd gg CenCC tral:l Revenues froff hm home s lales iincreas ded iin 2023 compar ded to 2022 p, primarily due to an
increase in the number of home deliveries in all the states in the segment except in Georgia and Virginia. This was par itiallllyy
offsff et byby da decreas ie in thhe aver gage s lales priice of hf homes ddelilivered id in allll hthe state is in thhe seggment excep it in Illillin iois, Ma yrylla dnd
andd Tennessee. hTh ie increas ie in thhe numbber of hf hom de d leliiveriie is in Illillin iois, Indidiana, Ma yrylla dnd, iMinnesota, Tennessee a dnd
NNorthh Car loliina was priimarilily dy dued to an iincreas ie in thhe numbber of df d leliiveriies per actiive commu ini yty. Thhe ddecreas ie in thhe
numbber of hf hom de d leliiveriie is in o hther states iin hthe s gegment was p irima irilyly ddue to da decreas ie in thhe numbber of df d leliiveriies per
actiive commu ini yty ddue to hthe ti iimingg of ope ini gng andd cllo isi gng of comm iuni ities. hTh de decreas ie in thhe aver gage s lales priice of hf homes
ddeliliver ded iin Georgigia, Indidiana, iMinnesota, Nor hth Carolilina andd Viirgigi inia was priima irilyly ddue to priiciingg to markket a dnd pr doduct
imix. Thhe iincreas ie in thhe aver gage s lales priice of hf homes ddeliliver ded iin lIllilin iois, Ma yrylla dnd andd Tennessee was priima irilyly ddue to
ppr doduct miix. For hthe yyear enddedd Nove bmber 30, 2023, a ddecrease iin revenues per square foot was par iti lallyly offsff et byby da decrease
iin costs per square foot. Overallll g, gross ma grgiins rem iained fd fllafff yt year ove yr year as lla dnd costs rem iained fd fllafff t whihille iinterest expense
ddecreas ded as a res lult of our focus on r deducd iing dg d bebt.

Homebuildindd g TexTT as: Revenues froff m home sales increased in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to an increase
in the number of home deliveries, which was partially offset by a decrease in the average sales price of homes delivered. The
increase in the number of home deliveries was primarily due to an increase in the number of active communities. The
decrease in the average sales price of homes delivered was primarily due to pricing to market. For the year ended November
30, 2023, a decrease in revenues per square foot was partially offsff et by a decrease in costs per square foot, which resulted in a
decrease in gross margin percentage of home deliveries. In addition, land costs increased year over year.

Homebuildindd g WesWW t: Revenues froff m home sales decreased in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to a decrease in
the average sales price of homes delivered in all the states in the segment which was partially offsff et by an increase in the
number of home deliveries in all the states in the segment except in Colorado, Nevada, Utah and Washington. The decrease
in the average sales price of homes delivered in all the states in the segment was primarily due to pricing to market and
product mix. The increase in the number of home deliveries in Arizona, Califorff nia, Idaho and Oregon was primarily due to an
increase in the number of active communities and deliveries per active community. The decrease in the number of home
deliveries in other states in the segment was primarily due to a decrease in the number of deliveries per active community due
to the timing of opening and closing of communities. For the year ended November 30, 2023, a decrease in revenues per
square foot and an increase in costs per square foot primarily due to higher materials and labor costs, resulted in a decrease in
gross margin percentage of home deliveries. In addition, land costs increased year over year.

Financial Services Segment

Our Financial Services reportabla e segment primarily provides mortgage finff ancing, title and closing services
primarily for buyers of our homes, as well as property and casualty insurance. The segment also originates and sells into
securitizations commercial mortgage loans through its LMF Commercial business. Our Financial Services segment sells
subsu tantially all of the residential loans it originates within a short period in the secondary mortgage market, the majoa rity of
which are sold on a servicing-released, non-recourse basis. Afteff r the loans are sold, we retain potential liabia lity for possible
claims by purchasers that we breached certain limited industry-rr standard representations and warranties in the loan sale
agreements.
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The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th selected financial and operational inforff mation related to the residential mortgage and
title activities of our Financial Services:

Years Ended November 30,
(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

Dollar value of mortgages originated.......................................................................................... $ 17,395,000 14,432,200
Number of mortgages originated................................................................................................. 47,000 37,700
Mortgage capture rate of Lennar homebuyers ............................................................................ 81% 72%
Number of title and closing service transactions......................................................................... 74,900 68,800

At November 30, 2023 and 2022, the carrying value of Financial Services' commercial mortgage-backed securities
("CMBS") was $140.7 million and $143.3 million, respectively. Details of these securities and related debt are within Note 2
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

LMF CMM omCC mercial

LMF Commercial originates and sells into securitizations first mortgage loans, which are secured by income producing
commercial properties. LMF Commercial originated commercial loans as follows:

Years Ended November 30,
(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

Originations .................................................................................................................................. $ 466,043 740,345
Sold ............................................................................................................................................... $ 430,707 715,933
Securitizations............................................................................................................................... 10 6

Multifamff ily Segment

We have been actively involved, primarily through unconsolidated entities, in the development, construcr tion and
property management of multifamff ily rental properties. Our Multifamff ily segment focff uses on developing a geographically
diversifieff d portfolff io of institutional quality multifamily rental properties in select U.S. markets.

Originally, our Multifamff ily segment focff used on building multifamily properties and selling them shortly afteff r they
were completed. However, more recently we have focused on creating and participating in fundsff that build multifamff ily
properties with the intention of retaining them afteff r they are completed.

The folff lowing tabla e provides inforff mation related to our investment in the Multifamff ily segment:
At November 30,

(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

Multifamff ily investments in unconsolidated entities............................................................ $ 599,852 648,126
Lennar's net investment in Multifamff ily............................................................................... 1,095,218 935,961
Number of operating properties/investments sold through joint ventures .......................... — 2
Lennar's share of gains on the sale of operating properties/investments............................. — 43,308

The Multifamff ily segment manages and has investments in Multifamily Venturt e Fund I (the "LMV I") and
Multifamff ily Venturt e Fund II LP (the "LMV II"), which are long-term multifamff ily development investment vehicles involved
in the development, construcr tion and ownership of class-A multifamff ily rental properties. Details of each as of and durd ing the
year ended November 30, 2023 are included below:

November 30, 2023
(In tII hott usands)s LMV I LMV II

Lennar's carrying value of investments................................................................................ $ 193,829 267,874
Equity commitments ............................................................................................................ 2,204,016 1,257,700
Equity commitments called.................................................................................................. 2,154,328 1,218,619
Lennar's equity commitments .............................................................................................. 504,016 381,000
Lennar's equity commitments called.................................................................................... 500,381 368,170
Lennar's remaining commitments (1) .................................................................................. 3,635 12,830
Distributions to Lennar durd ing the year ended November 30, 2023.................................... — —
(1) While there are remaining commitments with LMV I, there are no plans for additional capital calls.
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Our Multifamff ily segment had equity investments in unconsolidated entities. The breakout of the Multifamily
segment's equity investments in unconsolidated entities and the development activities by stage were as follows:

(Dollall rs in thousands)dd November 30, 2023

Under construcr tion/owned ...................................................................................................................... 16
Partially completed and leasing............................................................................................................... 8
Completed and operating......................................................................................................................... 58
Total unconsolidated joint ventures ........................................................................................................ 82
Total development costs ....................................................................................................................... $ 9,883,073

As of November 30, 2023, our Multifamily segment also had a pipeline of potential future projects, which were
under contract or had letters of intent, totaling appra oximately $6.2 billion in anticipated development costs across a number of
states that will be developed primarily by unconsolidated entities.

Lennar Other Segment

Our Lennar Other segment includes fundff investments we retained subsequent to our sale of the Rialto investment
and asset management platforff m as well as strategic investments in technology companies that are looking to improve the
homebuilding and financial services industries to better serve homebuyers and homeowners and increase efficiencies. As of
November 30, 2023 and 2022, our balance sheet had $657.9 million and $788.5 million, respectively, of assets in the Lennar
Other segment, which included investments in unconsolidated entities of $276.2 million and $316.5 million, respectively. We
have investments in Blend Labsa , Inc. ("Blend Labsa "), Hippo Holdings, Inc. ("Hippo"), Opendoor Technologies, Inc.
("Opendoor"), SmartRent, Inc. ("SmartRent"), Sonder Holdings, Inc. ("Sonder") and Sunnova Energy International, Inc.
("Sunnova"), which are held at market and will thereforff e change depending on the faiff r value of our shareholdings in those
entities on the last day of each quarter. All the investments are accounted for as investments in equity securities which are
held at fair value and the changes in faiff r values are recognized through earnings. The following is a detail of Lennar Other
unrealized losses froff m mark-to-market adjustments on our technology investments:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Blend Labs (BLND) .............................................................................................................. $ (130) (25,630)
Hippo (HIPO)........................................................................................................................ (19,210) (222,447)
Opendoor (OPEN)................................................................................................................. 21,762 (265,276)
SmartRent (SMRT) ............................................................................................................... 5,914 (78,177)
Sonder (SOND) ..................................................................................................................... (700) (2,339)
Sunnova (NOVA).................................................................................................................. (57,798) (61,225)
Lennar Other unrealized losses froff m technology investments ....................................... $ (50,162) (655,094)

At November 30, 2023 and 2022, Lennar Other owned commercial mortgage-backed securities ("CMBS") with
carrying values of $38.0 million and $35.5 million, respectively. These securities were purchased at discount rates ranging
from 33% to 55% with coupon rates ranging from 3.0% to 3.4%, stated and assumed finff al distribution dates between
September 2025 and March 2026, and stated maturt ity dates between September 2058 and March 2059. We review changes in
estimated cash floff ws periodically to determine if an other-than-temporary irr mpairment has occurred on our CMBS. Based on
management’s assessment, no impairment charges were recorded durd ing the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022. We
classify these securities as held-for-sale at November 30, 2023 and 2022.

Financial Condition and Capital Resources

At November 30, 2023, we had cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash related to our homebuilding, financial
services, multifamff ily and other operations of $6.6 billion, compared to $4.8 billion at November 30, 2022.

We finance all of our activities including homebuilding, financial services, multifamff ily, other and general operating
needs primarily with cash generated from our operations, debt issuances and investor funds as well as cash borrowed under
our warehouse lines of credit and our unsecured revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility"). At November 30, 2023, we
had $6.3 billion of Homebuilding cash and cash equivalents and no outstanding borrowings under our $2.6 billion revolving
credit facility, thereby approximately $8.9 billion of availabla e capacity.
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Operating Cash Flow Activities

During 2023 and 2022, cash provided by operating activities totaled $5.2 billion and $3.3 billion, respectively.
During 2023, cash provided by operating activities was positively impacted by our net earnings and $2.3 billion decrease in
inventories dued to our strategy of controlling more homesites and acquiring finished homesites, thus reducing the amount of
spend related to inventory.rr This was partially offsff et by a decrease in accounts payable and other liabia lities of $626 million,
primarily due to the payment of income taxes, an increase in receivabla es of $329 million, an increase in deposits and pre-
acquisition costs on real estate of $296 million as we increased the percentage of controlled homesites, and an increase in
loans held-for-sale of $367 million primarily related to the sale of loans originated by our Financial Services segment.

During 2022, cash provided by operating activities was positively impacted by our net earnings, excluding Lennar
Other unrealized mark-to-market losses on our publicly traded technology investments and other realized loss totaling $672
million and an increase in accounts payable and other liabia lities of $701 million. This was partially offsff et by a $1.7 billion
increase in inventories dued to strategic land purchases, land development and construcrr tion costs, $672 million increase in
deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate as we increased the percentage of controlled homesites, and an increase in
receivabla es of $422 million.

Investing Cash Flow Activities

During 2023 and 2022, cash used in investing activities totaled $177 million and $128 million, respectively. During
2023, our cash used in investing activities was primarily dued to cash contributions of $201 million to unconsolidated entities,
which primarily included (1) $94 million to Homebuilding unconsolidated entities, (2) $81 million to Lennar Other
unconsolidated entities, and (3) $27 million to Multifamff ily unconsolidated entities. This was partially offsff et by distributions
of capital froff m unconsolidated entities of $100 million, which primarily included (1) $70 million froff m Homebuilding
unconsolidated entities, and (2) $29 million froff m our Lennar Other unconsolidated entities.

During 2022, our cash used in investing activities was primarily dued to cash contributions of $447 million to
unconsolidated entities, which primarily included (1) $307 million to Homebuilding unconsolidated entities, (2) $111 million
to Lennar Other unconsolidated entities, and (3) $30 million to Multifamff ily unconsolidated entities. In addition, we had $94
million of purchases of investment securities related to strategic technology investments in the Lennar Other segment. This
was partially offsff et by distributions of capital froff m unconsolidated entities of $398 million, which primarily included (1) $79
million froff m Homebuilding unconsolidated entities, (2) $252 million froff m Multifamily unconsolidated entities, and (3) $67
million froff m our Lennar Other unconsolidated entities.

Financing Cash Flow Activities

During 2023 and 2022, our cash used in financing activities totaled $3.2 billion and $1.3 billion, respectively.
During 2023, our cash used in finff ancing activities was primarily dued to the (1) redemption of $378 million aggregate
principal amount of our 4.875% senior notes due December 2023, (2) redemption of $425 million aggregate principal amount
of our 5.875% senior notes due November 2024, (3) $296 million combined of partial repurchase of our 4.500% senior notes
due 2024 and 4.75% senior notes due 2027, (4) $105 million principal payments on notes payabla e and other borrowings, (5)
repurchase of our common stock forff $1.2 billion, which included $1.1 billion of repurchases of our stock under our
repurchase program and $73 million of repurchases related to our equity compensation plan, (6) $431 million of dividend
payments, and (7) $381 million of net payments from liabilities related to consolidated inventory nrr ot owned dued to land sales
to land banks, net of takedowns. These were partially offsff et by (1) $29 million of net borrowings under our Financial
Services warehouse facff ilities, and (2) receipts related to noncontrolling interests of $21 million.

During 2022, our cash used in financing activities was primarily dued to (1) early redemption of $575 million
aggregate principal amount of our 4.75% senior notes due November 2022, (2) $48 million principal payment on notes
payabla e and other borrowings, (3) repurchase of our common stock for $1.0 billion, which included $968 million of
repurchase of our stock under our repurchase program and $72 million of repurchases related to our equity compensation
plan, and (4) $438 million of dividend payments. These were partially offsff et by (1) $485 million of net proceeds froff m
liabia lities related to consolidated inventory nrr ot owned dued to land sales to land banks, net of takedowns, (2) $409 million of
net borrowings under our Financial Services warehouse faciff lities, and (3) receipts related to noncontrolling interests of $42
million.
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Debt to total capital ratios are financial measures commonly used in the homebuilding industry arr nd are presented to
assist in understanding the leverage of our Homebuilding operations. Homebuilding debt to total capital and net
Homebuilding debt to total capital were calculated as folff lows:

November 30,
(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

Homebuilding debt .............................................................................................................. $ 2,816,482 4,047,294
Stockholders’ equity............................................................................................................ 26,580,664 24,100,500

Total capital.................................................................................................................. $ 29,397,146 28,147,794
Homebuilding debt to total capital ...................................................................................... 9.6% 14.4%
Homebuilding debt .............................................................................................................. $ 2,816,482 4,047,294
Less: Homebuilding cash and cash equivalents .................................................................. 6,273,724 4,616,124

Net Homebuilding debt ................................................................................................ $ (3,457,242) (568,830)
Net Homebuilding debt to total capital (1).......................................................................... (15.0)% (2.4)%

(1) Net homebuilding debt to total capital is a non-GAAP financial measure definff ed as net homebuilding debt (homebuilding debt less
homebuilding cash and cash equivalents) divided by total capital (net homebuilding debt plus stockholders' equity). Our management
believes the ratio of net homebuilding debt to total capital is a relevant and a usefulff financial measure to investors in understanding the
leverage employed in our homebuilding operations. However, because net homebuilding debt to total capital is not calculated in
accordance with GAAP, this finff ancial measure should not be considered in isolation or as an alternative to finff ancial measures
prescribed by GAAP. Rather, this non-GAAP financial measure should be used to supplement our GAAP results.

At November 30, 2023, Homebuilding debt to total capital was lower compared to November 30, 2022, primarily as
a result of an increase in stockholders' equity due to net earnings and a decrease in homebuilding debt dued to debt paydowns
and debt repurchases, partially offsff et by share repurchases.

We are continually exploring various types of transactions to manage our leverage and liquidity positions, take
advantage of market opportunities and increase our revenues and earnings. These transactions may include the issuance of
additional indebtedness, the repurchase of our outstanding indebtedness, the repurchase of our common stock, the acquisition
of homebuilders and other companies, the purchase or sale of assets or lines of business, the issuance of common stock or
securities convertible into shares of common stock, and/or the pursuit of other finff ancing alternatives. In connection with
some of our non-homebuilding businesses, we are also considering other types of transactions such as sales, restructurt ings,
joint ventures, spin-offs or initial public offeff rings as we continue to move back towards being a pure play homebuilding
company. We have announced an intention to spin off, subju ect to market conditions, our multifamff ily and single-family rental
asset management businesses and some of our investment assets.

We planned to spin off our Multifamff ily and single famff ily home forff rent asset management businesses, together with
some investment assets, by transferring them to a newly formed subsu idiary, Quarterra Group, Inc ("Quarterra"), and
distributing the stock of that subsidiary trr o our stockholders. That would have made us more of a pure play homebuilding
company. At this time, we have deferff red this transaction dued to market conditions.

Our Homebuilding senior notes and other debts payabla e are summarized within Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The maximum availabla e borrowings on our Credit Facility were as folff lows:

(In tII hott usands)s November 30, 2023
Commitments - maturing in April 2024......................................................................................................................... $ 350,000
Commitments - maturing in May 2027.......................................................................................................................... 2,225,000
Total commitments................................................................................................................................................... $ 2,575,000

Accordion featff urt e........................................................................................................................................................... 425,000
Total maximum borrowings capacity....................................................................................................................... $ 3,000,000

The proceeds availabla e under the Credit Facility, which are subju ect to specified conditions for borrowing, may be
used for working capia tal and general corporr ate purposrr es. The credit agreement also provides that up tu o $500 million in
commitments may be used for letters of credit. As of both November 30, 2023 and 2022, we had no outstanding borrowings
under the Credit Facility. In addition to the Credit Facility, we have other letter of credit faciff lities with different financial
institutions.
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We ofteff n post letters of credit instead of making cash deposits for option contracts and for similar purposr es. We
ofteff n are required to post surety bonds to guarantee completion of projects, particularly when municipal authorities are
involved. Our outstanding letters of credit and surety bonds are described below:

November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Performance letters of credit................................................................................................................ $ 1,404,541 1,259,033
Financial letters of credit ..................................................................................................................... 417,976 503,659
Surety bonds ........................................................................................................................................ 4,508,428 4,136,715
Anticipated future costs primarily for site improvements related to performance surety bonds......... 2,499,680 2,273,694

Our Homebuilding average debt outstanding and the average rates of interest were as follows:
November 30,

(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

Homebuilding average debt outstanding ............................................................................................ $ 3,688,363 4,705,892
Average interest rate ............................................................................................................................ 4.9% 4.7%
Interest incurred ................................................................................................................................... $ 187,640 230,839

Under the Credit Facility agreement (the "Credit Agreement"), we are required to maintain a minimum consolidated
tangible net worth, a maximum leverage ratio and either a liquidity or an interest coverage ratio. These ratios are calculated
per the Credit Facility agreement, which involves adjustments to GAAP financial measures. As of the end of each fiscal
quarter, we are required to maintain minimum consolidated tangible net worth of approximately $10.6 billion plus 50% of the
cumulative consolidated net income forff each completed fisff cal quarter subsu equent to Februar ry 28, 2022, if positive, plus 50%
of the net cash proceeds froff m any equity offeff rings from and after Februar ry 28, 2022, minus the amount paid afteff r February
28, 2022 to repurchase common stock (subject to a limit on deducd tions in any fourff fiscal quarter period of 12.5% of
consolidated tangible net worth) and minus, in the case of a spin-off tff ransaction, the consolidated net worth of assets that are
spun off (ff subju ect to a limit of $1.0 billion). As of the end of each fiscal quarter, we are required to maintain a leverage ratio
that shall not exceed 65% and may be reduced by 2.5% per quarter if our interest coverage ratio is less than 2.25:1.00 for two
consecutive fisff cal calendar quarters. The leverage ratio will have a floff or of 60%. If our interest coverage ratio subsu equently
exceeds 2.25:1.00 for two consecutive fisff cal calendar quarters, the leverage ratio we will be required to maintain will be
increased by 2.5% per quarter to a maximum of 65%. As of the end of each fiscal quarter, we are also required to maintain
either (1) liquidity in an amount equal to or greater than 1.00x consolidated interest incurred forff the last twelve months then
ended or (2) an interest coverage ratio equal to or greater than 1.50:1.00 for the last twelve months then ended. We believe
that we were in compliance with our debt covenants at November 30, 2023.

The folff lowing summarizes our required debt covenants and our actuat l levels or ratios with respect to those
covenants as calculated per the Credit Agreement as of November 30, 2023:

(Dollall rs in thousands)dd Covenant Level
Level Achieved as of
November 30, 2023

Minimum net worth test.................................................................................................. $ 13,499,906 20,145,031
Maximum leverage ratio................................................................................................. 65.0% (13.0)%
Liquidity test (1) ............................................................................................................. 1.00 207.15
(1) We are only required to maintain either (1) liquidity in an amount equal to or greater than 1.00x consolidated interest incurred forff the

last twelve months then ended or (2) an interest coverage ratio of equal to or greater than 1.50:1.00 for the last twelve months then
ended. Although we are in compliance with our debt covenants forff both calculations, we have only disclosed our liquidity test.
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At November 30, 2023, the Financial Services segment had warehouse faciff lities, all of which were 364-day
repurchase faciff lities and were used to fund residential mortgages or commercial mortgages for LMF Commercial as folff lows:

Maximum Aggregate Commitment

(In tII hott usands)s Committed Amount Uncommitted Amount Total

Residential faciff lities maturt ing:
December 2023 (1) ...................................................................................... $ 500,000 — 500,000
April 2024.................................................................................................... 250,000 250,000 500,000
May 2024 (2) ............................................................................................... 1,500,000 — 1,500,000
June 2024..................................................................................................... 100,000 400,000 500,000
September 2024 ........................................................................................... 100,000 100,000 200,000
Total residential facff ilities ............................................................................ $ 2,450,000 750,000 3,200,000
LMF commercial facff ilities maturt ing:
November 2023 (1)...................................................................................... 100,000 — 100,000
December 2023 (3) ...................................................................................... 400,000 — 400,000
Total LMF commercial faciff lities................................................................. $ 500,000 — 500,000
Total .......................................................................................................... $ 3,700,000

(1) Subsequent to November 30, 2023, the maturity date of December 2023 was extended to March 2024 and the maturity date of
November 2023 was extended to January 2024.

(2) In December 2023, the maximum aggregate commitment was reduced to $600 million until maturity in May 2024.
(3) Consists of two commercial faciff lities each with maximum aggregate commitment amounts of $200 million. Subsu equent to

November 30, 2023, one of the faciff lity's maturity date was extended to December 2024.

The Financial Services segment uses residential mortgage loan warehouse faciff lities to finff ance its residential lending
activities until the mortgage loans are sold to investors and the proceeds are collected. The facilities are non-recourse to us
and are expected to be renewed or replaced with other facff ilities when they mature. The LMF Commercial faciff lities finance
LMF Commercial loan originations and securitization activities and were secured by up tu o 80% interests in the originated
commercial loans financed.

Borrowings and collateral under the facilities were as follows:

November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Borrowings under the residential faciff lities ...................................................................................... $ 2,020,187 1,877,411
Collateral under the residential faciff lities ......................................................................................... 2,097,020 1,950,155
Borrowings under the LMF Commercial faciff lities.......................................................................... 12,525 124,399

If the facff ilities are not renewed or replaced, the borrowings under the lines of credit will be repaid by selling the
mortgage loans held-for-sale to investors and by collecting receivables on loans sold but not yet paid forff . Without the
facilities, the Financial Services segment would have to use cash froff m operations and other funding sources to finance its
lending activities.

Changes in Capital Structure

In March 2022, our Board of Directors appra oved an authorization forff us to repurchase up tu o the lesser of $2.0 billion
in value, or 30 million in shares, of our outstanding Class A or Class B common stock. The repurchase authorization has no
expiration date. This authorization was in addition to what was remaining of our October 2021 stock repurchase program.
Subsu equent to November 30, 2023, our Board of Directors authorized an increase to our stock repurchase program to enable
us to repurchase up tu o an additional $5 billion in value of our outstanding Class A or Class B common stock. Repurchases are
authorized to be made in open-market or private transactions. The repurchase authorization has no expiration date.
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The folff lowing tabla e provides inforff mation abouta our repurchases of Class A and Class B common stock:
Years Ended November 30,

2023 2022
(Dollall rs in thousands,dd except price per share)e Class A Class B Class A Class B

Shares repurchased ................................................................................... 7,499,660 2,500,340 9,628,203 1,339,797
Total purchase price ................................................................................. $ 851,502 $ 248,835 $ 868,788 $ 98,613
Average price per share ............................................................................ $ 113.54 $ 99.52 $ 90.23 $ 73.60

During the year ended November 30, 2023, treasury stock increased by 11.3 million shares primarily due to our
repurchase of 10.0 million shares of Class A and Class B common stock through our stock repurchase program. During the
year ended November 30, 2022, treasury srr tock decreased dued to our retirement of 46.7 million and 2.8 million treasury srr hares
of Class A and Class B common stock, respectively, as authorized by our Board of Directors. The retirement of Class A and
Class B common stock in treasury rrr esulted in a reclass between treasury srr hares and additional paid-in capital within
stockholders' equity. During the year ended November 30, 2022, this decrease in treasury srr hares was partially offseff t by our
repurchase of 9.6 million and 1.3 million shares of Class A and Class B common stock, respectively, through our stock
repurchase program.

During both the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022, our Class A and Class B common stockholders received
an aggregate per share annual dividend of $1.50. On January 9, 2024, our Board of Directors increased our annual dividend to
$2.00 per share from $1.50 per share, resulting in a quarterly cash dividend of $0.50 per share on both our Class A and Class
B common stock. The dividend is payabla e on February 7rr , 2024 to holders of record at the close of business on January 24,
2024.

Based on our current financial condition and credit relationships, we believe that our operations and borrowing
resources will provide for our current and long-term capia tal requirements at our anticipated levels of activity.

Supplemental Financial Inforff mation

Currently, certain of our 100% owned subsidiaries, which are primarily our homebuilding subsidiaries, are
guaranteeing all our senior notes. The guarantees are full and unconditional.

The indenturt es governing our senior notes require that, if any of our 100% owned subsidiaries, other than our
finance company subsu idiaries and foreign subsidiaries, directly or indirectly guarantee at least $75 million principal amount
of debt of Lennar Corporation (other than senior notes), those subsidiaries must also guarantee Lennar Corporrr ation’s
obligations with regard to its senior notes. Included in the following tables as part of “Obligors” together with Lennar
Corporation are subsu idiary entities that are not finance company subsu idiaries or foreign subsidiaries and were guaranteeing
the senior notes because at November 30, 2023 they were guaranteeing Lennar Corporrr ation's letter of credit facff ilities and its
Credit Facility, disclosed in Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The guarantees are fulff l, unconditional
and joint and several and the guarantor subsu idiaries are 100% directly or indirectly owned by Lennar Corporr ation. A
subsu idiary's guarantee of Lennar senior notes will be suspended at any time when it is not directly or indirectly guaranteeing
at least $75 million principal amount of debt of Lennar Corporr ration (other than senior notes), and a subsu idiary will be
released from its guarantee and any other obligations it may have regarding the senior notes if all or substantially all its
assets, or all of its capital stock, are sold or otherwise disposed. If the proposed spin-off of our multifamff ily and single-family
rental asset management businesses or any other of our businesses takes place, the subsidiaries involved in those businesses
will no longer guarantee our senior notes.

Supplu emental inforff mation forff the Obligors, which excludes non-guarantor subsu idiaries and intercompany
transactions, at November 30, 2023 is included in the following tabla es. Intercompany balances and transactions within the
Obligors have been eliminated and amounts attributable to the Obligor’s investment in consolidated subsu idiaries that have not
issued or guaranteed the senior notes have been excluded. Amounts dued from and transactions with non-guarantor
subsu idiaries and related parties are separately disclosed:

As of November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Due froff m non-guarantor subsu idiaries ................................................................ $ 22,020,227 17,959,091
Equity method investments ............................................................................... 986,508 1,090,831
Total assets ........................................................................................................ 45,830,841 40,929,435
Total liabia lities................................................................................................... 9,181,456 10,455,359
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(In tII hott usands)s Year Ended November 30, 2023

Total revenues................................................................................................................................. $ 32,244,464
Operating earnings .......................................................................................................................... 5,389,794
Earnings before income taxes ......................................................................................................... 4,825,548
Net earnings attributable to Lennar................................................................................................. 3,669,944

Off-Bff alance Sheet Arrangements

Homebuilding - Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

We regularly monitor the results of our Homebuilding, Multifamff ily, and Lennar Other unconsolidated joint ventures
and any trends that may affect their futff urt e liquidity or results of operations. We also monitor the performance of
Homebuilding joint venturt es in which we have investments on a regular basis to assess compliance with debt covenants. For
those joint venturt es not in compliance with their debt covenants, we evaluate and assess possible impairment of our
investments. We believe that subsu tantially all of the joint ventures were in compliance with their debt covenants at
November 30, 2023, except forff one joint venture that had an other-than-temporary irr mpairment which is included in Note 1 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At November 30, 2023, we had equity investments in 48 active Homebuilding and land unconsolidated entities (of
which 5 had recourse debt, 15 had non-recourse debt and 28 had no debt), compared to 48 active Homebuilding and land
unconsolidated entities at November 30, 2022. Historically, we have invested in unconsolidated entities that acquired and
developed land (1) for our homebuilding operations or for sale to third parties or (2) for the construcr tion of homes for sale to
third-party homebuyers. Through these entities, we have primarily sought to reduce and share our risk by limiting the amount
of our capital invested in land, while obtaining access to potential future homesites and allowing us to participate in strategic
venturt es. The use of these entities also, in some instances, has enabla ed us to acquire land to which we could not otherwise
obtain access, or could not obtain access on as favff orable terms, without the participation of a strategic partner. Participants in
these joint venturt es have been land owners/developers, other homebuilders and financial or strategic partners. Joint venturt es
with land owners/developers have given us access to homesites owned or controlled by our partners. Joint venturt es with other
homebuilders have provided us with the abia lity to bid jointly with our partners for large land parcels. Joint ventures with
financial partners have allowed us to combine our homebuilding expertise with access to our partners’ capital. Joint ventures
with strategic partners have allowed us to combine our homebuilding expertise with the specific expertise (e.g. commercial or
infill experience) of our partner. Each joint venture is governed by an executive committee consisting of members from the
partners. Details regarding these investments, balances and debt are included in Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the principal maturities of our Homebuilding unconsolidated entities ("JVs") debt
as per current debt arrangements as of November 30, 2023. It does not represent estimates of future cash payments that will
be made to reduce debt balances. Many JV loans have extension options in the loan agreements that would allow the loans to
be extended into futff urt e years.

Principal Maturities of Homebuilding Unconsolidated JVs Debt by Period

(In tII hott usands)s Total JV Debt 2024 2025 2026 Thereafter Other

Debt without recourse to Lennar ........................ $ 1,376,750 439,270 777,978 127,592 31,910 —
Land seller and other debt without recourse to
Lennar................................................................. 7,083 — — — 7,083 —
Maximum recourse debt exposure to Lennar ..... 42,138 — — 10,228 31,910 —
Debt issuance costs............................................. (13,013) — — — — (13,013)

Total ............................................................ $ 1,412,958 439,270 777,978 137,820 70,903 (13,013)

Multifamily - Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

At November 30, 2023, Multifamily had equity investments in 22 active unconsolidated entities that are engaged in
multifamily residential developments (of which 20 had non-recourse debt and 2 had no debt), and 23 active unconsolidated
entities at November 30, 2022. We invest in unconsolidated entities that acquire and develop land to construcr t multifamily
rental properties. Through these entities, we are focff using on developing a geographically diversifieff d portfolff io of institutional
quality multifamff ily rental properties in select U.S. markets. Participants in these joint venturt es have been financial partners.
Joint ventures with finff ancial partners have allowed us to combine our development and construcrr tion expertise with access to
our partners’ capital. Each joint venture is governed by an operating agreement that provides significant substantive
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participating voting rights on major decisions to our partners.

The Multifamff ily segment manages and has investments in LMV I, LMV II and Canada Pension Plan Investments
Fund, which are long-term multifamily development investment vehicles involved in the development, construcrr tion and
ownership of class-A multifamff ily rental properties. Details of each as of and durd ing the year ended November 30, 2023 are
included in Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

We regularly monitor the results of our Multifamily unconsolidated joint ventures and any trends that may affect
their futff urt e liquidity or results of operations. We also monitor the performance of Multifamff ily joint ventures in which we
have investments on a regular basis to assess compliance with debt covenants. For those joint venturt es not in compliance with
the debt covenants, we evaluate and assess possible impairment of our investment. We believe all of the joint ventures were
in compliance with their debt covenants at November 30, 2023.

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the principal maturities of our Multifamff ily unconsolidated entities debt as per
current debt arrangements as of November 30, 2023. It does not represent estimates of future cash payments that will be made
to reduce debt balances.

Principal Maturities of Multifamily Unconsolidated JVs Debt by Period

(In tII hott usands)s Total JV Debt 2024 2025 2026 Thereafter Other

Debt without recourse to Lennar ................... $ 4,909,744 2,052,566 1,409,911 882,136 565,131 —
Debt issuance costs........................................ (19,477) — — — — (19,477)

Total ....................................................... $ 4,890,267 2,052,566 1,409,911 882,136 565,131 (19,477)

Lennar Other - Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

As part of the sale of the Rialto investment and asset management platforff m, we retained the right to receive a portion
of payments with regard to carried interests if certain funds meet specified performance thresholds. We periodically receive
advance distributions related to the carried interests in order to cover income tax obligations resulting froff m allocations of
taxabla e income to the carried interests. These distributions are not subju ect to clawbacks but reduce futff urt e carried interest
payments to which we become entitled froff m the applicable funds and were recorded as equity in earnings (loss) in the
consolidated statement of operations. Our investment in the Rialto funds totaled $148.7 million and $185.1 million as of
November 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, we had strategic technology investments in unconsolidated entities of $127.5
million and $131.5 million respectively, accounted for under the equity method of accounting.

Option Contracts

We ofteff n obtain access to land through option contracts, which generally enable us to control portions of properties
owned by third parties (including land banks) and unconsolidated entities until we have determined whether to exercise the
options. Since fiscal year 2020, we have been increasing the percentage of our total homesites that we control through options
rather than own.

As part of our focus on strategic relationships to further enhance our land lighter strategy, at the end of fiscal year
2020 we entered into an arrangement with various land bank investor groups. Under the arrangement, in most instances when
we want to acquire a property forff use in our for-sale single-family home business, we will offeff r the investor group the
opportunity to acquire the property and give us an option to purchase all or a portion of it back in the futff urt e, if it is mutually
beneficial to both parties. To the extent the investor group does not elect to purchase properties we identify,ff we can utilize
our other investor relationships to have other investor groups purchase the land or we can purchase it directly. The
arrangement with the investor group, together with existing and other strategic partnerships we are discussing, are significant
steps in our strategy to migrate to a higher percentage of our homesites which we control but do not own, which we expect
will result in greater cash flow and higher returt ns on assets and equity.
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The table below indicates the number of homesites to which we had access through option contracts with third
parties or unconsolidated JVs (i.e., controlled homesites) and homesites owned at November 30, 2023 and 2022:

November 30, 2023 Controlled Homesites
Owned
Homesites

Total
Homesites

Years of Supply
Owned (1)

East........................................................................ 98,400 29,622 128,022
Central ................................................................... 52,254 23,083 75,337
Texas ..................................................................... 90,961 21,790 112,751
West ...................................................................... 62,674 23,429 86,103
Other...................................................................... 5,411 1,891 7,302

Total homesites .............................................. 309,700 99,815 409,515 1.4
% of total homesites....................................... 76 % 24 %

November 30, 2022 Controlled Homesites
Owned
Homesites

Total
Homesites

Years of Supply
Owned (1)

East........................................................................ 92,710 37,792 130,502
Central ................................................................... 41,725 28,263 69,988
Texas ..................................................................... 79,775 30,729 110,504
West ...................................................................... 61,441 29,777 91,218
Other...................................................................... 5,758 1,891 7,649

Total homesites .............................................. 281,409 128,452 409,861 1.9
% of total homesites....................................... 69 % 31 %

(1) Based on trailing twelve months of home deliveries.

Details on option contracts and related consolidated inventory nrr ot owned and exposure are included in Note 1 and
Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes certain of our contractuat l obligations at November 30, 2023:
Payments Due by Period

(In tII hott usands)s Total
Less than
1 year

1 to 3
years

3 to 5
years

More than
5 years

Homebuilding - senior notes and other debts payabla e (1) .. $ 2,815,585 483,415 1,129,820 1,168,995 33,355
Financial Services - notes and other debts payabla e ............ 2,163,805 2,032,712 — — 131,093
Multifamff ily - note payable ................................................. 3,741 3,741 — — —
Interest commitments under interest bearing debt (2) ........ 365,772 131,477 171,110 59,558 3,627
Operating lease obligations ................................................ 173,889 33,895 53,955 37,084 48,955
Other contractuat l obligations (3) ........................................ 82,603 15,155 4,005 13,324 50,119
Total contractuat l obligations .............................................. $ 5,605,395 2,700,395 1,358,890 1,278,961 267,149
(1) The amounts presented in the table above exclude debt issuance costs and any discounts/pr/ emiums and purchase accounting

adjud stments.
(2) Interest commitments on variabla e interest-bearing debt are determined based on the interest rate as of November 30, 2023.
(3) Amounts include $12.8 million of remaining equity investment commitments to LMV II, forff future expenditures related to the

construcrr tion and development of the projects and $69.8 million of remaining equity investment commitment to the Upward America
Venturt e.

We are subju ect to the usual obligations associated with entering into contracts (including option contracts) for the
purchase, development and sale of real estate in the routine conduct of our business. Option contracts forff the purchase of land
generally reduce our financial risk and costs of capital associated with land holdings. At November 30, 2023, we had access
to 309,700 homesites through option contracts with third parties and unconsolidated entities in which we have investments.
At November 30, 2023, we had $1.9 billion of non-refundabla e option deposits and pre-acquisition costs related to certain of
these homesites and had posted $198.9 million of letters of credit in lieu of cash deposits under certain land and option
contracts.
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At November 30, 2023, we had letters of credit outstanding in the amount of $1.8 billion (which included the $198.9
million of letters of credit discussed abovea ). Details on our letters of credit outstanding and outstanding surety bonds are
included in Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our Financial Services segment had a pipeline of loan appla ications in process of $3.3 billion at November 30, 2023.
Loans in process forff which interest rates were committed to the borrowers totaled appra oximately $2.1 billion as of
November 30, 2023. A significant portion of these commitments had a remaining period of 60 days or less. Since a portion of
these commitments is expected to expire without being exercised by the borrowers or borrowers may not meet certain criteria
at the time of closing, the total commitments do not necessarily represent futff urt e cash requirements.

Our Financial Services segment uses mandatory mortgage-backed securities ("MBS") forward commitments, option
contracts, futures contracts and investor commitments to hedge our mortgage-related interest rate exposure. These
instruments involve, to varyirr ng degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk. Credit risk associated with MBS forff ward
commitments, option contracts, futures contracts and loan sales transactions is managed by limiting our counterparr rties to
investment banks, fedff erally regulated bank affiliates and other investors meeting our credit standards. Our risk, in the event
of default by the purchaser, is the difference between the contract price and fair value of the MBS forff ward commitments and
the option contracts. At November 30, 2023, we had open commitments amounting to $3.2 billion to sell MBS with varying
settlement dates through Februar ry 2024 and open futff urt e contracts in the amount of $5.9 million with the settlement dates
through March 2024.

The folff lowing sections discuss market and financing risk, seasonality and interest rates and changing prices that may
have an impact on our business:

Market and Financing Risk

We finance our contributions to JVs, land acquisition and development activities, construcrr tion activities, financial
services activities, Multifamily activities and general operating needs primarily with cash generated from operations and debt,
as well as borrowings under our Credit Facility and warehouse repurchase faciff lities. We also purchase land under option
agreements, which enables us to control homesites until we have determined whether to exercise the options. We try to
manage the finff ancial risks of adverse market conditions associated with land holdings by what we believe to be pruderr nt
underwriting of land purchases in areas we view as desirabla e growth markets, carefulff management of the land development
process and limitation of risks by using partners to share the costs of purchasing and developing land as well as obtaining
access to land through option contracts. Although we believe our land underwriting standards are conservative, we do not
anticipate a severe decline in land values and the sharplr y reducd ed demand for new homes in the near future.

Seasonality

We historically have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, variability in quarterly results. Our
homebuilding business is seasonal in nature and generally reflects higher levels of new home order activity in our second and
third fisff cal quarters and increased deliveries in the second half of our fiscal year. However, a variety of factff ors can alter
seasonal patterns.

Interest Rates and Changing Prices

Inflation can have a long-term impact on us because increasing costs of land, materials and labora result in a need to
increase the sales prices of homes. In addition, inflation is often accompanied by higher interest rates, which can have a
negative impact on housing demand and increase the costs of finff ancing land development activities and housing construcr tion.
Rising interest rates as well as increased material and labor costs, may reducd e gross margins. An increase in materials and
labora costs would be particularly a problem during a period of declining home prices. Conversely, deflation can impact the
value of real estate and make it diffiff cult for us to recover our land costs. Thereforff e, either inflation or deflaff tion could
adversely impact our future results of operations.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements forff a comprehensive list of new accounting
pronouncements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this document. As discussed in Note 1, the preparation of finff ancial statements in conforff mity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions about future events that affeff ct the amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying
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notes. Futurt e events and their effecff ts cannot be determined with absolute certainty. Therefore, the determination of estimates
requires the exercise of judgment. Actual results could diffeff r froff m those estimates, and such diffeff rences may be material to
our consolidated financial statements. Listed below are those policies and estimates that we believe are critical and require the
use of significant judgment in their application.

Goodwill

We recorded a significant amount of goodwill in connection with the 2018 acquisition of CalAtlantic. We record
goodwill associated with acquisitions of businesses when the purchase price of the business exceeds the fair value of the net
tangible and identifiable assets acquired. In accordance with ASC Topic 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Othett r ("ASC 350"),
we evaluate goodwill forff potential impairment on at least an annual basis. We have the option to perform a qualitative or
quantitative assessment to determine whether the faiff r value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying value. Qualitative facff tors
may include, but are not limited to, economic conditions, industry arr nd market considerations, cost factff ors, overall financial
performance of the reporting units and other entity and reporting unit specific events. We believe that the accounting estimate
for goodwill is a critical accounting estimate because of the judgment required in assessing the faiff r value of each of our
reporting units. We estimate faiff r value through various valuation methods, including the use of discounted expected future
cash floff ws of each reporting unit. The expected future cash floff ws for each segment are significantly impacted by current
market conditions. If these market conditions and resulting expected future cash floff ws for each reporting unit decline
significantly, the actual results forff each segment could diffeff r froff m our estimate, which would cause goodwill to be impaired.
Our accounting forff goodwill represents our best estimate of futff urt e events.

Homebuilding Revenue Recognition

Homebuilding revenues and related profits from sales of homes are recognized at the time of the closing of a sale,
when title to and possession of the property are transferff red to the homebuyer. In order to promote sales of the homes, we may
offeff r sales incentives to homebuyers. The types of incentives vary orr n a community-by-community basis and home-by-home
basis. They include primarily price discounts on individual homes and finff ancing incentives, all of which are reflected as a
reduction of home sales revenues. Our performance obligation, to deliver the agreed-uponu home, is generally satisfieff d in less
than one year from the original contract date. Cash proceeds froff m home closings held in escrow for our benefit, typically for
approximately three days, are included in Homebuilding cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and
disclosed in the notes to consolidated balance sheets. Contract liabilities include customer deposit liabia lities related to sold
but undelivered homes that are included in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We periodically elect to sell
parcels of land to third parties. Cash consideration froff m land sales is typically due on the closing date, which is generally
when performance obligations are satisfied, and revenue is recognized as title to and possession of the property are
transferff red to the buyer.

Multifamff ily Revenue Recognition

Our Multifamff ily segment provides management services with respect to the development, construcr tion and property
management of rental projects in joint venturt es in which we have investments. As a result, our Multifamff ily segment earns
and receives feeff s, which are generally based uponu a stated percentage of development and construcr tion costs and a
percentage of gross rental collections. These fees are recorded over the period in which the services are performed using an
input method, which properly depicts the level of effoff rt required to complete the management services. In addition, our
Multifamff ily segment provides general contractor services for the construcr tion of some of its rental projects and recognizes
the revenue over the period in which the services are performed using an input method, which properly depicts the level of
effoff rt required to complete the construcr tion services. These customer contracts require us to provide management and general
contractor services which represents a performance obligation that we satisfy over time. Management feesff and general
contractor services in the Multifamily segment are included in Multifamff ily revenue. When the Multifamff ily segment acts as
general contractor, it treats the entire construcrr tion cost as revenue and treats payments to subcontractors as expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost unless the inventory wrr ithin a community is determined to be impaired, in which case
the impaired inventory irr s written down to faiff r value. Inventory crr osts include land, land development and home construcr tion
costs, real estate taxes and interest related to development and construcr tion. We review our inventory frr orff indicators of
impairment by evaluating each community during each reporting period. If the undiscounted cash floff ws expected to be
generated by a community are less than its carrying amount, an impairment charge is recorded to write down the carryirr ng
amount of such community to its estimated faiff r value.

In conducting our review for indicators of impairment on a community level, we evaluate, among other things, the
margins on homes that have been delivered, margins on homes under sales contracts in backlog, projected margins with
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regard to future home sales over the life off f the community, projeo cted margins with regard to future land sales, and the
estimated faiff r value of the land itself.

We estimate the faiff r value of our communities using a discounted cash floff w model. The projeo cted cash floff ws for
each community are significantly impacted by estimates related to market supplu y and demand, product type by community,
homesite sizes, sales pace, sales prices, sales incentives, construcrr tion costs, sales and marketing expenses, the local economy,
competitive conditions, labor costs, costs of materials and other factors forff that particular community. We evaluate the
historical performance of each of our communities as well as current trends in the market and economy impacting the
community and its surrounding areas. These trends are analyzed for each of the estimates listed abovea .

Since the estimates and assumptions included in our cash floff w models are based upon historical results and
projected trends, they do not anticipate unexpected changes in market conditions or strategies that may lead to us incurring
additional impairment charges in the futff urt e.

Using all the available information, we calculate our best estimate of projeo cted cash floff ws for each community.
While many of the estimates are calculated based on historical and projeo cted trends, all estimates are subju ective and change
from market to market and community to community as market and economic conditions change. The determination of faiff r
value also requires discounting the estimated cash floff ws at a rate we believe a market participant would determine to be
commensurate with the inherent risks associated with the assets and related estimated cash floff w streams. The discount rate
used in determining each asset’s faiff r value depends on the community’s projected life aff nd development stage.

We estimate the faiff r value of inventory err valuated for impairment based on market conditions and assumptions made
by management at the time the inventory irr s evaluated, which may diffeff r materially from actuat l results if market conditions or
our assumptions change.

We believe that the accounting related to inventory vrr aluation and impairment is a critical accounting policy because:
(1) assumptions inherent in the valuation of our inventory arr re highly subjective and susceptible to change and (2) the impact
of recognizing impairments on our inventory crr ould be material to our consolidated financial statements.

Product WarWW rantytt

Although we subcu ontract virtuat lly all aspects of construcr tion to others and our contracts call forff the subcontractors
to repair or replace any deficient items related to their trades, we are primarily responsible to homebuyers to correct any
deficiencies. Additionally, in some instances, we may be held responsible for the actions of or losses incurred by
subcu ontractors. Warranty and similar reserves forff homes are established at an amount estimated to be adequate to cover
potential costs for materials and labor with regard to warranty-type claims expected to be incurred subsequent to the deliveryrr
of a home. Reserves are determined based uponu historical data and trends with respect to similar product types and
geographical areas. We believe the accounting estimate related to the reserve for warranty costs is a critical accounting
estimate because the estimate requires a large degree of judgment. While we believe that the reserve for warranty costs is
adequate, there can be no assurances that historical data and trends will accurately predict our actuat l warranty costs.
Additionally, there can be no assurances that future economic or financial developments might not lead to a significant
change in the reserve.

Investments in Unconsolidatdd ed Entities

We strategically invest in unconsolidated entities that acquire and develop land (1) forff our homebuilding operations
or for sale to third parties, (2) forff construcrr tion of homes for sale to third-party homebuyers or (3) forff the construcrr tion and sale
of multifamff ily rental properties. Our Homebuilding partners generally are unrelated homebuilders, land owners/developers
and finff ancial or other strategic partners. Additionally, in recent years, we have invested in technology companies that are
looking to improve the homebuilding and financial services industry irr n order to better serve homebuyers and homeowners
and increase efficiencies. Our Multifamff ily partners are all financial partners.

Most of the unconsolidated entities through which we acquire and develop land are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting because we are not the primary beneficiary orr r a de-facto agent, and we have a significant, but less than
controlling, interest in the entities. We record our investments in these entities in our consolidated balance sheets as
Investments in Unconsolidated Entities and our pro-rata share of the entities’ earnings or losses in our consolidated
statements of operations as Equity in Earnings (Loss) from Unconsolidated Entities within each of the respective segments.
For most unconsolidated entities, we generally have the right to share in earnings and distributions on a pro-rata basis based
upon ownership percentages. However, certain Homebuilding unconsolidated entities and all of our Multifamff ily
unconsolidated entities provide for a different allocation of profit and cash distributions if and when cumulative results of the
joint venture exceed specifieff d targets (such as a specified internal rate of return). Advances to these entities are included in
the investment balance.
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Management looks at specificff criteria and uses its judgment when determining if we are the primary beneficiary orr f,
or have a controlling interest in, an unconsolidated entity. Factors considered in determining whether we have significant
influence, or we have control include risk and reward sharing, experience and finff ancial condition of the other partners, voting
rights, involvement in day-to-day capital and operating decisions and continuing involvement. The accounting policy relating
to the use of the equity method of accounting is a critical accounting policy dued to the judgment required in determining
whether the entity is a VIE or a voting interest entity and then whether we are the primary beneficiary orr r have control or
significant influff ence. We believe that the equity method of accounting is appra opriate for our investments in unconsolidated
entities where we are not the primary beneficiary arr nd we do not have a controlling interest, but rather share control with our
partners.

We evaluate the long-lived assets in unconsolidated entities forff indicators of impairment durd ing each reporting
period. A series of operating losses of an investee or other facff tors may indicate that a decrease in the fair value of our
investment in the unconsolidated entity below its carrying amount has occurred which is other-than-temporary.rr The amount
of impairment recognized is the excess of the investment’s carrying amount over its estimated faiff r value.

The evaluation of our investment in unconsolidated entities for other-than-temporary irr mpairment includes certain
critical assumptions: (1) projected futff urt e distributions from the unconsolidated entities, (2) discount rates appla ied to the future
distributions, (3) the length of the time and the extent to which the market value has been less than cost, and (4) various other
factors. Our assumptions on the projeo cted future distributions from unconsolidated entities are dependent on market
conditions.

We believe our assumptions on discount rates are critical accounting policies because the selection of the discount
rates affects the estimated faiff r value of our investments in unconsolidated entities. A higher discount rate reduces the
estimated faiff r value of our investments in unconsolidated entities, while a lower discount rate increases the estimated fair
value of our investments in unconsolidated entities. Because of changes in economic conditions, actuat l results could diffeff r
materially from management’s assumptions and may require material valuation adjustments to our investments in
unconsolidated entities to be recorded in the futff urt e.

Consolidatdd ion of Vo arVV iable IntII erest EntEE ities

GAAP requires the assessment of whether an entity is a VIE and, if so, if we are the primary beneficiary arr t the
inception of the entity or at a reconsideration event. Additionally, GAAP requires the consolidation of VIEs in which we have
a controlling finff ancial interest. A controlling finff ancial interest will have both of the following characteristics: (a) the power to
direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and (b) the obligation to absorb
losses of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could
potentially be significant to the VIE.

Our variabla e interest in VIEs may be in the forff m of (1) equity ownership, (2) contracts to purchase assets,
(3) management services and development agreements between us and a VIE, (4) loans provided by us to a VIE or other
partner and/or (5) guarantees provided by members to banks and other third parties. We examine specific criteria and use our
judgment when determining if we are the primary beneficiary orr f a VIE. Factors considered in determining whether we are the
primary beneficiary irr nclude risk and reward sharing, experience and finff ancial condition of other partner(s), voting rights,
involvement in day-to-day capital and operating decisions, representation on a VIE’s executive committee, existence of
unilateral kick-out rights or voting rights, level of economic disproportionality between us and the other partner(s) and
contracts to purchase assets from VIEs.

Generally, all majoa r decision making in our joint ventures is shared among all partners. In particular, business plans
and budgets are generally required to be unanimously approved by all partners. Usually, management and other feeff s earned
by us are nominal and believed to be at market and there is no significant economic disproportionality between us and other
partners. Generally, we purchase less than a majoa rity of the JV’s assets and the purchase prices under our option contracts are
believed to be at market.

Generally, our unconsolidated entities become VIEs and consolidate if the other partner(s) lack the intent and
financial wherewithal to remain in the entity. As a result, we continue to fund operations and debt paydowns through partner
loans or substituted capital contributions. The accounting policy relating to variabla e interest entities is a critical accounting
policy because the determination of whether an entity is a VIE and, if so, whether we are primary beneficiary mrr ay require us
to exercise significant judgment.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are exposed to a number of market risks in the ordinary crr ourse of business. Our primary market risk exposure
relates to fluff ctuat tions in interest rates on our investments, loans held-for-sale, loans held-for-investment and outstanding
variable rate debt.

For fixff ed rate debt, such as our senior notes, changes in interest rates generally affeff ct the faiff r value of the debt
instrument, but not our earnings or cash floff ws. For variable rate debt such as our unsecured revolving credit facility and
Financial Services’ and LMF Commercial’s warehouse repurchase facff ilities, changes in interest rates generally do not affeff ct
the faiff r value of the outstanding borrowings on the debt faciff lities but do affeff ct our earnings and cash floff ws.

In our Financial Services operations, we utilize mortgage backed securities forff ward commitments, option contracts
and investor commitments to protect the value of rate-locked commitments and loans held-for-sale froff m fluff ctuat tions in
mortgage-related interest rates.

To mitigate interest risk associated with LMF Commercial's loans held-for-sale, we use derivative finff ancial
instruments to hedge our exposure to risk froff m the time a borrower locks a loan until the time the loan is securitized. We
hedge our interest rate exposure through entering into interest rate swap futures. We also manage a portion of our credit
exposure by buying protection within the CMBX and CDX markets.

We do not enter into or hold derivatives for trading or speculative purposrr es.
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The table below provides inforff mation at November 30, 2023 about our significant instrumr ents that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates. For loans held-for-investment, net and investments held-to-maturt ity, senior notes and other debts
payabla e and notes and other debts payabla e, the table presents principal cash floff ws and related weighted average effective
interest rates by expected maturity dates and estimated faiff r values at November 30, 2023. Weighted average variabla e interest
rates are based on the variable interest rates at November 30, 2023.

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 and Notes 1
and 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 for a further discussion of these items and our strategy of
mitigating our interest rate risk.

Information Regarding Interest Rate Sensitivity
Principal (Notional) Amount by

Expected Maturity and Average Interest Rate
November 30, 2023

Years Ending November 30,
Fair Value at
November 30,

(Dollall rs in millions)s 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafteff r Total 2023

ASSETS
Financial Services:
Investments held-to-maturt ity:

Fixed rate......................................... $ — — — — — 140.7 140.7 139.4
Average interest rate........................ — — — — — 3.6 % 3.6 % —

Loans held-for-investment, net:
Fixed rate......................................... $ 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 46.1 52.7 52.7
Average interest rate........................ 4.0 % 4.0 % 4.0 % 4.0 % 4.0 % 4.0 % 4.0 % —
Variable rate .................................... $ — — — 0.1 0.1 2.5 2.7 2.7
Average interest rate........................ — — — 4.9 % 4.9 % 4.9 % 4.9 % —

LIABILITIES
Homebuilding:
Senior notes and other debts payable:

Fixed rate......................................... $ 483.4 673.9 455.9 1,165.0 4.0 33.4 2,815.6 2,785.7
Average interest rate........................ 4.5 % 4.7 % 5.1 % 4.8 % 3.0 % 5.9 % 4.8 % —

Financial Services:
Notes and other debts payabla e:

Fixed rate......................................... $ — — — — — 131.1 131.1 131.7
Average interest rate........................ — — — — — 3.4 % 3.4 % —
Variable rate .................................... $2,032.7 — — — — — 2,032.7 2,032.7
Average interest rate........................ 7.1 % — — — — — 7.1 % —

Multifamff ily:
Notes and other debts payabla e:

Fixed rate......................................... $ 0.2 — — — — — 0.2 0.2
Average interest rate........................ 0.0 % — — — — — 0.0 % —
Variable rate .................................... $ 3.5 — — — — — 3.5 3.5
Average interest rate........................ 3.6 % — — — — — 3.6 % —
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of Lennar Corporr ration

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lennar Corporr ation and subsu idiaries (the "Company") as
of November 30, 2023 and 2022, the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss),
stockholders' equity, and cash floff ws, forff each of the three years in the period ended November 30, 2023, and the related notes
and the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 (collectively referff red to as the "consolidated financial
statements"). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the finff ancial position
of the Company as of November 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash floff ws for each of the three
years in the period ended November 30, 2023 in conforff mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publu ic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company's internal control over finff ancial reporting as of November 30, 2023, based on criteria established in
Internal Controt l — Integre ated Framework (rr 2013)(( issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated January 26, 2024, expressed an unqualifieff d opinion on the Company's internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis forff Opinion

These finff ancial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company's finff ancial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firff m registered with the PCAOB and
are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. fedff eral securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonabla e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether dued
to error or fraff ud. Our audits included performing procedurd es to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraff ud, and performing procedurd es that respond to those risks. Such procedurd es included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the finff ancial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonabla e basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising froff m the current-period audit of the financial statements that
was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subju ective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the finff ancial statements, taken as a whole,
and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on
the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Lennar Homebuilding and Lennar Multifamily Investments in Unconsolidated Entities - Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities - Refer to Note 1, Summary of Signi ificff ant Accountintt g PolPP icll ies (Variable Ill ntII ertt est EntEE ittt iett s), and Note 8,
Variable Ill ntII ertt est EntEE ititt es, to the Consolidated financial statements

Critical Audit MatMM ter Description

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP’’) requires the assessment of whether an entity is a Variabla e interest
entity (“VIE”) and, if so, if the Company is the primary beneficiary arr t the inception of the entity or at a reconsideration event.
Additionally, GAAP requires the consolidation of VIEs in which an enterprise has a controlling finff ancial interest. A
controlling finff ancial interest will have both of the following characteristics: (a) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that
most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and (b) the obligation to absa orb lr osses of the VIE that could
potentially be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefitsff from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the
VIE.

Certain of the Company’s investments in unconsolidated entities within their Homebuilding and Multifamff ily segments need
to be evaluated forff consolidation, including determining whether the joint venturt e is a VIE, and if so, whether the Company
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is the primary beneficiary.rr This assessment is performed at the forff mation of the joint venture and uponu the occurrence of
reconsideration events. This determination requires significant judgment by management.

We identifieff d the consolidation and primary beneficiary arr ssessment uponu formation and the occurrence of reconsideration
events of certain of the Company’s VIE’s as a critical audit matter given the significant judgment required by management.
This required a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of audit effort due to the complexity of the entity
structurt es and agreements.

How thett Critical Audit MatMM ter WasWW Addrdd essed in thett Audit

Our audit procedurd es related to the accounting determination forff the abovea mentioned joint venturt es included the following,
among others:
• We tested the design and operating effeff ctiveness of the investment consolidation controls over the initial accounting

assessment of joint venturt es and the continuous reassessment forff reconsideration events, as required by the accounting
framework.

• We selected a sample of unconsolidated and consolidated joint ventures and evaluated the appropriateness of the
Company’s accounting conclusions upon formation and reconsideration events by:

Reading the joint venture agreements and other related documents and evaluating the structurt e and terms of the
agreement as well as any reconsideration events which took place during the year to determine if the joint
venturt e should be classified as a VIE.
If an entity is determined to be a VIE, considering whether the Company appropriately determined the primary
beneficiary brr y evaluating the contractuat l arrangements of the entity to determine if the Company has the power
to direct activities that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance, and if the Company has the
obligation to absa orb lr osses of the entity or the right to receive benefitsff from the entity that could be significant
to the VIE.
For consolidated joint ventures, evaluated whether any reconsideration events occurred durd ing the year that
would result in deconsolidation, and if so, verified that deconsolidation occurred properly.
Evaluating the evidence obtained in other areas of the audit to determine if there were additional reconsideration
events that had not been identifieff d by the Company, including, among others, reading joint venturt e board
minutes and agreeing the terms of certain joint venture agreements and side agreements, if any.

Miami, Florida
January 26, 2024

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1994.
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LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

November 30, 2023 and 2022
2023 (1) 2022 (1)
(Dollall rs in thousands)dd

ASSETS
Homebuilding:

Cash and cash equivalents.................................................................................................... $ 6,273,724 4,616,124
Restricted cash ..................................................................................................................... 13,481 23,046
Receivabla es, net.................................................................................................................... 887,992 673,980
Inventories:...........................................................................................................................

Finished homes and construcr tion in progress ............................................................... 10,455,666 11,718,507
Land and land under development................................................................................ 4,904,541 5,648,548

Inventory orr wned ................................................................................................. 15,360,207 17,367,055
Consolidated inventory nrr ot owned ............................................................................... 2,992,528 2,331,231

Inventory orr wned and consolidated inventory nrr ot owned ................................... 18,352,735 19,698,286
Deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate................................................................. 2,002,154 1,733,725
Investments in unconsolidated entities................................................................................. 1,143,909 1,173,164
Goodwill............................................................................................................................... 3,442,359 3,442,359
Other assets .......................................................................................................................... 1,512,038 1,323,478

33,628,392 32,684,162
Financial Services ...................................................................................................................... 3,566,546 3,254,257
Multifamff ily ................................................................................................................................ 1,381,513 1,257,337
Lennar Other ............................................................................................................................ 657,852 788,539

Total assets......................................................................................................... $ 39,234,303 37,984,295
(1) Under certain provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 810, Consolidatdd ions, ("ASC 810") the Company is

required to separately disclose on its consolidated balance sheets the assets of consolidated variable interest entities ("VIEs") that are
owned by the consolidated VIEs and liabia lities of consolidated VIEs as to which there is no recourse against the Company.

As of November 30, 2023, total assets include $1.9 billion related to consolidated VIEs of which $22.8 million is included in
Homebuilding cash and cash equivalents, $1.8 million in Homebuilding receivabla es, net, $18.3 million in Homebuilding finff ished
homes and construcrr tion in progress, $628.0 million in Homebuilding land and land under development, $55.0 million in
Homebuilding deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate, $1.2 billion in Homebuilding consolidated inventory nr ot owned, $0.3
million in Homebuilding investments in unconsolidated entities, $23.0 million in Homebuilding other assets and $32.6 million in
Multifamff ily assets.

As of November 30, 2022, total assets include $1.4 billion related to consolidated VIEs of which $56.9 million is included in
Homebuilding cash and cash equivalents, $0.3 million in Homebuilding receivabla es, net, $29.4 million in Homebuilding finff ished
homes and construcrr tion in progress, $687.8 million in Homebuilding land and land under development, $48.7 million in
Homebuilding deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate, $533.8 million in Homebuilding consolidated inventory nr ot owned,
$1.0 million in Homebuilding investments in unconsolidated entities, $23.0 million in Homebuilding other assets, $33.2 million in
Multifamff ily assets and $9.0 million in Lennar Other assets.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

November 30, 2023 and 2022
2023 (2) 2022 (2)

(Dollall rs in thousands edd xcee ept per share
amounts)tt

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Homebuilding:

Accounts payable................................................................................................................. $ 1,631,401 1,616,128
Liabilities related to consolidated inventory nrr ot owned...................................................... 2,540,894 1,967,551
Senior notes and other debts payable, net............................................................................ 2,816,482 4,047,294
Other liabia lities .................................................................................................................... 2,739,217 3,347,673

9,727,994 10,978,646
Financial Services...................................................................................................................... 2,447,039 2,353,904
Multifamff ily ................................................................................................................................ 278,177 313,484
Lennar Other............................................................................................................................. 79,127 97,894

Total liabilities............................................................................................................. 12,532,337 13,743,928
Stockholders’ equity: ................................................................................................................
Preferff red stock ............................................................................................................................ — —
Class A common stock of $0.10 par value per share; Authorized: 2023 and 2022 -
400,000,000 shares; Issued: 2023 - 258,475,012 shares; 2022 - 256,084,147 shares ................ 25,848 25,608
Class B common stock of $0.10 par value per share; Authorized: 2023 and 2022 -
90,000,000 shares; Issued: 2023 - 36,601,215 shares; 2022 - 36,601,215 shares ...................... 3,660 3,660
Additional paid-in capia tal............................................................................................................ 5,570,009 5,417,796
Retained earnings........................................................................................................................ 22,369,368 18,861,417
Treasury srr tock, at cost; 2023 - 11,207,889 shares of Class A common stock and 2,920,200
shares of Class B common stock; 2022 - 2,455,387 shares of Class A common stock and
419,860 shares of Class B common stock................................................................................... (1,393,100) (210,389)
Accumulated other comprehensive income ................................................................................ 4,879 2,408

Total stockholders’ equity.......................................................................................... 26,580,664 24,100,500
Noncontrolling interests ........................................................................................................... 121,302 139,867

Total equity ................................................................................................................. 26,701,966 24,240,367
Total liabilities and equity ......................................................................................... $ 39,234,303 37,984,295

(2) As of November 30, 2023, total liabia lities include $1.2 billion related to consolidated VIEs as to which there was no recourse against
the Company, of which $53.7 million is included in Homebuilding accounts payable, $1.1 billion in Homebuilding liabia lities related to
consolidated inventory nrr ot owned, $38.1 million in Homebuilding other liabia lities and $4.1 million in Multifamff ily liabilities.

As of November 30, 2022, total liabia lities include $620.4 million related to consolidated VIEs as to which there was no recourse
against the Company, of which $66.9 million is included in Homebuilding accounts payable, $510.9 million in Homebuilding
liabia lities related to consolidated inventory nr ot owned, $29.4 million in Homebuilding senior notes and other debts payable, $7.2
million in Homebuilding other liabia lities, $3.8 million in Multifamff ily liabilities and $2.2 million in Lennar Other liabia lities.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATRR IONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Years Ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021
2023 2022 2021

(Dollall rs in thousands,dd except per share amounts)tt

Revenues:
Homebuilding ................................................................................................. $ 32,660,987 31,951,335 25,545,242
Financial Services........................................................................................... 976,859 809,680 898,745
Multifamily..................................................................................................... 573,485 865,603 665,232
Lennar Other................................................................................................... 22,035 44,392 21,457

Total revenues ......................................................................................... 34,233,366 33,671,010 27,130,676
Costs and expenses:

Homebuilding ................................................................................................. 27,223,645 25,161,299 20,502,541
Financial Services........................................................................................... 467,398 426,378 407,731
Multifamily..................................................................................................... 573,658 848,931 652,810
Lennar Other................................................................................................... 27,681 32,258 30,955
Corporate general and administrative............................................................. 501,338 414,498 398,381
Charitabla e foundaff tion contribution................................................................. 73,087 66,399 59,825

Total costs and expenses ......................................................................... 28,866,807 26,949,763 22,052,243
Equity in earnings (losses) from unconsolidated entities ...................................... (144,610) (36,301) 48,993
Other income (expense), net and other gains (losses) ........................................... 30,517 (15,286) 180,830
Lennar Other unrealized gains (losses) from technology investments .................. (50,162) (655,094) 510,802
Earnings before income taxes ............................................................................. 5,202,304 6,014,566 5,819,058
Provision for income taxes .................................................................................. (1,241,013) (1,366,065) (1,362,509)
Net earnings (including net earnings attributable to noncontrolling
interests).............................................................................................................. 3,961,291 4,648,501 4,456,549
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests ............................ 22,780 34,376 26,438
Net earnings attributable to Lennar .................................................................. $ 3,938,511 4,614,125 4,430,111
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Net unrealized gain (loss) on securities availabla e-for-sale............................. $ 2,471 1,464 (536)
Reclassification adjud stments forff gains included in net
earnings....................................................................................................... — 2,285 —

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax ........................................ $ 2,471 3,749 (536)
Total comprehensive income attributable to Lennar ....................................... $ 3,940,982 4,617,874 4,429,575
Total comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling
interests.............................................................................................................. $ 22,780 34,376 26,438
Basic earnings per share ..................................................................................... $ 13.73 15.74 14.28
Diluted earnings per share.................................................................................. $ 13.73 15.72 14.27

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

52



LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
Years Ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021

2023 2022 2021
(Dollall rs in thousands,dd except per share amounts)tt

Class A common stock:
Beginning balance .......................................................................................... $ 25,608 30,050 29,894
Employee stock and director plans................................................................. 240 225 156
Retirement of treasury srr tock........................................................................... — (4,667) —

Balance at November 30, ........................................................................ 25,848 25,608 30,050
Class B common stock:

Beginning balance .......................................................................................... 3,660 3,944 3,944
Retirement of treasury srr tock........................................................................... — (284) —

Balance at November 30, ........................................................................ 3,660 3,660 3,944
Additional paid-in capital:

Beginning balance .......................................................................................... 5,417,796 8,807,891 8,676,056
Employee stock and director plans................................................................. 1,089 904 1,207
Retirement of treasury srr tock........................................................................... — (3,533,425) —
Amortization of restricted stock ..................................................................... 160,720 184,086 135,090
Premium paid forff purchase of noncontrolling interests.................................. — (37,342) —
Equity adjud stment related to noncontrolling interests .................................... (9,596) (4,318) (4,462)

Balance at November 30, ........................................................................ 5,570,009 5,417,796 8,807,891
Retained earnings:

Beginning balance .......................................................................................... 18,861,417 14,685,329 10,564,994
Net earnings attributable to Lennar ................................................................ 3,938,511 4,614,125 4,430,111
Cash dividends - Class A common stock ($1.50 per share for 2023, $1.50
per share for 2022 and $1.00 per share for 2021)...........................................

(378,080) (383,047) (272,162)

Cash dividends - Class B common stock ($1.50 per share for 2023, $1.50
per share for 2022 and $1.00 per share for 2021)...........................................

(52,480) (54,990) (37,614)

Balance at November 30, ........................................................................ 22,369,368 18,861,417 14,685,329
Treasury stock, at cost:

Beginning balance .......................................................................................... (210,389) (2,709,448) (1,279,227)
Employee stock and directors plans ............................................................... (72,562) (71,695) (64,662)
Purchases of treasury srr tock ............................................................................ (1,110,149) (967,622) (1,365,559)
Retirement of treasury srr tock........................................................................... — 3,538,376 —

Balance at November 30, ........................................................................ (1,393,100) (210,389) (2,709,448)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Beginning balance .......................................................................................... 2,408 (1,341) (805)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax...................................... 2,471 3,749 (536)

Balance at November 30, ........................................................................ 4,879 2,408 (1,341)
Total stockholders’ equity .................................................................... 26,580,664 24,100,500 20,816,425

Noncontrolling interests:
Beginning balance .......................................................................................... 139,867 179,857 104,545
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests...................................... 22,780 34,376 26,438
Receipts related to noncontrolling interests.................................................... 21,149 41,816 69,675
Payments related to noncontrolling interests.................................................. (71,272) (91,329) (24,605)
Non-cash consolidations/deconsolidations, net.............................................. — (55,240) —
Non-cash purchase or activity of noncontrolling interests, net ...................... 8,778 30,387 3,804

Balance at November 30, ........................................................................ 121,302 139,867 179,857
Total equity ............................................................................................ $ 26,701,966 24,240,367 20,996,282
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021

Cash flows froff m operating activities:
Net earnings (including net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests) ......................... $ 3,961,291 4,648,501 4,456,549
Adjud stments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization................................................................................................. 110,164 87,075 85,954
Amortization of discount/ptt remium and accretion on debt, net ............................................... (1,651) (2,163) (6,775)
Equity in (earnings) losses froff m unconsolidated entities ........................................................ 144,610 36,302 (48,993)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated entities........................................................... 53,125 71,301 45,984
Share-based compensation expense......................................................................................... 160,720 184,086 134,621
Deferred income tax (benefit)ff expense.................................................................................... (67,968) (246,653) 191,627
Loans held-for-sale unrealized loss ......................................................................................... 26,658 33,287 14,449
Lennar Other unrealized (gains) losses froff m technology investments and other (gains)
losses..................................................................................................................................... 112,541 672,212 (680,576)
Gain on sale of other assets, operating properties and equipment, CMBS bonds and other
liabia lities .............................................................................................................................. (7,015) (7,617) (27,678)

Gain on sale of interest in unconsolidated entity and other Multifamff ily gain ........................ — — (1,167)
Gain on sale of Financial Services' portfolff io/businesses......................................................... — — (3,811)
Gain on redemption/repurchases of senior notes and other debts payable.............................. (9,611) — (2,204)
Valuation adjustments and write-offsff of option deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real
estate, other receivabla es and other assets............................................................................. 125,338 110,693 25,696

Changes in assets and liabia lities: .............................................................................................
Increase in receivabla es............................................................................................................. (329,191) (422,398) (289,776)
(Increase) decrease in inventories, excluding valuation adjustments...................................... 2,274,083 (1,711,766) (1,184,121)
Increase in deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate................................................... (295,761) (672,055) (776,493)
Increase in other assets ............................................................................................................ (85,005) (13,330) (121,036)
Increase in loans held-for-sale................................................................................................. (366,728) (202,920) (160,785)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and other liabia lities ................................................. (625,862) 701,113 881,309

Net cash provided by operating activities..................................................................................... $ 5,179,738 3,265,668 2,532,774
Cash flows froff m investing activities:
Net additions to operating properties and equipment.............................................................. $ (99,799) (57,214) (65,172)
Proceeds froff m the sale of other assets ..................................................................................... 13,215 24,686 41,551
Proceeds froff m sale of investment in consolidated/udd nconsolidated joint ventures .................. — — 32,340
Proceeds froff m sale of Financial Services' portfolff io/businesses .............................................. — — 3,327
Investments in and contributions to unconsolidated entities ................................................... (201,042) (447,401) (408,183)
Distributions of capital froff m unconsolidated and consolidated entities.................................. 99,643 398,423 362,181
Proceeds froff m sale of commercial mortgage-backed securities bonds ................................... — 9,191 11,307
Decrease in Financial Services loans held-for-investment...................................................... 14,329 19,491 29,397
Purchases of investment securities .......................................................................................... (8,000) (93,769) (128,162)
Proceeds froff m maturt ities/sales of investment securities ......................................................... 4,673 16,892 16,312
Other receipts, net.................................................................................................................... — 1,399 16

Net cash used in investing activities........................................................................ $ (176,981) (128,302) (105,086)

2023 2022 2021

(In tII hott usands)s

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Years Ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021
2023 2022 2021

(In tII hott usands)s
Cash flows froff m finff ancing activities:
Net borrowings under warehouse faciff lities............................................................................ $ 28,712 409,067 262,107
Redemption/repurchases of senior notes................................................................................ (1,121,133) (575,000) (1,159,851)
Principal payments on notes payabla e and other borrowings.................................................. (105,118) (48,079) (195,212)
Proceeds froff m other borrowings ............................................................................................ — — 13,973
Proceeds froff m liabia lities related to consolidated inventory nr ot owned ................................. 461,312 1,167,227 694,185
Payments related to consolidated inventory nr ot owned......................................................... (842,781) (682,385) (350,583)
(Payments) proceeds related to other liabia lities, net .............................................................. (5,187) (21,249) 25,564
Receipts related to noncontrolling interests ........................................................................... 21,149 41,816 69,675
Payments related to noncontrolling interests ......................................................................... (71,272) (91,329) (24,605)
Common stock: ......................................................................................................................

Repurchases.................................................................................................................... (1,182,711) (1,039,309) (1,430,212)
Dividends ....................................................................................................................... (430,560) (438,038) (309,776)

Net cash used in finff ancing activities ................................................................... $ (3,247,589) (1,277,279) (2,404,735)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash............................................... 1,755,168 1,860,087 22,953
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year...................................... 4,815,770 2,955,683 2,932,730
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year ................................................ $ 6,570,938 4,815,770 2,955,683

Summary of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:
Homebuilding......................................................................................................................... $ 6,273,724 4,616,124 2,735,213
Financial Services .................................................................................................................. 159,491 139,378 167,021
Multifamff ily............................................................................................................................. 39,334 17,827 16,850
Lennar Other .......................................................................................................................... 1,948 5,391 2,660
Homebuilding restricted cash................................................................................................. 13,481 23,046 21,927
Financial Services restricted cash .......................................................................................... 82,960 14,004 12,012

$ 6,570,938 4,815,770 2,955,683
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized ................................................................. $ 81,223 67,842 47,720
Cash paid for income taxes, net ............................................................................................. $ 1,864,941 1,273,166 1,140,858

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Purchases of inventories, land under development and other assets financed by sellers....... $ 13,500 36,947 141,319
Net non-cash contributions to unconsolidated entities........................................................... 367 232,616 27,880

Consolidation/deconsolidation of unconsolidated/cdd onsolidated entities, net:.............................
Inventories.............................................................................................................................. — (101,946) —
Operating properties and equipment and other assets............................................................ — 33,200 —
Investments in unconsolidated entities................................................................................... — 7,303 —
Other liabia lities....................................................................................................................... — 6,203 —
Noncontrolling interests ......................................................................................................... — 55,240 —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significff ant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lennar Corporrr ation and all
subsu idiaries, partnerships and other entities in which Lennar Corporrr ation has a controlling interest and VIEs (see Note 8) in
which Lennar Corporrr ation is deemed the primary beneficiary (rr the "Company"). The Company’s investments in both
unconsolidated entities in which a significant, but less than controlling, interest is held and in VIEs in which the Company is
not deemed to be the primary beneficiary arr re accounted for by the equity method. All intercompany transactions and balances
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conforff mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affeff ct the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actuat l results could diffeff r froff m those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Homebuilding revenues and related profits from sales of homes are recognized at the time of the closing of a sale,
when title to and possession of the property are transferff red to the homebuyer. In order to promote sales of homes, the
Company may offeff r sales incentives to homebuyers. The types of incentives vary on a community-by-community basis and
home-by-home basis. They include primarily price discounts on individual homes and finff ancing incentives, all of which are
reflected as a reducd tion of home sales revenues. For the years ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, sales incentives
offeff red to homebuyers averaged $42,900 per home, or 8.8% as a percentage of home sales revenues, $17,300 per home, or
3.5% as a percentage of home sales revenues and $9,000 per home, or 2.1% as a percentage of home sales revenues,
respectively. The Company’s performance obligation, to deliver the agreed-uponu home, is generally satisfied in less than one
year from the original contract date. Cash proceeds froff m home closings are included in Homebuilding cash and cash
equivalents in the Company's consolidated balance sheets. Contract liabia lities include customer deposits liabia lity related to
sold but undelivered homes that are included in other liabia lities in the Company's consolidated balance sheets. The Company
periodically elects to sell parcels of land to third parties. Cash consideration froff m land sales is typically due on the closing
date, which is generally when performance obligations are satisfied, and revenue is recognized as title to and possession of
the property are transferff red to the buyer.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs were $146.0 million, $102.1 million and
$74.2 million forff the years ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Share-Based Payments

The Company has share-based awards outstanding under the 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (the "Plan"), which
provides forff the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted common stock ("nonvested shares") and other
share based awards to offiff cers, associates and directors. The exercise prices of stock options may not be less than the market
value of the common stock on the date of the grant. Exercises are permitted in installments determined when options are
granted. Each stock option will expire on a date determined at the time of the grant, but not more than 10 years after the date
of the grant. The Company accounts forff stock option awards and nonvested share awards granted under the Plan based on the
estimated grant date fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. Due to the short maturt ity period of cash equivalents, the carrying amounts of these instruments
approximate their faiff r values. Homebuilding restricted cash consists of customer deposits on home sales held in restricted
accounts until title transfers to the homebuyer, as required by the state and local governments in which the homes were sold,
as well as funds on deposit to secure and support performance obligations. Financial Services restricted cash consists of
upfroff nt deposits and appla ication feesff LMF Commercial receives beforff e originating loans and is recognized as income once
the loan has been originated, as well as cash held in escrow by the Company’s loan service provider on behalf of customers
and lenders which is disbursed in accordance with agreements between the transacting parties.
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Homebuilding cash and cash equivalents as of November 30, 2023 and 2022 included $594.8 million and $1.0
billion, respectively, of cash held in escrow for appra oximately two days.

Receivables

At November 30, 2023 and 2022, Homebuilding accounts receivabla e primarily related to receivables fromff land
banks for land development, rebates and joint ventures. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and generally does not require collateral forff accounts receivabla e. Receivabla es from land banks represent development costs
incurred by the Company which are reimbursabla e froff m the land banks. Mortgages and notes receivabla e arising from the sale
of homes and land are generally collateralized by the property sold to the buyer. Allowances are maintained forff potential
credit losses based on historical experience, present economic conditions and other factors considered relevant by the
Company. Balances as of November 30, 2023 and 2022 are noted below:

November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Accounts receivable .................................................................................................................... $ 640,292 490,420
Mortgages and notes receivabla e .................................................................................................. 250,074 185,739

890,366 676,159
Allowance forff credit losses ......................................................................................................... (2,374) (2,179)
Receivables, net (1) ..................................................................................................................... $ 887,992 673,980
(1) Receivabla es, net as of November 30, 2022 included $50 million related to a short-term loan due from Upward America that was repaid

subsu equent to November 30, 2022.

Inventories

Finished homes and construcr tion in progress are included within inventories. Inventories are stated at cost unless the
inventory wrr ithin a community is determined to be impaired, in which case the impaired inventory irr s written down to faiff r
value. Inventory crr osts include land, land development and home construcr tion costs, real estate taxes, and interest related to
development and construcr tion. Construcr tion overhead and selling expenses are expensed as incurred. Homes held-for-sale are
classified as inventories until delivered. Land, land development, amenities and other costs are accumulated by specific area
and allocated to homes within the respective areas.

The Company reviews its inventory frr orff indicators of impairment by evaluating each community during each
reporting period. The inventory wrr ithin each community is categorized as finished homes and construcr tion in progress or land
under development based on the development state of the community. There were 1,255 and 1,200 active communities,
excluding unconsolidated entities, as of November 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. If the undiscounted cash flows expected
to be generated by a community are less than its carrying amount, an impairment charge is recorded to write down the
carrying amount of such community to its estimated faiff r value.

In conducting its review for indicators of impairment on a community level, the Company evaluates, among other
things, the margins on homes that have been delivered, margins on homes under sales contracts in backlog, projected margins
with regard to future home sales over the life off f the community, projeo cted margins with regard to future land sales and the
estimated faiff r value of the land itself. The Company pays particular attention to communities in which inventory irr s moving at
a slower than anticipated absorption pace and communities whose average sales price and/or margins are trending downward
and are anticipated to continue to trend downward. From this review, the Company identifieff s communities in which to assess
if the carrying values exceed their undiscounted projected cash floff ws.

The Company estimates the fair value of its communities using a discounted cash floff w model. The projeo cted cash
flows forff each community are significantly impacted by estimates related to market supplu y and demand, product type by
community, homesite sizes, sales pace, sales prices, sales incentives, construcr tion costs, sales and marketing expenses, the
local economy, competitive conditions, labor costs, costs of materials and other factors forff that particular community. Every
division evaluates the historical performance of each of its communities as well as current trends in the market and economy
impacting the community and its surrounding areas. These trends are analyzed for each of the estimates listed abovea .

Each of the homebuilding markets in which the Company operates is unique, as homebuilding has historically been
a local business driven by local market conditions and demographics. Each of the Company’s homebuilding markets has
specific supply and demand relationships reflective of local economic conditions. The Company’s projeo cted cash floff ws are
impacted by many assumptions. Some of the most critical assumptions in the Company’s cash floff w model are projected
absorption pace for home sales, sales prices and costs to build and deliver homes on a community by community basis.

LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
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In order to arrive at the assumed absa orptr ion pace for home sales and the assumed sales prices included in the
Company’s cash floff w model, the Company analyzes its historical absorption pace and historical sales prices in the
community and in other comparable communities in the geographical area. In addition, the Company considers internal and
external market studit es and places greater emphasis on more current metrics and trends, which generally include, but are not
limited to, statistics and forff ecasts on population demographics and on sales prices in neighboring communities,
unemployment rates and availability and sales prices of competing product in the geographical area where the community is
located as well as the absa orptr ion pace realized in its most recent quarters and the sales prices included in the Company's
current backlog forff such communities.

Generally, if the Company notices a variation from historical results over a span of two fisff cal quarters, the Company
considers such variation to be the establa ishment of a trend and adjud sts its historical information accordingly in order to
develop assumptions on the projeo cted absorption pace and sales prices in the cash floff w model forff a community.

In order to arrive at the Company’s assumed costs to build and deliver homes, the Company generally assumes a
cost structurt e refleff cting contracts currently in place with its vendors adjusted forff any anticipated cost reduction initiatives or
increases in cost structurt e. Those costs assumed are used in the cash floff w model forff the Company’s communities.

Since the estimates and assumptions included in the Company’s cash floff w models are based upon historical results
and projeo cted trends, they do not anticipate unexpected changes in market conditions or strategies that may lead the Company
to incur additional impairment charges in the futff urt e.

The determination of fair value requires discounting the estimated cash floff ws at a rate the Company believes a
market participant would determine to be commensurate with the inherent risks associated with the assets and related
estimated cash floff w streams. The discount rate used in determining each asset’s faiff r value depends on the community’s
projected life aff nd development stage.

The Company estimates the fair value of inventory err valuated for impairment based on market conditions and
assumptions made by management at the time the inventory irr s evaluated, which may diffeff r materially from actuat l results if
market conditions or assumptions change. For example, changes in market conditions and other specific developments or
changes in assumptions may cause the Company to re-evaluate its strategy regarding previously impaired inventory,rr as well
as inventory nrr ot currently impaired but for which indicators of impairment may arise if market deterioration occurs, and
certain other assets that could result in furff ther valuation adjustments and/or additional write-offs of option deposits and pre-
acquisition costs due to abandonment of those options contracts.

The Company's valuation adjustments for finff ished homes and construcrr tion in progress were included in
Homebuilding costs and expenses in the Company's consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss)
for the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022. The table below summarizes communities reviewed forff indicators of
impairment and communities with valuation adjustments recorded:

At November 30,
Communities with valuation adjud stments

for the years ended November 30,
# of communities with potential
indicators of impairment # of communities

Fair Value
(in thousands)

Valuation Adjustments
(in thousands)

2023................................................... 25 18 $ 95,731 $ 37,500
2022................................................... 15 9 105,042 33,563

The table below summarizes the most significant unobservabla e inputs used in the Company's discounted cash floff w
model to determine the faiff r value of its communities forff which the Company recorded valuation adjustments:

Years Ended November 30,
2023 2022

Unobservable inputsp Range Range

Average selling price (1)..................................................................... $179,000 — $850,000 $233,000 — $753,000
Absorption rate per quarter (homes)................................................... 3 — 26 2 — 12
Discount rate ....................................................................................... 20% 20%
(1) Represents the projected average selling price on future deliveries forff communities in which the Company recorded valuation
adjud stments durdd ing the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022.

In the course of executing on the Company’s land light strategy, the Company may sell land to third parties
(including land banks) and unconsolidated entities while maintaining an option to repurchase the land in the futff urt e. Although,
such transactions include cash consideration froff m the buyer and the transfer of title from the Company to the buyer, such
transactions do not meet the criteria forff revenue recognition under GAAP due to the Company’s option to repurchase the land
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from the buyer in the future. As such, land related to such transactions remains on the Company’s accompanying
consolidated balance sheet and is reclassified from land and land under development to consolidated inventory nrr ot owned.
The liabia lities related to consolidated inventory nrr ot owned primarily represent the difference between the option exercise
prices for the optioned land and the Company’s cash deposits. During the year ended November 30, 2023, consolidated
inventory nrr ot owned increased by $661.3 million with a corresponding increase to liabia lities related to consolidated inventoryrr
not owned in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of November 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to
reclassifications from land and land under development to consolidated inventory nrr ot owned durd ing the year ended
November 30, 2023 as the Company continued to focff us on increasing its controlled homesites as compared to owned
homesites. The increase was partially offsff et by takedowns during the year ended November 30, 2023.

Deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate

The Company has access to land inventory trr hrough option contracts, which generally enables the Company to deferff
acquiring portions of properties owned by third parties (including land banks) and unconsolidated entities until it has
determined whether to exercise its option. The use of option contracts allows the Company to reduce the financial risks
associated with long-term land holdings.

A majority of the Company’s option contracts require a non-refundabla e cash deposit or irrevocable letter of credit
based on a percentage of the purchase price of the land. As of November 30, 2023, the Company had $1.9 billion of non-
refundabla e option deposits and pre-acquisition costs related to certain of these homesites. The Company’s option contracts
sometimes include price adjustment provisions, which adjud st the purchase price of the land to its approximate fair value at the
time of acquisition or are based on the faiff r value at the time of takedown.

Deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate are stated at cost unless the deposit or pre-acquisition costs within a
community is determined to be impaired, in which case the impaired cost is written down to faiff r value. Costs include deposits
on land purchase contracts and capia talizable due diligence and development costs incurred prior to the acquisition of land.

Some option contracts contain a predetermined take-down scheduld e forff the optioned land parcels. However, in
subsu tantially all instances, the Company has the right and abia lity to not exercise its option and forfeit its deposit without
further penalty, other than termination of the option and loss of any unappla ied portion of its deposit and pre-acquisition costs
and the incurrence of any applicable termination feeff associated with the option contract. Therefore, in substantially all
instances, the Company does not consider the take-down price to be a firff m contractuat l obligation. In determining whether to
walk away from an option contract, the Company evaluates the option primarily based uponu its expected cash floff ws from the
property under option. If the Company intends to walk away from an option contract, it records a charge to earnings in the
period such decision is made for the unappla ied deposit amount and any related pre-acquisition costs and accruer s any
applicable termination feeff associated with the option contract. During the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022, the
Company wrote-off $19.9 million and $47.9 million, respectively, of deposit and pre-acquisition costs. To reflect the
purchase price of homesite takedowns related to option contracts that the Company decided to exercise, the Company had a
net reclass related to option deposits from consolidated inventory nrr ot owned to finff ished homes and construcr tion in progress
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of November 30, 2023.

Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

The Company evaluates the long-lived assets in unconsolidated entities forff indicators of impairment durd ing each
reporting period. If a valuation adjud stment is recorded by an unconsolidated entity related to its assets, the Company
generally uses a discount rate between 10% and 20%, subject to the perceived risks associated with the community’s cash
flow streams relative to its inventory orr r operating assets. The Company’s proportionate share of a valuation adjustment is
reflected in the Company's Homebuilding, Multifamff ily or Lennar Other equity in earnings (loss) from unconsolidated entities
with a corresponding decrease to its Homebuilding, Multifamff ily or Lennar Other investment in unconsolidated entities.

Additionally, the Company evaluates if a decrease in the faiff r value of an investment below its carrying value is
other-than-temporary.rr This evaluation includes certain critical assumptions made by management: (1) projected future
distributions from the unconsolidated entities, (2) discount rates appla ied to the future distributions, (3) the length of the time
and the extent to which the market value has been less than cost and (4) various other factff ors, which include age of the
venturt e, relationships with the other partners and banks, general economic market conditions, land status and liquidity needs
of the unconsolidated entity. If the decline in the fair value of the investment is other-than-temporary,rr then these losses are
included in Homebuilding other income, net, Multifamily other gain (loss) or Lennar Other other gain (loss). During the year
ended November 30, 2023, the Company estimated the fair value of an investment in an unconsolidated entity using a cash
flow analysis with a 15% discount rate and concluded that the investment had an other-than-temporary irr mpairment of $36.8
million included in Homebuilding other income (expense), net in the Company's consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income.
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The Company tracks its share of cumulative earnings and distributions of its joint ventures ("JVs"). For purposr es of
classifying distributions received froff m JVs in the Company’s consolidated statements of cash floff ws, cumulative distributions
are treated as returns on capital to the extent of cumulative earnings and included in the Company’s consolidated statements
of cash floff ws as operating activities. Cumulative distributions in excess of the Company’s share of cumulative earnings are
treated as returns of capital and included in the Company’s consolidated statements of cash floff ws as cash froff m investing
activities.

Variable Interest Entities

GAAP requires the assessment of whether an entity is a VIE and, if so, if the Company is the primary beneficiary arr t
the inception of the entity or at a reconsideration event. Additionally, GAAP requires the consolidation of VIEs in which an
enterprise has a controlling finff ancial interest. A controlling finff ancial interest will have both of the following characteristics:
(a) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and (b) the
obligation to absa orb lr osses of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the
VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE.

The Company’s variabla e interest in VIEs may be in the forff m of (1) equity ownership, (2) contracts to purchase
assets, (3) management and development agreements between the Company and a VIE, (4) loans provided by the Company
to a VIE or other partner and/or (5) guarantees provided by members to banks and other third parties. The Company
examines specific criteria and uses its judgment when determining if it is the primary beneficiary orr f a VIE. Factors
considered in determining whether the Company is the primary beneficiary irr nclude risk and reward sharing, experience and
financial condition of other partner(s), voting rights, involvement in day-to-day capital and operating decisions,
representation on a VIE’s executive committee, existence of unilateral kick-out rights or voting rights, level of economic
disproportionality, if any, between the Company and the other partner(s) and contracts to purchase assets from VIEs. The
determination of whether an entity is a VIE and, if so, whether the Company is the primary beneficiary mrr ay require
management to exercise significant judgment.

Generally, all majoa r decision making in the Company’s joint venturt es is shared among all partners. In particular,
business plans and budgets are generally required to be unanimously approved by all partners. Generally, the Company
purchases less than a majority of the JV’s assets and the purchase prices under its option contracts are at market.

Generally, Homebuilding and Multifamff ily unconsolidated entities are determined to be VIEs due to insufficff ient
equity at risk for the JV entity as the partner(s) continue to provide suboru dinated finff ancial supporu t in the form of capia tal
contributions. Homebuilding and Multifamff ily unconsolidated entities become VIEs and consolidate if the other partner(s)
lack the intent and financial wherewithal to remain in the entity. As a result, the Company continues to fundff operations and
debt paydowns through partner loans or subsu tituted capital contributions.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded with acquisitions of businesses when the purchase price of the business exceeds the fair value
of the net tangible and identifiaff bla e assets acquired. In accordance with ASC Topic 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Othett r
("ASC 350"), the Company evaluates goodwill for potential impairment on at least an annual basis. The Company has the
option to perform a qualitative or quantitative assessment to determine whether the faiff r value of a reporting unit exceeds its
carrying value. Qualitative facff tors may include, but are not limited to, economic conditions, industry arr nd market
considerations, cost facff tors, overall financial performance of the reporting units and other entity and reporting unit specific
events. The fair value estimate is derived through various valuation methods, including the use of discounted expected future
cash floff ws of each reporting unit. The expected future cash floff ws for each reporting unit are significantly impacted by current
market conditions. If these market conditions and resulting expected future cash floff ws for each reporting unit decline
significantly, the actual results forff each segment could diffeff r froff m the Company's estimate, which may cause goodwill to be
impaired. The annual goodwill impairment analysis was performed as of September 30, 2023, and no impairment was
recorded.
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Operating Properties and Equipment

Operating properties and equipment are recorded at cost and are included in other assets in the consolidated balance
sheets. The assets are depreciated over their estimated usefulff lives using the straight-line method. At the time operating
properties and equipment are disposed of, tff he asset and related accumulated depreciation are removed froff m the accounts and
any resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to earnings. The estimated useful life fff orff operating properties is 30 years, for
furniture, fixff tures and equipment is two to 10 years and for leasehold improvements is fivff e years or the life of the lease,
whichever is shorter. Operating properties are reviewed for possible impairment if there are indicators that their carrying
amounts are not recoverabla e.

Operating properties and equipment are included in Homebuilding other assets in the consolidated balance sheets
and were as folff lows:

November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Operating properties (1)............................................................................................................... $ 300,351 305,743
Leasehold improvements............................................................................................................. 72,994 68,951
Furniture, fixff tures and equipment ............................................................................................... 297,275 207,223

670,620 581,917
Accumulated depreciation and amortization ............................................................................... (265,831) (226,822)

$ 404,789 355,095
(1) Operating properties primarily include solar systems, rental operations and commercial properties.

Investment Securities

The Company holds investment securities classifieff d as available-forff -sale or held-to-maturt ity. Availabla e-for-sale
securities are recorded at fair value. Any unrealized holding gains or losses on availabla e-for-sale securities are reported as
accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, which is a separate component of stockholders’ equity, net of tax, until
realized. Securities classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost because they are purchased with the intent and
ability to hold to maturt ity.

At November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Financial Services segment had investment securities classified as held-to-
maturity totaling $140.7 million and $143.3 million, respectively, which consist mainly of commercial mortgage-backed
securities ("CMBS"), corporate debt obligations, U.S. government agency obligations, certificff ates of deposit and U.S.
treasury srr ecurities that maturt e at various dates, mainly within three years.

At November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Lennar Other segment had investment securities classified as held-for-sale
totaling $38.0 million and $35.5 million, respectively. Additionally, the Lennar Other segment had investments in equity
securities with a readily determinable fair value (publu icly traded common stock), not accounted for under the equity method,
that are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. For equity securities without a readily
determinable fair value, the investment is recorded at cost, less any impairment, plus or minus adjud stments related to
observabla e transactions for the same or similar securities, with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. The Lennar
Other segment had investments in equity securities of $297.2 million and $391.0 million that are recorded at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses included in earnings, as of November 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

For equity method investments in the Lennar Other segment, the Company records the investment as Lennar Other
investments in unconsolidated entities. The Company regularly reviews its investments in unconsolidated entities to
determine whether there is a decline in faiff r value below book value. If there is a decline that is other-than-temporary,rr the
investment is written down to faiff r value. There were no impairments recorded during the years ended November 30, 2023
and 2022.

Interest and Real Estate Taxes
Interest and real estate taxes attributable to land and homes are capitalized as inventory crr osts while they are being

actively developed. Interest related to homebuilding and land, including interest costs relieved froff m inventories, is included
in costs of homes sold and costs of land sold. Interest expense related to the Financial Services and Multifamff ily operations is
included in its costs and expenses.

During the years ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, interest incurred by the Company’s homebuilding
operations related to homebuilding debt was $187.6 million, $230.8 million and $275.1 million, respectively; interest
capitalized into inventories was $172.0 million, $211.7 million and $254.9 million, respectively.
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Interest expense was included in costs of homes sold, costs of land sold and other interest expense as folff lows:
Years Ended November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Interest expense in costs of homes sold........................................................... $ 240,871 293,105 342,756
Interest expense in costs of land sold .............................................................. 1,588 498 2,475
Other interest expense (1)................................................................................ 15,434 19,128 20,142
Total interest expense ...................................................................................... $ 257,893 312,731 365,373
(1) Included in Homebuilding other income, net.

Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes under the asset and liability method, whereby deferff red tax assets and liabia lities
are recognized based on the future tax consequences attributable to temporary drr iffeff rences between the finff ancial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabia lities and their respective tax bases and attributable to operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. Deferff red tax assets and liabia lities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in
which the temporary drr iffeff rences are expected to be recovered or paid. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabia lities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period when the changes are enacted. Interest related to unrecognized tax
benefits is recognized in the finff ancial statements as a component of income tax expense.

A reducd tion of the carrying amounts of deferff red tax assets by a valuation allowance is required if, based on the
availabla e evidence, it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized. Accordingly, the need to establa ish valuation
allowances for deferff red tax assets is assessed each reporting period by the Company based on the consideration of all
availabla e positive and negative evidence using a "more-likely-than-not" standard with respect to whether deferff red tax assets
will be realized. This assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, freff quency and severity of current and
cumulative losses, actual earnings, forff ecasts of future profitff ability, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, the
Company’s experience with loss carryforwards not expiring unused and tax planning alternatives.

Based on the analysis of positive and negative evidence, the Company believed that there was enough positive
evidence for the Company to conclude that it was more likely than not that the Company would realize the majoa rity of its
deferred tax assets. As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company's net deferred tax assets of $326.5 million and $242.4
million included a valuation allowance of $2.3 million and $2.9 million, respectively. See Note 5 forff additional inforff mation.

Other Liabilities

Reflected within the consolidated balance sheets, the other liabia lities balance as of November 30, 2023 and 2022,
included accruer d interest payable, product warranty (as noted below), accruer d bonuses, accruer d wages and benefitsff , lease
liabia lities, deferff red income, customer deposits, income taxes payabla e, and other accruer d liabia lities.

Product Warranty

Warranty and similar reserves for homes are established at an amount estimated to be adequate to cover potential
costs forff materials and labora with regard to warranty-type claims expected to be incurred subsequent to the delivery orr f a
home. Reserves are determined based on historical data and trends with respect to similar product types and geographical
areas. The Company regularly monitors the warranty reserve and makes adjud stments to its pre-existing warranties in order to
reflect changes in trends and historical data as information becomes availabla e. Warranty reserves are included in
Homebuilding other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The activity in the Company’s warranty reserve was as
follows:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Warranty reserve, beginning of year ................................................................................... $ 418,017 377,021
Warranties issued................................................................................................................. 286,019 274,766
Adjud stments to pre-existing warranties froff m changes in estimates (1)............................... 566 26,222
Payments.............................................................................................................................. (289,806) (259,992)
Warranty reserve, end of year ............................................................................................. $ 414,796 418,017
(1) The adjud stments to pre-existing warranties froff m changes in estimates durdd ing the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022 primarily

related to specific claims in certain of the Company's homebuilding communities and other adjustments.
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Self-Iff nsurance

Reserves for estimated losses forff construcr tion defects, general liabia lity and workers’ compensation have been
establa ished using the assistance of a third-party actuat ry. The third-party actuat ry uses the Company's historical warranty and
construcr tion defecff t data to assist management in estimating the unpaid claims, claim adjud stment expenses and incurred but
not reported claims reserves forff the risks that the Company is assuming under the general liabia lity and construcr tion defect
programs. The estimates include provisions for inflaff tion, claims handling and legal feesff . These estimates are subju ect to a high
degree of variability dued to uncertainties such as trends in construcr tion defectff claims relative to the markets and the types of
products the Company builds, claim settlement patterns, insurance industry prr ractices and legal interpretations. Given the high
degree of judgment required in determining these estimated liabia lity amounts, actuat l futff urt e costs could diffeff r significantly
from the Company's currently estimated amounts. The Company’s self-insurance reserve, net of expected recoveries, as of
November 30, 2023 and 2022 was $245.8 million and $210.1 million, respectively, and was included in Homebuilding other
liabia lities. Amounts incurred in excess of the Company's self-insurance occurrence or aggregate retention limits are covered
by insurance up tu o the Company's purchased coverage levels. The Company's insurance policies are maintained with highly-
rated underwriters for whom the Company believes counterpar rty defauff lt risk is not significant.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings attributable to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted
in the issuance of common stock that then shared in earnings of the Company.

All outstanding nonvested shares that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents that
participate in undistributed earnings with common stock are considered participating securities and are included in computing
earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method. The two-class method is an earnings allocation forff mula that determines
earnings per share for each class of common stock and participating securities according to dividends or dividend equivalents
and participation rights in undistributed earnings. The Company’s restricted common stock ("nonvested shares") are
considered participating securities.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 500,000 shares of preferff red stock with a par value of $10 per share and 100
million shares of participating preferred stock with a par value of $0.10 per share. No shares of preferred stock or
participating preferred stock have been issued as of November 30, 2023 and 2022.

Common Stock

During the years ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 the Company’s Class A and Class B common
stockholders received a per share annual dividend of $1.50, $1.50 and $1.00, respectively. The only significant diffeff rence
between the Class A common stock and Class B common stock is that Class A common stock entitles holders to one vote per
share and the Class B common stock entitles holders to ten votes per share.

As of November 30, 2023, Stuart Miller, the Company’s Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officff er,
directly owned, or controlled through family-owned entities, shares of Class A and Class B common stock, which represented
approximately 36% voting power of the Company’s stock.

In March 2022, the Company's Board of Directors appra oved an authorization forff the Company to repurchase up tu o
the lesser of $2 billion in value, or 30 million in shares, of its outstanding Class A or Class B common stock. The repurchase
authorization has no expiration date. The authorization was in addition to what was remaining of the October 2021 stock
repurchase program. Subsequent to November 30, 2023, the Company's Board of Directors authorized an increase to its stock
repurchase program to enable the Company to repurchase up tu o an additional $5 billion in value of our outstanding Class A or
Class B common stock. Repurchases are authorized to be made in open-market or private transactions. The repurchase
authorization has no expiration date.

Years Ended
November 30, 2023 November 30, 2022

(Dollall rs in thousands,dd except price per share)e Class A Class B Class A Class B

Shares repurchased .................................................................................. 7,499,660 2,500,340 9,628,203 1,339,797
Total purchase price................................................................................. $ 851,502 $ 248,835 $ 868,788 $ 98,613
Average price per share ........................................................................... $ 113.54 $ 99.52 $ 90.23 $ 73.60
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Restrictions on Payment of Dividends

There are no restrictions on the payment of dividends on common stock by the Company. There are no agreements
which restrict the payment of dividends by subsu idiaries of the Company other than the need to maintain the finff ancial ratios
and net worth requirements under the Financial Services segment’s warehouse lines of credit, which restrict the payment of
dividends from the Company’s mortgage subsidiaries following the occurrence and during the continuance of an event of
default thereunder.

401(k) Plan

Under the Company’s 401(k) Plan (the "Plan"), contributions made by associates can be invested in a variety of
mutual funds or proprietary funds provided by the Plan trusr tee. The Company may also make contributions for the benefit of
associates. The Company records as compensation expense its contribution to the Plan. For the years ended November 30,
2023, 2022 and 2021, this amount was $53.4 million, $37.5 million and $29.4 million, respectively.

Share-Based Payments

Compensation expense related to the Company’s share-based awards was as folff lows:
Years Ended November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Total compensation expense forff nonvested share-based awards..................... $ 160,720 184,086 135,090

The faiff r value of nonvested shares is determined based on the trading price of the Company’s common stock on the
grant date. The weighted average fair value of nonvested shares granted durd ing the years ended November 30, 2023, 2022
and 2021 was $91.61, $88.92 and $80.95, respectively. A summary of the Company’s nonvested shares activity for the year
ended November 30, 2023 was as folff lows:

Shares
Weighted Average Grant

Date Fair Value

Nonvested shares at November 30, 2022 ..................................................................... 3,152,146 $ 80.39
Grants .................................................................................................................... 2,389,995 $ 91.61
Vested.................................................................................................................... (2,035,786) $ 73.53
Forfeited ................................................................................................................ (535,595) $ 89.29

Nonvested shares at November 30, 2023 ..................................................................... 2,970,760 $ 92.51

At November 30, 2023, there was $112.5 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested share-
based awards granted under the Company’s share-based payment plan, all of which relates to nonvested shares with a
weighted average remaining contractuat l life off f 1.8 years. For the years ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, 2.0
million, 1.6 million and 1.8 million nonvested shares, respectively, vested each year.

Financial Servirr ces

Revenue Recognition

Premiums on title policies issued directly by the Company are recognized as revenue on the effective date of the title
policies. Escrow fees and loan origination revenues are recognized at the time the related real estate transactions are
completed, usually uponu the close of escrow. Expected gains and losses froff m the sale of loans and their related servicing
rights are included in the measurement of all written loan commitments that are accounted for at faiff r value through earnings
at the time of commitment. Interest income on loans held-for-sale and loans held-for-investment is recognized as earned over
the terms of the mortgage loans based on the contractuat l interest rates.

Loans Held-fdd orff -SalSS e

Loans held-for-sale by the Financial Services segment, including the rights to service the mortgage loans, are carried
at fair value and changes in faiff r value are refleff cted in earnings. Premiums and discounts recorded on these loans are presented
as an adjud stment to the carrying amount of the loans and are not amortized. Management believes carrying loans held-for-sale
at fair value improves finff ancial reporting by mitigating volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring the fair value of
the loans and the derivative instrumr ents used to economically hedge them without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions.

In addition, the Financial Services segment recognizes the fair value of its rights to service a mortgage loan as
revenue upon entering into an interest rate lock loan commitment with a borrower. The faiff r value of these servicing rights is
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included in Financial Services' other assets as of November 30, 2023 and 2022. Fair value of the servicing rights is
determined based on values in the Company’s servicing sales contracts.

Provision forff Losses

The Company establa ishes reserves forff possible losses associated with mortgage loans previously originated and sold
to investors based upon, among other things, an analysis of repurchase requests received, an estimate of potential repurchase
claims not yet received and actual past repurchases and losses through the disposition of affected loans, as well as previous
settlements. Loan origination liabia lities are included in Financial Services’ liabia lities in the consolidated balance sheets. The
activity in the Company’s loan origination liabia lities was as folff lows:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Loan origination liabia lities, beginning of year .................................................................... $ 11,787 11,670
Provision for losses.............................................................................................................. 6,939 966
Payments.............................................................................................................................. (1,128) (849)
Loan origination liabia lities, end of year............................................................................... $ 17,598 11,787

Loans Held-fdd orff -Investmett nt, Nt etNN

Loans forff which the Company has the positive intent and abia lity to hold to maturt ity consist of mortgage loans
carried at the principal amounts outstanding, net of unamortized discounts and allowance forff credit losses. Discounts are
amortized over the estimated lives of the loans using the interest method.

The Financial Services segment provides an allowance forff credit losses. The provision recorded and the adequacy of
the related allowance is determined by management’s continuing evaluation of the loan portfolff io in light of past loan loss
experience, credit worthiness and nature of underlying collateral, present economic conditions and other factors considered
relevant by the Company’s management. Anticipated changes in economic factors, which may influence the level of the
allowance, are considered in the evaluation by the Company’s management when the likelihood of the changes can be
reasonabla y determined. While the Company’s management uses the best information availabla e to make such evaluations,
future adjud stments to the allowance may be necessary as a result of futff urt e economic and other conditions that may be beyond
management’s control.

Derivative FinFF ancial InsII truments

The Financial Services segment, in the normal course of business, uses derivative finff ancial instruments to reducd e its
exposure to fluff ctuat tions in mortgage-related interest rates. The segment uses mortgage-backed securities ("MBS") forward
commitments, option contracts, future contracts and investor commitments to protect the value of fixed rate-locked loan
commitments and loans held-for-sale froff m fluff ctuat tions in mortgage-related interest rates. These derivative finff ancial
instruments are carried at fair value with the changes in faiff r value included in Financial Services revenues.

LMF CMM omCC mercial - Loans Held-fdd orff -SalSS e

The originated mortgage loans are classifieff d as loans held-for-sale and are recorded at fair value. The Company
elected the faiff r value option forff LMF Commercial's loans held-forff -sale in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") 825, Financial InsII truments, which permits entities to measure various financial instrumr ents and certain
other items at fair value on a contract-by-contract basis. Management believes that carrying loans held-for-sale at faiff r value
improves finff ancial reporting by mitigating volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring the fair value of the loans and
the derivative instrumrr ents, which are also carried at fair value, used to economically hedge them without having to apply
complex hedge accounting provisions. Changes in faiff r values of the loans are reflected in Financial Services revenues in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Interest income on these loans is calculated based on the interest rate of
the loan and is recorded in Financial Services revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Subsu tantially all of the mortgage loans originated are sold within a short period of time in securitizations on a servicing-
released, non-recourse basis; although, the Company remains liabla e forff certain limited industry-rr standard representations and
warranties related to loan sales. The Company recognizes revenue on the sale of loans into securitization trusts when control
of the loans has been relinquished.

Multifamily

Management Fees and General ContCC rat ctor Revenue

The Multifamff ily segment provides management services with respect to the development, construcrr tion and property
management of rental projects in joint venturt es in which the Company has investments. As a result, the Multifamff ily segment
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earns and receives feesff , which are generally based uponu a stated percentage of development and construcr tion costs and a
percentage of gross rental collections. In addition, the Multifamily segment provides general contractor services for the
construcr tion of some of its rental projects. Both management fees and general contractor revenue are recognized over the
period in which the services are performed using an input method, which properly depicts the level of effoff rt required to
complete the management or construcr tion services. These customer contracts require the Company to provide management
and general contractor services which represents a performance obligation that the Company satisfies over time. Management
fees and general contractor services in the Multifamff ily segment are included in Multifamff ily revenue.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In December, 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09 (“ASU 2023-09”) Income Taxesaa (TopiTT c 740): ImpII rovements to
Income Tax Daa isclosures. ASU 2023-09 requires public companies to annually (1) disclose specific categories in the rate
reconciliation and (2) provide additional inforff mation for reconciling items that meet a quantitative threshold (if the effect of
those reconciling items is equal to or greater than 5 percent of the amount computed by multiplying pretax income or loss by
the appla icable statutt ory irr ncome tax rate). ASU 2023-09 will be effeff ctive forff the annual reporting periods in fiscal years
beginning afteff r December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating ASU 2023-09 and does not expect it to have a
material effeff ct on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, "Imprm ovements to Repore table SegSS megg nt Discii losures" ("ASU
2023-07"). ASU 2023-07 requires disclosure of significant segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker ("CODM") and included within the segment measure of profit or loss, an amount and description of
its composition for other segment items to reconcile to segment profitff or loss, and the title and position of the entity’s
CODM. ASU 2023-07 will be applied retrospectively and is effective forff annual reporting periods in fiscal years beginning
afteff r December 15, 2023, and interim reporting periods in fiscal years beginning afteff r December 31, 2024. The Company is
currently reviewing the impact that the adoption of ASU 2023-07 may have on its Consolidated Financial Statements and
disclosure.

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU 2020-04, Refee rence Rate Reforff m,
which provides optional expedients and exceptions for appla ying U.S. GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships, and other
transactions affeff cted by the discontinuation of the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) or by another referff ence rate
expected to be discontinued. The guidance was effeff ctive beginning March 12, 2020 and can be applied prospectively through
December 31, 2024, with earlier adoption permitted. In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01, Refee rence Rate
Refoe rm - ScoSS peo , which clarified the scope and appla ication of the original guidance. In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU
2022-06 Refee rence Rate Reforff m - Defee rral of to hett Sunset Date of Topio c 848, which deferff s the sunset date from December 31,
2022 to December 31, 2024. The adoption of ASU 2020-04 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the Company's consolidated statement of operations and consolidated balance sheets of prior
year have been reclassified to conforff m to the fiscal 2023 presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on the
Company's total assets, total equity, revenues or net earnings in its consolidated financial statements.

2. Operating and Reporting Segments

Each reportabla e segment follows the accounting policies described in Note 1 - "Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies" to the consolidated financial statements. Operational results of each segment are not necessarily indicative of the
results that would have occurred had the segment been an independent, stand-alone entity during the periods presented.

The Company's homebuilding operations construcr t and sell homes primarily for firff st-time, move-up au nd active adult
homebuyers primarily under the Lennar brand name. In addition, the Company's homebuilding operations purchase, develop
and sell land to third parties. The Company's chief operating decision makers manage and assess the Company's performance
at a regional level. Therefore, the Company performed an assessment of its operating segments in accordance with ASC 280,
Segme ent Reporting, and determined that the folff lowing are its operating and reportabla e segments:

Homebuilding segments: (1) East (2) Central (3) Texas (4) West
(5) Financial Services
(6) Multifamily
(7) Lennar Other
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The assets and liabia lities related to the Company’s segments were as folff lows:

(In tII hott usands)s November 30, 2023

Assets: Homebuilding
Financial
Services Multifamff ily

Lennar
Other Total

Cash and cash equivalents................................... $ 6,273,724 159,491 39,334 1,948 6,474,497
Restricted cash..................................................... 13,481 82,960 — — 96,441
Receivabla es, net (1) ............................................. 887,992 716,071 92,142 — 1,696,205
Inventories........................................................... 18,352,735 — 544,935 — 18,897,670
Loans held-for-sale (2) ........................................ — 2,086,809 — — 2,086,809
Investments in equity securities (3)..................... — — — 297,243 297,243
Investments availabla e-for-sale (4)....................... — — — 37,953 37,953
Loans held-for-investment, net ........................... — 55,463 — — 55,463
Investments held-to-maturt ity .............................. — 140,676 — — 140,676
Deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate 2,002,154 — 32,063 — 2,034,217
Investments in unconsolidated entities................ 1,143,909 — 599,852 276,244 2,020,005
Goodwill.............................................................. 3,442,359 189,699 — — 3,632,058
Other assets ......................................................... 1,512,038 135,377 73,187 44,464 1,765,066

$ 33,628,392 3,566,546 1,381,513 657,852 39,234,303
Liabilities:
Notes and other debts payabla e, net...................... $ 2,816,482 2,163,805 3,741 — 4,984,028
Accounts payable and other liabia lities ................ 6,911,512 283,234 274,436 79,127 7,548,309

$ 9,727,994 2,447,039 278,177 79,127 12,532,337

(In tII hott usands)s November 30, 2022

Assets: Homebuilding
Financial
Services Multifamff ily

Lennar
Other Total

Cash and cash equivalents................................... $ 4,616,124 139,378 17,827 5,391 4,778,720
Restricted cash..................................................... 23,046 14,004 — — 37,050
Receivabla es, net (1) ............................................. 673,980 826,163 114,134 — 1,614,277
Inventories........................................................... 19,698,286 — 401,619 — 20,099,905
Loans held-for-sale (2) ........................................ — 1,776,311 — — 1,776,311
Investments in equity securities (3)..................... — — — 391,026 391,026
Investments availabla e-for-sale (4)....................... — — — 35,482 35,482
Loans held-for-investment, net ........................... — 45,636 — — 45,636
Investments held-to-maturt ity .............................. — 143,251 — — 143,251
Deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate 1,733,725 — 28,823 — 1,762,548
Investments in unconsolidated entities................ 1,173,164 — 648,126 316,523 2,137,813
Goodwill.............................................................. 3,442,359 189,699 — — 3,632,058
Other assets ......................................................... 1,323,478 119,815 46,808 40,117 1,530,218

$ 32,684,162 3,254,257 1,257,337 788,539 37,984,295
Liabilities:
Notes and other debts payabla e, net...................... $ 4,047,294 2,135,093 16,749 — 6,199,136
Accounts payable and other liabia lities ................ 6,931,352 218,811 296,735 97,894 7,544,792

$ 10,978,646 2,353,904 313,484 97,894 13,743,928
(1) Receivabla es, net for Financial Services primarily related to loans sold to investors forff which the Company had not yet been paid as of
November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, respectively.

(2) Loans held-for-sale related to unsold residential and commercial loans carried at fair value.
(3) Investments in equity securities include investments of $121.0 million and $178.0 million without readily availabla e faiff r values as of
November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, respectively.

(4) Investments availabla e-for-sale are carried at fair value with changes in faiff r value recorded as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) on the consolidated balance sheets.
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Financial inforff mation relating to the Company’s segments was as follows:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Revenues:
Homebuilding .................................................................................................... $ 32,660,987 31,951,335 25,545,242
Financial Services ............................................................................................. 976,859 809,680 898,745
Multifamff ily (1)................................................................................................... 573,485 865,603 665,232
Lennar Other ...................................................................................................... 22,035 44,392 21,457

$ 34,233,366 33,671,010 27,130,676
Earnings (loss) before income taxes:
Homebuilding .................................................................................................... $ 5,527,707 6,777,317 5,031,762
Financial Services (2) ........................................................................................ 509,461 383,302 491,014
Multifamff ily ........................................................................................................ (50,651) 69,493 21,453
Lennar Other (3) ................................................................................................ (209,788) (734,649) 733,035
Corporate and Unallocated (4)........................................................................... (574,425) (480,897) (458,206)

$ 5,202,304 6,014,566 5,819,058

(1) Revenues forff Multifamff ily for the year ended November 30, 2022 included $237.5 million of land sales to unconsolidated entities.
(2) Financial Services operating earnings forff the year ended November 30, 2022, included a $35.5 million one-time charge due to an
increase in a litigation accruarr l related to a court judgement.

(3) Operating loss forff Lennar Other for the year ended November 30, 2023 included $50.2 million of mark-to-market unrealized losses on
the Company's publicly traded technology investments and a $65.0 million write-off of one of the Company's non-public technology
investments. Operating loss forff Lennar Other for the year ended November 30, 2022 included $655.1 million of mark-to-market
unrealized losses on the Company's publicly traded technology investments. Operating earnings for Lennar Other for the year ended
November 30, 2021 included $510.8 million of mark-to-market unrealized gains on the Company's publicly traded technology
investments.

(4) Corporrr ate and unallocated expenses primarily represent costs of operations at the Company's corporrr ate headquarters in Miami. These
operations include the Company's executive offices, inforff mation technology, treasury,r corporate accounting and tax, legal, internal
audit and human resources. Also included are property expenses related to the leases of corporate offices, data processing, general
corporate expenses and charitabla e fouff ndation contributions to the Lennar Foundation.
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Homebuildindd g SegSS megg ntstt

Information abouta homebuilding activities in states which are not economically similar to other states in the same
geographic area is grouped under "Homebuilding Other," which is not considered a reportabla e segment.

Evaluation of segment performance is based primarily on operating earnings (loss) before income taxes. Operations
of the Company’s Homebuilding segments primarily include the construcrr tion and sale of single-family attached and detached
homes, as well as the purchase, development and sale of residential land directly and through the Company’s unconsolidated
entities. Operating earnings (loss) for the Homebuilding segments consist of revenues generated from the sales of homes and
land, other revenues froff m management feesff and forff feited deposits, equity in earnings (loss) from unconsolidated entities and
other income (expense), net, less the cost of homes sold and land sold, and selling, general and administrative expenses
incurred by the segment. Homebuilding Other also includes management of a fund that acquires single-family homes and
holds them as rental properties.

The Company’s reportabla e Homebuilding segments and all other homebuilding operations not required to be
reported separately, have homebuilding divisions located in:

East: Alabama, Florida, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and South Carolina
Central: Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, North Carolina, Tennessee and Virginia
Texas: Texas
West: Arizona, Califorff nia, Colorado, Idaho, Nevada, Oregon, Utah and Washington
Other: Urbar n divisions and other homebuilding related investments primarily in Califorff nia, including FivePoint

Holdings, LLC ("FivePoint")
The assets related to the Company's Homebuilding segments were as folff lows:

November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022
East ............................................................................................................................................................... $ 7,206,500 6,877,581
Central .......................................................................................................................................................... 3,868,564 4,010,610
Texas............................................................................................................................................................. 3,337,280 3,742,663
West ............................................................................................................................................................. 11,298,812 12,182,709
Other ............................................................................................................................................................. 1,511,541 1,382,864
Corporate and Unallocated .......................................................................................................................... 6,405,695 4,487,735
Total Homebuilding ................................................................................................................................ $ 33,628,392 32,684,162
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Financial inforff mation relating to the Company’s homebuilding segments was as follows:
Years Ended November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Revenues:
East ............................................................................................................................ $ 9,651,710 9,266,013 6,870,944
Central ....................................................................................................................... 6,177,004 5,846,023 4,826,535
Texas ......................................................................................................................... 4,707,285 4,227,771 3,241,321
West .......................................................................................................................... 12,086,172 12,571,386 10,563,756
Other.......................................................................................................................... 38,816 40,142 42,686

$ 32,660,987 31,951,335 25,545,242
Operating earnings (loss):
East ............................................................................................................................ $ 2,147,330 2,240,256 1,455,432
Central ....................................................................................................................... 949,542 889,231 720,419
Texas ......................................................................................................................... 788,548 929,237 730,465
West........................................................................................................................... 1,712,966 2,773,597 2,192,446
Other.......................................................................................................................... (70,679) (55,004) (67,000)

$ 5,527,707 6,777,317 5,031,762

Interest expense:
East ............................................................................................................................ $ 60,343 78,345 90,314
Central ....................................................................................................................... 41,429 54,547 58,899
Texas ......................................................................................................................... 29,754 29,442 28,764
West........................................................................................................................... 115,600 140,017 176,633
Other.......................................................................................................................... 10,467 10,380 10,763

$ 257,593 312,731 365,373

Depreciation and amortization:
East ............................................................................................................................ $ 36,723 24,888 24,531
Central ....................................................................................................................... 23,643 15,219 16,118
Texas ......................................................................................................................... 10,227 9,354 9,821
West........................................................................................................................... 62,374 54,055 49,691
Other.......................................................................................................................... 286 774 1,238

$ 133,253 104,290 101,399

Net addition to (disposal of) operating properties and equipment:
East ............................................................................................................................ $ 1,024 2,651 219
Central ....................................................................................................................... 1,144 363 239
Texas ......................................................................................................................... 679 136 (9)
West........................................................................................................................... 1,176 1,414 26,375
Other.......................................................................................................................... 45,754 6,537 14,950

$ 49,777 11,101 41,774

Finaii ncial SerSS vices

Operations of the Financial Services segment include mortgage financing, title and closing services primarily for
buyers of the Company’s homes. They also include originating and selling into securitizations commercial mortgage loans
through its LMF Commercial business. The Financial Services segment sells subsu tantially all of the loans it originates within
a short period of time in the secondary mortgage market, the majoa rity of which are sold on a servicing-released, non-recourse
basis. Afteff r the loans are sold, the Company retains potential liabia lity for possible claims by purchasers that it breached
certain limited industry srr tandard representations and warranties in the loan sale agreements. Financial Services’ operating
earnings consist of revenues generated primarily from mortgage financing, title and closing services, and property and
casualty insurance, less the cost of such services and certain selling, general and administrative expenses incurred by the
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segment. The Financial Services segment operates generally in the same states as the Company’s homebuilding operations.
At November 30, 2023, the Financial Services segment had warehouse faciff lities which were all 364-day repurchase

facilities and were used to fund residential mortgages or commercial mortgages for LMF Commercial as folff lows:
Maximum Aggregate Commitment

(In tII hott usands)s Committed Amount Uncommitted Amount Total

Residential faciff lities maturt ing:
December 2023 (1) ...................................................................................... $ 500,000 — 500,000
April 2024.................................................................................................... 250,000 250,000 500,000
May 2024 (2) ............................................................................................... 1,500,000 — 1,500,000
June 2024..................................................................................................... 100,000 400,000 500,000
September 2024 ........................................................................................... 100,000 100,000 200,000
Total residential faciff lities ............................................................................ $ 2,450,000 750,000 3,200,000
LMF commercial faciff lities maturt ing:
November 2023 (1)...................................................................................... 100,000 — 100,000
December 2023 (3) ...................................................................................... 400,000 — 400,000
Total LMF commercial faciff lities................................................................. $ 500,000 — 500,000
Total .......................................................................................................... $ 3,700,000
(1) Subsequent to November 30, 2023, the maturity date of December 2023 was extended to March 2024 and the maturity date of

November 2023 was extended to January 2024.
(2) In December 2023, the maximum aggregate commitment was reduced to $600 million until maturity in May 2024.
(3) Consists of two commercial facff ilities each with maximum aggregate commitment amounts of $200 million. Subsu equent to

November 30, 2023, one of the faciff lity's maturity date was extended to December 2024.

The Financial Services segment uses the residential mortgage loan warehouse faciff lities to finff ance its residential
lending activities until the mortgage loans are sold to investors and the proceeds are collected. The facilities are non-recourse
to the Company and are expected to be renewed or replaced with other faciff lities when they maturt e. The LMF Commercial
facilities finff ance LMF Commercial loan originations and securitization activities and were secured by up tu o 80% interests in
the originated commercial loans financed.

Borrowings and collateral under the facilities were as follows:
November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Borrowings under residential facilities...................................................................................... $ 2,020,187 1,877,411
Collateral under residential facilities......................................................................................... 2,097,020 1,950,155
Borrowings under LMF Commercial faciff lities ......................................................................... 12,525 124,399

If the facff ilities are not renewed or replaced, the borrowings under the lines of credit will be repaid by selling the
mortgage loans held-for-sale to investors and by collecting receivables on loans sold but not yet paid forff . Without the
facilities, the Financial Services segment would have to use cash froff m operations and other funding sources to finance its
lending activities.

Subsu tantially all of the residential loans the Financial Services segment originates are sold within a short period in
the secondary mortgage market on a servicing-released, non-recourse basis. Afteff r the loans are sold, the Company retains
potential liabia lity for possible claims by purchasers that it breached certain limited industry-rr standard representations and
warranties in the loan sale agreements. Purchasers sometimes try to defray losses by purporr ting to have foundff inaccuracies
related to sellers’ representations and warranties in particular loan sale agreements. Mortgage investors could seek to have the
Company buy back mortgage loans or compensate them forff losses incurred on mortgage loans that the Company has sold
based on claims that the Company breached its limited representations or warranties. The Company’s mortgage operations
have establa ished accruar ls for possible losses associated with mortgage loans previously originated and sold to investors. The
Company establishes accruarr ls for such possible losses based upon, among other things, an analysis of repurchase requests
received, an estimate of potential repurchase claims not yet received and actuat l past repurchases and losses through the
disposition of affected loans as well as previous settlements. While the Company believes that it has adequately reserved for
known losses and projected repurchase requests, given the volatility in the residential mortgage industry arr nd the uncertainty
regarding the ultimate resolution of these claims, if either actuat l repurchases or the losses incurred resolving those
repurchases exceed the Company’s expectations, additional recourse expense may be incurred. The provision for loan losses
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was immaterial forff both the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022. As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, loan origination
liabia lities were $17.6 million and $11.8 million, respectively, and included in Financial Services’ liabia lities in the Company's
consolidated balance sheets.

LMF CMM omCC mercial - loans held-fdd orff -sale

LMF Commercial originated commercial loans as follows:
Years Ended November 30,

(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

Originations (1)............................................................................................................................. $ 466,043 740,345
Sold ............................................................................................................................................... $ 430,707 715,933
Securitizations............................................................................................................................... 10 6
(1) During both years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022, the commercial loans originated were recorded as loans held-for-sale, which

are held at faiff r value.

Investments held-tdd o-maturity

At November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Financial Services segment held commercial mortgage-backed securities
("CMBS"). These securities are classified as held-to-maturity based on the segment's intent and ability to hold the securities
until maturity and changes in estimated cash floff ws are reviewed periodically to determine if an other-than-temporaryrr
impairment has occurred. Based on the segment’s assessment, no impairment charges were recorded during the years ended
November 30, 2023 and 2022. The Company has finff ancing agreements to finance CMBS that have been purchased as
investments by the Financial Services segment.

Details related to Financial Services' CMBS were as folff lows:
November 30

(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

Carrying value.............................................................................................................................. $ 140,676 143,251
Outstanding debt, net of debt issuance costs................................................................................ $ 131,093 133,283
Incurred interest rate..................................................................................................................... 3.4 % 3.4 %

November 30, 2023

Discount rates at purchase ....................................................................................................... 6% — 84%
Coupon rates ............................................................................................................................ 2.0% — 5.3%
Distribution dates..................................................................................................................... October 2027 — December 2028
Stated maturity dates................................................................................................................ October 2050 — December 2051

Multifamff ily

The Company is actively involved, primarily through unconsolidated funds and joint venturt es, in the development,
construcr tion and property management of multifamff ily rental properties. The Multifamff ily segment focff uses on developing a
geographically diversifieff d portfolff io of institutional quality multifamff ily rental properties in select U.S. markets.

The Multifamff ily Segment (i) manages, and owns interests in, funds that are engaged in the development of
multifamily residential communities with the intention of holding the newly construcr ted and occupiu ed properties as income
and feeff generating assets, and (ii) manages, and owns interests in, joint venturt es that are engaged in the development of
multifamily residential communities, in most instances with the intention of selling them when they are built and substantially
occupiu ed. The multifamff ily business is a vertically integrated platform with capabilities spanning development, construcr tion,
property management, asset management, and capital markets. Revenues are generated froff m the sales of land, from
construcr tion activities, and management and promote fees generated froff m joint venturt es and other gains (which includes
sales of buildings), less the cost of sales of land sold, expenses related to construcr tion activities and general and
administrative expenses. Operations of the Multifamff ily Segment also include equity in earnings (loss) from unconsolidated
entities.

Lennar Other

Lennar Other primarily includes strategic investments in technology companies, primarily managed by the
Company's LENX subsu idiary, and fund interests the Company retained when it sold the Rialto Capital Management ("Rialto")
asset and investment management platform. Operations of the Lennar Other segment include operating earnings (loss)
consisting of revenues generated primarily from the Company's share of carried interests in the Rialto fund investments,
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along with equity in earnings (loss) from the Rialto fund investments and technology investments, realized and unrealized
gains (losses) from investments in equity securities and other income (expense), net from the remaining assets related to the
Company's forff mer Rialto segment.

The Company has investments in Blend Labsa , Inc. ("Blend Labsa "), Hippo Holdings, Inc. ("Hippo"), Opendoor
Technologies, Inc. ("Opendoor"), SmartRent, Inc. ("SmartRent"), Sonder Holdings, Inc. ("Sonder") and Sunnova Energy
International, Inc. ("Sunnova"), which are held at market and will thereforff e change depending on the value of the Company's
shareholdings in those entities on the last day of each quarter. All the investments are accounted for as investments in equity
securities which are held at faiff r value and the changes in faiff r values are recognized through earnings. The following is a detail
of Lennar Other unrealized losses froff m mark-to-market adjustments on the Company's technology investments:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Blend Labs (BLND) ............................................................................................................. $ (130) (25,630)
Hippo (HIPO) ....................................................................................................................... (19,210) (222,447)
Opendoor (OPEN) ................................................................................................................ 21,762 (265,276)
SmartRent (SMRT) .............................................................................................................. 5,914 (78,177)
Sonder (SOND) .................................................................................................................... (700) (2,339)
Sunnova (NOVA) ................................................................................................................. (57,798) (61,225)
Lennar Other unrealized losses froff m technology investments ....................................... $ (50,162) (655,094)

Doma Holdings, Inc. ("Doma"), which went public during the year ended November 30, 2021, is an investment that
was accounted for under the equity method due to the Company's significant ownership interest of 25% of Doma which
allowed the Company to exercise significant influff ence. As of November 30, 2023, the Company's carrying value in Doma
was zero as a result of allocated losses froff m Doma.

During the year ended November 30, 2023, the Company wrote off $65.0 million relating to one of the Company's
non-public technology cost method investments which was recorded in Other income (expense), net and other gains (losses)
in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

3. Investments in Unconsolidated Entities
Homebuildindd g UncUU onsolidatedtt Entitieii s

The investments in the Company's Homebuilding unconsolidated entities were as folff lows:
November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Investments in unconsolidated entities (1) (2) ................................................................ $ 1,143,909 1,173,164
Underlying equity in unconsolidated entities' net assets (1) ........................................... 1,436,239 1,504,315
(1) The basis diffeff rence was primarily as a result of the Company contributing its investment in hthre se trategic joint ventures with a higher

fair value than book value forff an investment in FivePoint.
(2) Included in the Company's recorded investments in Homebuilding unconsolidated entities is the Company's 40% ownership of

FivePoint. As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amount of the Company's investment was $422.2 million and $382.9
million, respectively.

The Company’s partners generally are unrelated homebuilders, land owners/developers and finff ancial or other
strategic partners. The unconsolidated entities folff low accounting principles that are in all material respects the same as those
used by the Company. The Company shares in the profits and losses of these unconsolidated entities generally in accordance
with its ownership interests. In many instances, the Company is appoia nted as the day-to-day manager under the direction of a
management committee that has shared powers among the partners of the unconsolidated entities and the Company receives
management fees and/or reimbursement of expenses for performing this funcff tion. The Company and/or its partners
sometimes obtain options or enter into other arrangements under which the Company can purchase portions of the land held
by the unconsolidated entities. Option prices are generally negotiated prices that approximate fair value when the Company
receives the options. The details of the activity was as folff lows:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Land sales revenues (1)......................................................................... $ 222,200 94,513 57,944
Management fees and reimbursement of expenses, net of deferrals .... 16,306 20,792 16,464
(1) The Company does not include in its Homebuilding equity in loss from unconsolidated entities its pro-rata share of unconsolidated

entities’ earnings resulting froff m land sales to its homebuilding divisions. Instead, the Company accounts forff those earnings as a
reduction of the cost of purchasing the land from the unconsolidated entities. This in effeff ct defers recognition of the Company’s share
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of the unconsolidated entities’ earnings related to these sales until the Company delivers a home and title passes to a third-party
homebuyer.

The total debt of the Homebuilding unconsolidated entities in which the Company has investments was $1.4 billion
as of both November 30, 2023 and 2022, of which the Company's maximum recourse exposure was $42.1 million and $9.1
million as of November 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. In most instances in which the Company has guaranteed debt of an
unconsolidated entity, the Company’s partners have also guaranteed that debt and are required to contribute their share of the
guarantee payments. In a repayment guarantee, the Company and its venturt e partners guarantee repayment of a portion or all
of the debt in the event of defauff lt before the lender would have to exercise its rights against the collateral. The maintenance
guarantees only appla y if the value of the collateral (generally land and improvements) is less than a specified percentage of
the loan balance. The Company would be required to make a payment under a maintenance guarantee to bring the value of
the collateral abovea the specified percentage of the loan balance. In a completion guarantee, the Company and its venturt e
partners have been required to give guarantees of completion to the lenders. Those completion guarantees may require that
the guarantors complete the construcr tion of the improvements forff which the financing was obtained. As of November 30,
2023 and 2022, the Homebuilding segment's unconsolidated entities had non-recourse debt with completion guarantees of
$316.5 million and $333.6 million, respectively.

If the Company is required to make a payment under any guarantee, the payment would generally constitutt e a
capital contribution or loan to the Homebuilding unconsolidated entity and increase the Company's investment in the
unconsolidated entity and its share of any funds the entity distributes.

As of both November 30, 2023 and 2022, the faiff r values of the repayment guarantees, maintenance guarantees and
completion guarantees were not material. The Company believes that as of November 30, 2023, in the event it becomes
legally obligated to perform under a guarantee of the obligation of a Homebuilding unconsolidated entity due to a triggering
event under a guarantee, the collateral would be suffiff cient to repay at least a significant portion of the obligation or the
Company and its partners would contribute additional capital into the venturt e. In certain instances, the Company has placed
performance letters of credit and surety bonds with municipalities with regard to obligations of its joint ventures (see Note 4
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Upward America is an investment fund that acquires new single-family homes in high growth markets across the
United States and rents them to the people who will live in them. Upward America has raised equity commitments totaling
$1.6 billion. The commitments are primarily froff m institutional investors, including $125 million committed by Lennar.
During the year ended November 30, 2023, Lennar delivered 558 homes to Upward America. As of November 30, 2023 and
2022, the carrying amount of the Company's investment in Upward America was $14.8 million and $37.7 million,
respectively.

Multifamff ily Unconsolidll atdd edtt Entitieii s

The unconsolidated joint ventures in which the Multifamff ily segment has investments usually finance their activities
with a combination of partner equity and debt finff ancing. In connection with many of the bank loans to Multifamff ily
unconsolidated joint ventures, the Company (or entities related to them) have been required to give guarantees of completion
and cost over-runs to the lenders and partners. Those completion guarantees may require that the guarantors complete the
construcr tion of the improvements forff which the financing was obtained. Additionally, the Company guarantees the
construcr tion costs of the projeo ct as construcrr tion cost over-runs would be paid by the Company. Generally, these payments
would increase the Company's investment in the entities and would increase its share of fundsff the entities distribute after the
achievement of certain thresholds. As of both November 30, 2023 and 2022, the faiff r value of the completion guarantees was
immaterial. As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, Multifamily segment's unconsolidated entities had non-recourse debt with
completion guarantees of $1.4 billion and $1.0 billion, respectively.

In many instances, the Multifamff ily segment is appoia nted as the construcrr tion, development and property manager for
its Multifamff ily unconsolidated entities and receives feeff s forff perforff ming this funcff tion. Each Multifamff ily real estate
investment trusr t has unilateral decision making rights related to development activities through its board of directors. The
Multifamff ily segment also provides general contractor services for construcrr tion of some of the rental properties owned by
unconsolidated entities in which the Company has investments. In some situations, the Multifamff ily segment sells land to
various joint ventures and funds. The details of the activity were as follows:
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Years Ended November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

General contractor services, net of deferrals ....................................... $ 494,630 498,142 549,400
General contractor costs ...................................................................... 471,676 478,620 533,398
Land sales to joint venturt es ................................................................ — 237,477 15,105
Management fee income, net of deferff rals........................................... 67,901 63,823 56,573

The Multifamff ily segment includes Multifamff ily Venturt e Fund I ("LMV I"), Multifamff ily Venturt e Fund II LP ("LMV II")
and Canada Pension Plan Investments Fund (the "Fund"), which are long-term multifamff ily development investment vehicles
involved in the development, construcr tion and property management of class-A multifamff ily assets. The Multifamff ily segment
completed the initial closing of the Fund. The Multifamff ily segment expects the Fund to have almost $1.0 billion in equity and
Lennar's ownership percentage in the Fund is 4%. As of November 30, 2023, the Company has a $21.9 million investment in
the Fund. Additional dollars will be committed as opportunities are identifieff d by the Fund.

Details of LMV I and LMV II as of and durd ing the year ended November 30, 2023 are included below:

(In tII hott usands)s LMV I LMV II

Lennar's carrying value of investment ................................................................................. $ 193,829 267,874
Equity commitments ............................................................................................................ 2,204,016 1,257,700
Equity commitments called.................................................................................................. 2,154,328 1,218,619
Lennar's equity commitments .............................................................................................. 504,016 381,000
Lennar's equity commitments called.................................................................................... 500,381 368,170
Lennar's remaining commitments (1) .................................................................................. 3,635 12,830
Distributions to Lennar durd ing the year ended November 30, 2023.................................... — —
(1) While there are remaining commitments with LMV I, there are no plans for additional capital calls.

Lennar Other Unconsolidll atdd edtt Entitieii s

Lennar Other's unconsolidated entities includes funff d investments the Company retained when it sold the Rialto assets
and investment management platform in 2018, as well as strategic investments in technology companies and investment
funds. The Company's investment in the Rialto funds and investment vehicles totaled $148.7 million and $185.1 million as of
November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, respectively. In addition, the Company is entitled to a portion of the carried
interest distributions by those funff ds. The Company also had strategic technology investments in unconsolidated entities and
investment funds of $127.5 million and $131.5 million, as of November 30, 2023 and November 30, 2022, respectively.
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Condendd sed FinFF ancial Infon rmatiott n of Uo ncUU onsolidatdd edtt Entitiett s

Summarized condensed financial inforff mation on a combined 100% basis related to the Company's unconsolidated
entities that are accounted for under the equity method, of which the Company's investments in unconsolidated entities were
$2.0 billion and $2.1 billion as of November 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Financial inforff mation relating to the
Company’s unconsolidated entities was as follows:
(In tII hott usands)s November 30, 2023

Assets: Homebuilding Multifamily
Lennar
Other Total

Cash and cash equivalents ......................................................... $ 460,851 67,755 121,110 649,716
Loans receivabla e ........................................................................ — — 27,102 27,102
Real estate owned ...................................................................... — — 102,398 102,398
Investment securities ................................................................. — — 2,267,270 2,267,270
Investments in partnerships ....................................................... — — 108,532 108,532
Inventories ................................................................................. 5,267,619 — — 5,267,619
Operating properties and equipment.......................................... 33,151 7,528,024 — 7,561,175
Other assets................................................................................ 1,223,438 861,321 169,858 2,254,617

$ 6,985,059 8,457,100 2,796,270 18,238,429
Liabilities and equity:
Accounts payable and other liabia lities....................................... $ 782,802 253,531 146,593 1,182,926
Debt (1)...................................................................................... 1,412,958 4,890,267 332,124 6,635,349
Equity......................................................................................... 4,789,299 3,313,302 2,317,553 10,420,154

$ 6,985,059 8,457,100 2,796,270 18,238,429

(In tII hott usands)s November 30, 2022

Assets: Homebuilding Multifamily
Lennar
Other Total

Cash and cash equivalents ......................................................... $ 366,276 53,121 413,698 833,095
Loans receivabla e ........................................................................ — — 25,045 25,045
Real estate owned ...................................................................... — — 213,103 213,103
Investment securities ................................................................. — — 2,543,715 2,543,715
Investments in partnerships ....................................................... — — 165,599 165,599
Inventories ................................................................................. 5,391,285 1,000 — 5,392,285
Operating properties and equipment.......................................... 56,687 7,090,294 — 7,146,981
Other assets................................................................................ 1,378,156 523,152 223,821 2,125,129

$ 7,192,404 7,667,567 3,584,981 18,444,952
Liabilities and equity:
Accounts payable and other liabia lities....................................... $ 994,603 245,266 170,649 1,410,518
Debt (1)...................................................................................... 1,383,302 4,318,774 333,317 6,035,393
Equity......................................................................................... 4,814,499 3,103,527 3,081,015 10,999,041

$ 7,192,404 7,667,567 3,584,981 18,444,952
(1) Debt noted above is net of debt issuance costs. As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, this includes $13.0 million and $18.4 million,

respectively, for Homebuilding, $19.5 million and $26.4 million, respectively, for Multifamff ily and an immaterial amount of debt
issuance costs forff Lennar Other.

(In tII hott usands)s

Statement of Operations
Years Ended: Revenues Cost and expenses

Other income
(expense), net (1)

Net earnings (loss) of
unconsolidated entities

Equity in earnings (loss)
from unconsolidated

entities

November 30, 2023 ............................. $ 1,857,757 2,160,564 (563,222) (866,029) (144,610)
November 30, 2022.............................. 1,747,336 1,695,272 197,056 249,120 (36,302)
November 30, 2021.............................. 1,383,266 1,448,775 187,625 122,116 48,993
(1) Other income (expense), net included realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments.
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4. Homebuilding Senior Notes and Other Debts Payable
November 30,

(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

4.500% senior notes due 2024 (1)....................................................................................... $ 453,682 648,975
4.750% senior notes due 2025 ............................................................................................ 499,336 498,892
5.25% senior notes due 2026 .............................................................................................. 403,040 404,257
5.00% senior notes due 2027 .............................................................................................. 351,357 351,741
4.75% senior notes due 2027 (1)......................................................................................... 797,347 896,259
4.875% senior notes due December 2023........................................................................... — 399,169
5.875% senior notes due 2024 ............................................................................................ — 434,128
Mortgage notes on land and other debt............................................................................... 311,720 413,873

$ 2,816,482 4,047,294
(1) During the year ended November 30, 2023, the Company repurchased $196.1 million and $100.0 million aggregate principal amount

of 4.500% senior notes due April 2024 and 4.75% senior notes due November 2027, respectively, through open market repurchases.

The carrying amounts of the senior notes in the table above are net of debt issuance costs of $4.2 million and $7.6
million, as of November 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

In November 2023, the Company redeemed $378 million aggregate principal amount of its 4.875% senior notes due
December 2023 at an early redemption price of 100% of the principal amount outstanding. In addition, during the year ended
November 30, 2023, the Company repurchased $21.8 million aggregate principal amount of these senior notes through open
market repurchases.

In August 2023, the Company redeemed $425 million aggregate principal amount of its 5.875% senior notes due
November 2024 at an early redemption price of 100% of the principal amount outstanding using cash on hand, resulting in a
pre-tax gain of $6.0 million, included in Homebuilding other income (expense), net.

The maximum availabla e borrowings on the Company's unsecured revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility")
were as follows:

(In tII hott usands)s November 30, 2023
Commitments - maturing in April 2024......................................................................................................................... $ 350,000
Commitments - maturing in May 2027.......................................................................................................................... 2,225,000
Total commitments................................................................................................................................................... $ 2,575,000

Accordion featff urt e........................................................................................................................................................... 425,000
Total maximum borrowings capacity....................................................................................................................... $ 3,000,000

The proceeds availabla e under the Credit Facility, which are subju ect to specified conditions for borrowing, may be
used for working capia tal and general corporr ate purposrr es. The credit agreement also provides that up tu o $500 million in
commitments may be used for letters of credit. As of both November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company had no outstanding
borrowings under the Credit Facility. Under the Credit Facility agreement, the Company is required to maintain a minimum
consolidated tangible net worth, a maximum leverage ratio and either a liquidity or an interest coverage ratio. These ratios are
calculated per the Credit Facility agreement, which involves adjustments to GAAP financial measures. The Company
believes it was in compliance with its debt covenants at November 30, 2023. In addition to the Credit Facility, the Company
has other letter of credit facilities with different financial institutions.

Performance letters of credit are generally posted with regulatory brr odies to guarantee the Company’s performance
of certain development and construcrr tion activities. Financial letters of credit are generally posted in lieu of cash deposits on
option contracts, for insurance risks, credit enhancements and as other collateral. Additionally, at November 30, 2023, the
Company had outstanding surety bonds including performance surety bonds related to site improvements at various projects
(including certain projects of the Company’s joint venturt es) and financial surety bonds. Although significant development
and construcrr tion activities have been completed related to these site improvements, these bonds are generally not released
until all development and construcr tion activities are completed. The Company does not presently anticipate any draws uponu
these bonds or letters of credit, but if any such draws occur, the Company does not believe they would have a material effectff
on its financial position, results of operations or cash floff ws.
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The Company's outstanding letters of credit and surety bonds are below:
November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Performance letters of credit................................................................................................................ $ 1,404,541 1,259,033
Financial letters of credit ..................................................................................................................... 417,976 503,659
Surety bonds ........................................................................................................................................ 4,508,428 4,136,715
Anticipated future costs primarily for site improvements related to performance surety bonds......... 2,499,680 2,273,694

The terms of each of the Company's senior notes outstanding at November 30, 2023 were as follows:

Senior Notes Outstanding (1)
Principal
Amount Net Proceeds (2) Price Date Issued

(Dollall rs in thousands)dd

4.500% senior notes due 2024 ........................................ $ 650,000 $ 644,838 100% April 2017
4.750% senior notes due 2025 ........................................ 500,000 495,528 100% April 2015
5.25% senior notes due 2026 .......................................... 400,000 (3) (3) (3)
5.00% senior notes due 2027 .......................................... 350,000 (3) (3) (3)
4.75% senior notes due 2027 .......................................... 900,000 894,650 100% November 2017
(1) Interest is payable semi-annually for each of the series of senior notes. The senior notes are unsecured and unsubordinated, but are

guaranteed by subsu tantially all of the Company's 100% owned homebuilding subsidiaries.
(2) The Company generally has historically used the net proceeds forff working capital and general corporrr ate purposrr es, which can include

the repayment or repurchase of other outstanding senior notes.
(3) These notes represent obligations of CalAtlantic when it was acquired that were subsequently exchanged in part forff the notes of the

Company. As part of the purchase accounting, the senior notes have been recorded at their faiff r value as of the date of acquisition
(February 1r 2, 2018).

All of the senior notes are guaranteed by certain of the Company's 100% owned subsidiaries, which are primarily the
Company's homebuilding subsidiaries. Although the guarantees are full, unconditional and joint and several while they are in
effeff ct, (i) a subsidiary will have its guarantee suspended at any time when it is not directly or indirectly guaranteeing at least
$75 million of debt of Lennar Corporr ation (the parent company) other than senior notes, and (ii) a subsidiary will be released
from its guarantee and any other obligations it may have regarding the senior notes if all or substantially all its assets, or all of
its capital stock, are sold or otherwise disposed of.ff

The terms of the Company's mortgage on land and other debt at November 30, 2023 were as follows:

As of November 30, Various Maturity
Dates Through

Interest Rates
Up To

Average
Interest Rate(Dollall rs in thousands)dd 2023 2022

Carrying value .................................................. $ 311,720 413,873 2031 7.5% 4.6%
Retired during the year ..................................... 11,835 48,079

The minimum aggregate principal maturities of Homebuilding senior notes and other debts payable during the five
years subsequent to November 30, 2023 and thereafteff r are as follows:
(In tII hott usands)s Debt Maturities

2024 ................................................................................................................................................................ $ 483,415
2025 ................................................................................................................................................................ 673,859
2026 ................................................................................................................................................................ 455,961
2027 ................................................................................................................................................................ 1,165,021
2028 ................................................................................................................................................................ 3,974
Thereafteff r........................................................................................................................................................ 33,355

The Company expects to pay its near-term maturt ities as they come dued through either cash generated from
operations, the issuance of additional debt or equity offeff rings or borrowings under the Company's Credit Facility.
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5. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following:
Years Ended November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Current:
Federal ................................................................................................. $ 1,037,229 1,282,037 924,474
State ..................................................................................................... 271,752 330,681 245,941

$ 1,308,981 1,612,718 1,170,415
Deferred:
Federal ................................................................................................. $ (53,474) (193,667) 149,349
State ..................................................................................................... (14,494) (52,986) 42,745

(67,968) (246,653) 192,094
$ 1,241,013 1,366,065 1,362,509

A reconciliation of the statutt ory rrr ate and the effective tax rate was as folff lows:

Percentage of Pretax Income
2023 2022 2021

Statutt ory rrr ate........................................................................................ 21.00 % 21.00 % 21.00 %
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit ......................... 4.09 4.52 4.03
Tax credits (1)...................................................................................... (1.48) (2.16) (1.73)
Nondeductible compensation............................................................... — — 0.49
Tax reserves and interest expense, net (2) ........................................... — (0.83) 0.03
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance, net......................................... (0.01) — (0.01)
Other .................................................................................................... 0.36 0.31 (0.29)

Effeff ctive rate 23.96% 22.84% 23.52%
(1) During fisff cal year 2022, Congress enacted the Inflaff tion Reducd tion Act which included a retroactive extension of the new energy

effiff cient home tax credit through 2032.
(2) Includes a $50.2 million benefitff related to the resolution of an uncertain tax position durd ing fisff cal year 2022.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeff cts of temporary drr iffeff rences between the carrying amounts of the assets
and liabia lities for finff ancial reporting purposr es and the amounts used forff income tax purposr es. The tax effects of significant
temporary drr iffeff rences that give rise to the net deferred tax assets were as follows:

November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Deferred tax assets:
Inventory vrr aluation adjud stments.......................................................................................... $ 39,641 83,330
Reserves and accruals.......................................................................................................... 193,156 199,451
Net operating loss carryforwards......................................................................................... 52,591 61,741
Capia talized expenses ........................................................................................................... 208,392 241,887
Investments in unconsolidated entities ................................................................................ 65,254 16,311
Employee stock incentive plan............................................................................................ 40,270 37,573
Unrealized losses on investments in equity securities......................................................... 53,684 29,903
Other assets.......................................................................................................................... 51,785 52,770

Total deferff red tax assets ............................................................................................... 704,773 722,966
Valuation allowance ............................................................................................................ (2,333) (2,903)

Total deferff red tax assets afteff r valuation allowance...................................................... 702,440 720,063
Deferred tax liabilities:
Capia talized expenses ........................................................................................................... 151,912 177,726
Deferred income .................................................................................................................. 168,316 253,659
Other liabia lities .................................................................................................................... 55,734 46,270

Total deferff red tax liabia lities ......................................................................................... 375,962 477,655
Net deferff red tax assets.................................................................................................. $ 326,478 242,408

The detail of the Company's net deferred tax assets (liabia lities) was as follows:
Years Ended November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Net deferreff d tax assets:
Homebuilding ...................................................................................................................... $ 163,917 154,143
Financial Services................................................................................................................ 36,821 15,376
Multifamff ily.......................................................................................................................... 54,786 26,675
Lennar Other........................................................................................................................ 70,954 46,214
Net deferff red tax assets ...................................................................................................... $ 326,478 242,408

A reducd tion of the carrying amounts of deferff red tax assets by a valuation allowance is required if, based on the
availabla e evidence, it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized. Accordingly, the need to establa ish valuation
allowances for deferff red tax assets is assessed each reporting period by the Company based on the consideration of all
availabla e positive and negative evidence using a "more-likely-than-not" standard with respect to whether deferff red tax assets
will be realized. This assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, freff quency and severity of current and
cumulative losses, actual earnings, forff ecasts of future profitff ability, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, the
Company’s experience with loss carryforwards not expiring unused and tax planning alternatives.
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As of November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Valuation allowance (1) ................................................................................. $ (2,333) (2,903)
Federal tax effeff cted NOL carryforwards (2).................................................. 26,375 29,672
State tax effeff cted NOL carryforwards (3)...................................................... 26,216 32,069
(1) As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, the deferff red tax assets included valuation allowances primarily related to state net operating loss

("NOL") carryforwards that are not more likely than not to be utilized due to an inability to carry back these losses in most states and
short carryforward periods that exist in certain states.

(2) As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company had fedff eral tax effected NOL carryforwards that may be carried forward to offset
future taxabla e income and begin to expire in 2029.

(3) As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company had state tax effected NOL carryforwards that may be carried forward froff m 10 to
20 years or indefinitely, depending on the tax jurisdiction, with certain losses expiring between 2023 and 2041.

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the changes in gross unrecognized tax benefitsff :

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Gross unrecognized tax benefitff s, beginning of year........................................ $ — 12,285 12,285
Decreases due to settlements with tax authorities ........................................... — (12,285) —
Gross unrecognized tax benefitff s, end of year .................................................. $ — — 12,285

The folff lowing summarizes the changes in interest and penalties accruerr d with respect to gross unrecognized tax
benefits:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Accruer d interest and penalties, beginning of the year......................................................... $ — 59,937
Accruar l of interest and penalties (primarily related to state audits) .................................... 95 —
Reduction of interest and penalties...................................................................................... (95) (59,937)
Accruer d interest and penalties, end of the year ................................................................... $ — —

The IRS is currently examining the Company's fedff eral income tax returt ns for fisff cal year 2022, and certain state
taxing authorities are examining various fiscal years. The finff al outcome of these examinations is not yet determinable. The
statutt e of limitations for the Company's major tax jurisdictions remains open forff examination forff fiscal year 2015 and
subsu equent years. The Company participates in an IRS examination program, Compliance Assurance Process, "CAP". This
program operates as a contemporaneous exam throughout the year in order to keep exam cycles current and achieve a higher
level of compliance.
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6. Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share were calculated as follows:
Years Ended November 30,

(In tII hott usands, es xcee ept per share amounts)tt 2023 2022 2021

Numerator:
Net earnings attributable to Lennar............................................................................ $ 3,938,511 4,614,125 4,430,111
Less: distributed earnings allocated to nonvested shares........................................... 5,514 4,471 2,690
Less: undistributed earnings allocated to nonvested shares....................................... 43,022 47,509 50,229
Numerator forff basic earnings per share ..................................................................... 3,889,975 4,562,145 4,377,192
Less: net amount attributable to Rialto's Carried Interest Incentive Plan (1) ............ — 4,919 2,907
Numerator forff diluted earnings per share .................................................................. $ 3,889,975 4,557,226 4,374,285
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share - weighted average common shares
outstanding................................................................................................................. 283,319 289,824 306,612
Denominator for diluted earnings per share - weighted average common shares
outstanding................................................................................................................. 283,319 289,824 306,612
Basic earnings per share .................................................................................... $ 13.73 15.74 14.28
Diluted earnings per share................................................................................. $ 13.73 15.72 14.27

(1) The amounts presented relate to Rialto's Carried Interest Incentive Plan and represent the difference between the advanced tax
distributions received froff m the Rialto funds included in the Lennar Other segment and the amount Lennar is assumed to own.

For the years ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, there were no options to purchase shares of common stock
that were outstanding and anti-dilutive.

7. Financial Instruments and Fair Value Disclosures

The folff lowing tabla e presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instrumrr ents held or issued
by the Company at November 30, 2023 and 2022, using available market information and what the Company believes to be
appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment is required in interprr eting market data to develop the estimates
of fair value. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies might have a material effectff on the
estimated faiff r value amounts. The table excludes cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivabla es, net, and accounts
payabla e, all of which had faiff r values appra oximating their carrying amounts dued to the short maturt ities and liquidity of these
instruments.

November 30,
2023 2022

Fair Value Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

(In tII hott usands)s Hierarchy Amount Value Amount Value

ASSETS
Financial Services:
Loans held-for-investment, net .............................................. Level 3 $ 55,463 55,463 45,636 45,647
Investments held-to-maturt ity ................................................. Level 3 140,676 139,396 143,251 143,208
LIABILITIES
Homebuilding senior notes and other debts payable, net ...... Level 2 $ 2,816,482 2,785,712 4,047,294 3,993,242
Financial Services notes and other debts payable, net ........... Level 2 2,163,805 2,164,441 2,135,093 2,135,797
Multifamff ily notes payabla e, net ............................................. Level 2 3,741 3,741 16,749 16,749

The folff lowing methods and assumptions are used by the Company in estimating faiff r values:

Financial Services - The faiff r values abovea are based on quoted market prices, if available. The fair values for
instruments that do not have quoted market prices are estimated by the Company on the basis of discounted cash floff ws or
other finff ancial information. For notes and other debts payable, the fair values approximate their carrying value due to variable
interest pricing terms and the short-term nature of the majority of the borrowings.
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Homebuilding - For senior notes and other debts payabla e, the faiff r value of fixed-rate borrowings is primarily based
on quoted market prices and the fair value of variabla e-rate borrowings is based on expected future cash floff ws calculated using
current market forward rates.

Multifamff ily - For notes payabla e, the faiff r values appra oximate their carrying value due to variable interest pricing
terms and the short-term nature of the borrowings.

Fair Value Measurements

GAAP provides a framework for measuring faiff r value, expands disclosures abouta fair value measurements and
establa ishes a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring faiff r value summarized as follows:

Level 1: Fair value determined based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
Level 2: Fair value determined using significant other observabla e inputs.
Level 3: Fair value determined using significant unobservabla e inputs.

The Company’s finff ancial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:
Fair Value at November 30,

(In tII hott usands)s

Fair
Value

Hierarchy 2023 2022

Financial Services Assets:
Residential loans held-for-sale..................................................................................... Level 2 $ 2,073,350 1,750,712
LMF Commercial loans held-for-sale.......................................................................... Level 3 13,459 25,599
Mortgage servicing rights ............................................................................................ Level 3 3,440 3,463
Forward options ........................................................................................................... Level 1 5,937 9,473
Lennar Other Assets:
Investments in equity securities ................................................................................... Level 1 176,198 212,981
Investments available-for-sale ..................................................................................... Level 3 37,953 35,482

Residential and LMF Commercial loans held-for-sale in the tabla e abovea include:

November 30,
2023 2022

(In tII hott usands)s
Aggregate Principal

Balance
Change in
Fair Value

Aggregate Principal
Balance

Change in
Fair Value

Residential loans held-for-sale .................................................. $ 2,083,776 (10,426) 1,734,480 16,233
LMF Commercial loans held-for-sale ....................................... 13,650 (191) 24,000 1,599

The estimated faiff r values of the Company’s finff ancial instruments have been determined by using availabla e market
information and what the Company believes to be appra opriate valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment is required in
interpreting market data to develop the estimates of faiff r value. The use of diffeff rent market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies might have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. The folff lowing methods and assumptions are
used by the Company in estimating faiff r values:

Financial Services residential loans held-for-sale - Fair value is based on independent quoted market prices,
where availabla e, or the prices for other mortgage whole loans with similar characteristics. The Company recognizes the faiff r
value of its rights to service a mortgage loan as revenue upon entering into an interest rate lock loan commitment with a
borrower. The faiff r value of these are included in Financial Services’ loans held-for-sale as of November 30, 2023 and 2022.
Fair value of servicing rights is determined based on actuat l sales of servicing rights on loans with similar characteristics.

LMF Commercial loans held-for-sale - The faiff r value of commercial loans held-for-sale is calculated froff m model-
based techniques that use discounted cash floff w assumptions and the Company’s own estimates of CMBS spreads, market
interest rate movements and the underlying loan credit quality. Loan values are calculated by allocating the change in value
of an assumed CMBS capital strucr ture to each loan. The value of an assumed CMBS capital strucr ture is calculated, generally,
by discounting the cash flows associated with each CMBS class at market interest rates and at the Company’s own estimate
of CMBS spreads. The Company estimates CMBS spreads by observing the pricing of recent CMBS offerings, secondary
CMBS markets, changes in the CMBX index, and general capia tal and commercial real estate market conditions.
Considerations in estimating CMBS spreads include comparing the Company’s current loan portfolff io with comparable
CMBS offeff rings containing loans with similar durd ation, credit quality and collateral composition. These methods use
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unobservabla e inputs in estimating a discount rate that is used to assign a value to each loan. While the cash payments on the
loans are contractuat l, the discount rate used and assumptions regarding the relative size of each class in the CMBS capital
structurt e can significantly impact the valuation. Thereforff e, the estimates used could diffeff r materially from the fair value
determined when the loans are sold to a securitization trust.

Mortgage servicing rights - Financial Services records mortgage servicing rights when it sells loans on a servicing-
retained basis or through the acquisition or assumption of the right to service a finff ancial asset. The faiff r value of the mortgage
servicing rights is calculated using third-party valuations. The key assumptions, which are generally unobservabla e inputs,
used in the valuation of the mortgage servicing rights include mortgage prepayment rates, discount rates and delinquency
rates and are noted below:

November 30, 2023
Unobservable inputsp

Mortgage prepayment rate .......................................................................................................................... 8%
Discount rate ............................................................................................................................................... 13%
Delinquency rate ......................................................................................................................................... 9%

Forward options - Fair value of forward options is based on independent quoted market prices for similar financial
instruments. The faiff r value of these are included in Financial Services' other assets and the Company recognizes the changes
in the faiff r value of the premium paid as Financial Services' Revenue.

Lennar Other investments in equity securities - The faiff r value of investments in equity securities was calculated
based on independent quoted market prices. The Company’s investments in equity securities were recorded at fair value with
all changes in faiff r value recorded to Lennar Other unrealized gains (losses) from technology investments on the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

Lennar Other investments available-for-sale - The fair value of investments availabla e-for-sale is calculated froff m
model-based techniques that use discounted cash floff w assumptions and the Company’s own estimates of CMBS spreads,
market interest rate movements and the underlying loan credit quality. Loan values are calculated by allocating the change in
value of an assumed CMBS capital strucrr ture to each loan. The value of an assumed CMBS capital strucrr ture is calculated,
generally, by discounting the cash floff ws associated with each CMBS class at market interest rates and at the Company’s own
estimate of CMBS spreads.

The changes in faiff r values forff Level 1 and Level 2 finff ancial instruments measured on a recurring basis are shown
below by finff ancial instrumr ent and financial statement line item:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Changes in faiff r value included in Financial Services revenues:

Loans held-for-sale....................................................................................................... $ (26,658) (33,287) (14,449)
Mortgage loan commitments........................................................................................ 1,016 43,695 (8,302)
Forward contracts......................................................................................................... (28,431) (48,790) 11,513
Forward options............................................................................................................ (522) (142) —

Changes in faiff r value included in Lennar Other unrealized gains (losses) from
technology investments:

Investments in equity securities ................................................................................... $ (50,162) (655,094) 510,802
Changes in faiff r value included in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Lennar Other investments availabla e-for-sale ............................................................... $ 2,471 1,464 (536)

Interest on Financial Services loans held-for-sale and LMF Commercial loans held-for-sale measured at faiff r value is
calculated based on the interest rate of the loans and recorded as revenues in the Financial Services’ statement of operations.
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The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th the reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance forff the Level 3 recurring fair
value measurements in the Company's Financial Services segment:

Years Ended November 30,
2023 2022

(In tII hott usands)s
Mortgage

servicing rights
LMF Commercial
loans held-for-sale

Mortgage
servicing rights

LMF Commercial
loans held-for-sale

Beginning balance .................................................................................. $ 3,463 25,599 2,492 68
Purchases/loan originations .................................................................... 200 466,043 353 740,345
Sales/loan originations sold, including those not settled........................ — (430,707) — (715,933)
Disposals/settlements.............................................................................. (277) (45,667) (404) —
Changes in faiff r value (1) ........................................................................ 54 (191) 1,022 1,599
Interest and principal paydowns............................................................. — (1,618) — (480)
Ending balance ....................................................................................... $ 3,440 13,459 3,463 25,599

(1) Changes in faiff r value for LMF Commercial loans held-for-sale and Financial Services mortgage servicing rights are included in
Financial Services' revenues.

The Company’s assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are those assets for which the Company has
recorded valuation adjustments and write-offs. The fair values included in the tabla es below represent only those assets whose
carrying values were adjusted to faiff r value during the respective periods disclosed. The assets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis are summarized below:

Years Ended November 30,
2023 2022 2021

(In tII hott usands)s

Fair
Value

Hierarchy
Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Total
Losses,
Net (1)

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Total
Losses,
Net (1)

Carrying
Value

Fair
Value

Total
Losses,
Net (1)

Non-financial assets
Homebuilding:
Finished homes and
construcrr tion in progress (2) Level 3 $458,569 396,795 (61,774) 347,300 295,663 (51,637) 32,364 16,342 (16,022)

Land and land under
development (2).................. Level 3 72,061 49,539 (22,522) 183,737 126,135 (57,602) 35,775 26,841 (8,934)

Other assets (2)....................... Level 3 — — — — — — 12,764 12,024 (740)
Investments in
unconsolidated entities (3) . Level 3 78,834 37,792 (41,042) 1,454 — (1,454) — — —

(1) Represents losses dued to valuation adjustments and deposit and pre-acquisition write-offs recorded during the respective periods.
(2) Valuation adjustments forff finished homes and construcrr tion in progress, and land and land under development were included in

Homebuilding costs and expenses. During the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022, total losses, net, for land and land under
development included $19.9 million and $47.9 million, respectively, of deposit and pre-acquisition cost write-offs.

(3) Valuation adjustments related to investments in unconsolidated entities were primarily included in Homebuilding other income
(expense), net in the Company's consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income for the year ended November 30,
2023.

During the year ended November 30, 2023, the Company wrote off $65.0 million relating to one of the Company's
non-public technology cost method investments which was recorded in Other income (expense), net and other gains (losses)
in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

See Note 1 for a detailed description of the Company’s process forff identifyiff ng and recording valuation adjustments
related to Homebuilding inventory.rr

8. Variable Interest Entities

During the year ended November 30, 2023, the Company evaluated the joint venture ("JV") agreements of its JV's
that were forff med or that had reconsideration events, such as changes in the governing documents or to debt arrangements.
Based on the Company's evaluation, there were no variabla e interest entities ("VIEs") that were consolidated or deconsolidated
during the year ended November 30, 2023.

The carrying amount of the Company's consolidated VIE's assets and non-recourse liabia lities are disclosed in the
footnote to the consolidated balance sheets.
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A VIE’s assets can only be used to settle obligations of that VIE. The VIEs are not guarantors of the Company’s
senior notes or other debts payabla e. The assets held by a VIE are usually collateral forff that VIE’s debt. The Company and
other partners do not generally have an obligation to make capital contributions to a VIE unless the Company and/or the other
partner(s) have entered into debt guarantees with the VIE’s lenders. Other than debt guarantee agreements with VIE’s
lenders, there are no liquidity arrangements or agreements to fund capital or purchase assets that could require the Company
to provide financial support to a VIE. While the Company has option contracts to purchase land froff m certain of its VIEs, the
Company is not required to purchase the assets and could walk away froff m the contracts, but that would require forfeiff ture of
deposits and pre-acquisition costs.

Unconsolidated VIEs

The Company’s recorded investments in VIEs that are unconsolidated and related estimated maximum exposure to
loss were as follows:

As of November 30,
2023 2022

(In tII hott usands)s

Investments in
Unconsolidated

VIEs
Lennar’s Maximum
Exposure to Loss

Investments in
Unconsolidated

VIEs
Lennar’s Maximum
Exposure to Loss

Homebuilding (1)...................................................... $ 659,224 787,226 586,935 718,719
Multifamff ily (2) ......................................................... 384,718 402,735 607,484 633,934
Financial Services (3) ............................................... 140,676 140,676 143,251 143,251
Lennar Other (4) ....................................................... 56,009 56,009 55,952 55,952

$ 1,240,627 1,386,646 1,393,622 1,551,856
(1) As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company's maximum exposure to loss of Homebuilding's investments in unconsolidated

VIEs was limited to its investments in unconsolidated VIEs, except with regard to the Company's remaining commitment to fund
capital in Upward America of $69.8 million and $77.3 million, respectively. In addition, as of November 30, 2023, there was recourse
debt of VIEs of $42.1 million and as of November 30, 2022, there was $52.7 million of receivabla es relating to a short-term loan and
management fee owed to the Company by Upward America.

(2) As of November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company's maximum exposure to loss of Multifamff ily's investments in unconsolidated VIEs
was primarily limited to its investments in the unconsolidated VIEs. The maximum exposure forff LMV I and LMV II in addition to the
investment also included the remaining combined equity commitment of $12.8 million and $19.3 million as of November 30, 2023
and 2022, respectively, for futff urt e expenditures related to the construcrr tion and development of its projects. The decrease in exposure
for the year ended November 30, 2023 is primarily due to the removal of LMV I as the Fund does not expect to call forff equity in the
future. As a result, LMV I is not a VIE as of November 30, 2023.

(3) As of both November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company's maximum exposure to loss of the Financial Services segment was limited to
its investment in the unconsolidated VIEs and related to the Financial Services' CMBS investments held-to-maturt ity.

(4) At November 30, 2023, the Company's maximum recourse exposure to loss of the Lennar Other segment was limited to its
investments in the unconsolidated VIEs.

The Company and its JV partners generally fund JVs as needed and in accordance with business plans to allow the
entities to finance their activities. Because such JVs are expected to make future capital calls in order to continue to finance
their activities, the entities are determined to be VIEs as of November 30, 2023 in accordance with ASC 810 due to
insufficient equity at risk. While these entities are VIEs, the Company has determined that the power to direct the activities of
the VIEs that most significantly impact the VIEs’ economic performance is generally shared and the Company and its
partners are not de-facto agents. While the Company generally manages the day-to-day operations of the VIEs, each of these
VIEs has an executive committee made up ou f representatives from each partner. The members of the executive committee
have equal votes and majoa r decisions require unanimous consent and approval froff m all members. The Company does not
have the unilateral abia lity to exercise participating voting rights without partner consent.

There are no liquidity arrangements or agreements to fund capia tal or purchase assets that could require the Company
to provide financial support to the VIEs. Except forff the unconsolidated VIEs discussed abovea , the Company and the other
partners did not guarantee any debt of the other unconsolidated VIEs. While the Company has option contracts to purchase
land from certain of its unconsolidated VIEs, the Company is not required to purchase the assets and could walk away fromff
the contracts.

Option Contracts

The Company has access to land through option contracts, which generally enable it to control portions of properties
owned by third parties (including land banks) until the Company has determined whether to exercise the options.
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The Company evaluates option contracts with third party land holding companies forff land to determine whether they
are VIEs and, if so, whether the Company is the primary beneficiary orr f certain of these option contracts. Although the
Company does not have legal title to the optioned land, if the Company is deemed to be the primary beneficiary arr nd makes a
significant deposit or pre-acquisition cost investment for optioned land, or is otherwise economically compelled to takedown
the optioned land, it may need to consolidate the land under option at the purchase price of the optioned land. Land under
option with third party holding companies that the Company was economically compelled to takedown was $1.2 billion as of
November 30, 2023 and is included in consolidated inventory nrr ot owned. Consolidated inventory nrr ot owned related to land
financing transactions, which are land sale transactions that did not meet the criteria forff revenue recognition and
derecognition of land by the Company as a result of the Company maintaining an option to repurchase the land in the futff urt e,
was $1.8 billion as of November 30, 2023.

The Company’s exposure to losses on its option contracts with third parties and unconsolidated entities was as
follows:

November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022

Non-refundabla e option deposits and pre-acquisition costs.................................................. $ 1,949,219 1,990,946

Letters of credit in lieu of cash deposits under certain land and option contracts............... 198,920 163,942

For the year ended November 30, 2023, the Company purchased a significant portion of land froff m one land bank
(the "land bank”). There were no amounts dued to the land bank as of November 30, 2023, resulting froff m land purchases as
the fulff l purchase price of the land is typically paid to the land bank at closing when land is purchased by the Company. As of
November 30, 2023, the total deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate relating to contracts with the land bank were
$438.7 million. As of November 30, 2023, total consolidated inventory nrr ot owned and liabia lities related to consolidated
inventory nrr ot owned relating to contracts with the land bank were $693.1 million and $577.9 million, respectively.

The Company believes there are other land banks that could be substituted should the land bank become unavailabla e
or non-competitive with respect to land banking of future land. Thus, the Company does not believe that the loss of the
Company’s relationship with this land bank would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition or cash floff ws.

9. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Company is party to various claims, legal actions and complaints relating to homes sold by the Company arising
in the ordinary crr ourse of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. From time to time, the Company is also a party to various
lawsuits involving purchases and sales of real property. These lawsuits ofteff n include claims regarding representations and
warranties made in connection with the transfer of properties and disputes regarding the obligation to purchase or sell
properties.

The Company does not believe that the ultimate resolution of these claims or lawsuits will have a material adverse
effeff ct on its business or finff ancial position. However, the finff ancial effeff ct of litigation concerning purchases and sales of
property may depend upon the value of the subject property, which may have changed froff m the time the agreement forff
purchase or sale was entered into.

The Company is subju ect to the usual obligations associated with entering into contracts (including option contracts)
for the purchase, development and sale of real estate, which it does in the routine conduct of its business. Option contracts
generally enable the Company to control portions of properties owned by third parties (including land banks) and
unconsolidated entities until the Company determines whether to exercise the option. The use of option contracts allows the
Company to reducd e the financial risks associated with long-term land holdings. At November 30, 2023, the Company had
$1.9 billion of non-refundabla e option deposits and pre-acquisition costs related to certain of these homesites, which were
recorded in deposits and pre-acquisition costs on real estate in the consolidated balance sheet.

Leases
The Company has entered into agreements to lease certain offiff ce facilities and equipment under operating leases.

The Company recognizes lease expense forff these leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right-of-use ("ROU")
assets and lease liabia lities are recorded on the balance sheet for all leases, except leases with an initial term of 12 months or
less. Many of the Company's leases include options to renew. The exercise of lease renewal options is at the Company's
option and thereforff e renewal option payments have not been included in the ROU assets or lease liabia lities. The folff lowing
tabla e includes additional inforff mation abouta the Company's leases:
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(Dollall rs in thousands)dd November 30, 2023

Right-of-use assets.......................................................................................................................................... $ 145,812
Lease liabia lities ............................................................................................................................................... $ 154,271
Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years) ........................................................................................ 7.5
Weighted-average discount rate ..................................................................................................................... 3.4%

The Company has entered into agreements to lease certain offiff ce facilities and equipment under operating leases.
Future minimum payments under the noncancellabla e leases in effeff ct at November 30, 2023 were as follows:

(In tII hott usands)s Lease Payments

2024 .......................................................................................................................................................................... $ 33,895
2025 .......................................................................................................................................................................... 29,836
2026 .......................................................................................................................................................................... 24,119
2027 .......................................................................................................................................................................... 19,684
2028 and thereafteff r ................................................................................................................................................... 66,355
Total futff urt e minimum lease payments (1)................................................................................................................ $ 173,889
Less: Interest (2) ....................................................................................................................................................... 19,618
Present value of lease liabia lities (2) .......................................................................................................................... $ 154,271
(1) Futurt e minimum lease payments exclude variable lease costs and short-term lease costs, which were $21.1 million and $2.0 million,

respectively.
(2) The Company's leases do not include a readily determinable implicit rate. As such, the Company has estimated the discount rate for

these leases to determine the present value of lease payments at the lease commencement date or as of December 1, 2019, which was
the effective date of ASU 2016-02. As of November 30, 2023, the Company recognized the lease liabia lities on its consolidated
balance sheets within accounts payable and other liabia lities of the respective segments.

The Company's rental expense on lease liabia lities were as folff lows:

Years Ended November 30,
(In tII hott usands)s 2023 2022 2021

Rental expense.................................................................................................. $ 104,653 105,414 84,991

On occasion, the Company may sublease rented space which is no longer used forff the Company's operations. For
both the years ended November 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company had an immaterial amount of sublu ease income.

The Company is committed, under various letters of credit, to perform certain development and construcr tion
activities and provide certain guarantees in the normal course of business. Outstanding letters of credit under these
arrangements totaled $1.8 billion at November 30, 2023. Additionally, at November 30, 2023, the Company had outstanding
surety bonds of $4.5 billion including performance surety bonds related to site improvements at various projects (including
certain projects of the Company’s joint venturt es) and financial surety bonds. Although significant development and
construcr tion activities have been completed related to these site improvements, these bonds are generally not released until all
development and construcr tion activities are completed. As of November 30, 2023, there were appra oximately $2.5 billion, or
55%, of anticipated future costs to complete related to these site improvements. The Company does not presently anticipate
any draws upon these bonds that would have a material effecff t on its consolidated financial statements.

Subsu tantially all of the loans the Financial Services segment originates are sold within a short period in the
secondary mortgage market on a servicing-released, non-recourse basis. Afteff r the loans are sold, the Company retains
potential liabia lity for possible claims by purchasers that it breached certain limited industry-rr standard representations and
warranties in the loan sale agreements. Purchasers continue to try trr o defraff y any losses incurred by purporr ting to have foundff
inaccuracies related to sellers’ representations and warranties in particular loan sale agreements. Mortgage investors or others
could seek to have the Company buy back mortgage loans or compensate them forff losses incurred on mortgage loans that the
Company has sold based on claims that the Company breached its limited representations or warranties. The Company’s
mortgage operations have establa ished accruarr ls for possible losses associated with mortgage loans previously originated and
sold to investors. The Company establa ishes accruals forff such possible losses based upon, among other things, an analysis of
repurchase requests received, an estimate of potential repurchase claims not yet received and actuat l past repurchases and
losses through the disposition of affected loans as well as previous settlements. While the Company believes that it has
adequately reserved for known losses and projected repurchase requests, given the volatility in the mortgage industry arr nd the
uncertainty regarding the ultimate resolution of these claims, if either actuat l repurchases or the losses incurred resolving those
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repurchases exceed the Company’s expectations, additional recourse expense may be incurred. Loan origination liabia lities are
included in Financial Services’ liabia lities in the Company's consolidated balance sheets.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not appla icable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Offiff cer, our Co-Chief Executive Officer and President (together
"Co-CEOs") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") participated in an evaluation by our management of the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedurd es as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on their participation in that
evaluation, our Co-CEOs and CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedurd es were effeff ctive as of November 30,
2023 to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rulrr es and forff ms, and to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or
furnished under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including both of our Co-CEOs and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Both of our Co-CEOs and CFO also participated in an evaluation by our management of any changes in our internal
control over finff ancial reporting that occurred durd ing the quarter ended November 30, 2023. That evaluation did not identify
any changes that have materially affected, or are reasonabla y likely to materially affeff ct, our internal control over finff ancial
reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent
Registered Publu ic Accounting Firm obtained froff m Deloitte & Touche LLP relating to the effeff ctiveness of Lennar
Corporation’s internal control over finff ancial reporting are included elsewhere in this document.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over finff ancial reporting,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act RulRR e 13a-15(f). Under the supeu rvision and with the participation of our management,
including both of our Co-CEOs and CFO, we conducted an evaluation of the effeff ctiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Contrott l—In— tegre ated Frameworkrr (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Controt l—
Integre ated Frameworkrr (2013), our management concluded that our internal control over finff ancial reporting was effeff ctive as
of November 30, 2023. The effectiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting as of November 30, 2023 has been
audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firff m, as stated in their attestation report
which is included herein.

LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of Lennar Corporr ration

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over finff ancial reporting of Lennar Corporrr ation and subsu idiaries (the
“Company”) as of November 30, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Controt l — Integre ated Framework (rr 2013)((
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting as of November 30, 2023, based on
criteria established in Internal Contrott l — Integre ated Framework (rr 2013)(( issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publu ic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended November 30, 2023, of the Company and
our report dated January 26, 2024 expressed an unqualifieff d opinion on those finff ancial statements.

Basis forff Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting and
for its assessment of the effeff ctiveness of internal control over finff ancial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firff m registered with
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. fedff eral securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonabla e assurance abouta whether effective internal control over finff ancial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over finff ancial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedurd es as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonabla e basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabla e assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finff ancial statements for external purposrr es in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting includes those policies
and procedurd es that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabla e detail, accurately and faiff rly refleff ct the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabla e assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of finff ancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabla e assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the finff ancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over finff ancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projeo ctions of any evaluation of effectiveness to futff urt e periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedurd es may
deteriorate.

Miami, Florida
January 26, 2024
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Item 9B. Other Information.

Not appla icable.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.

Not appla icable.
PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Offiff cers and Corporate Governance.

The inforff mation required by this item forff executive officff ers is set forth under the heading "Executive Officff ers of
Lennar Corpor ration" in Part I. We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to each of our Co-Chief
Executive Officers and President, our Chief Financial Offiff cer and our Chief Accounting Officer. The Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics is located on our internet web site at www.lennar.com under "Investor Relations – Governance." We
intend to provide disclosure of any amendments or waivers of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics on our website
within four business days folff lowing the date of the amendment or waiver. The other information called forff by this item is
incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission not later than March 29, 2024 (120 days afteff r the end of our fiscal year).

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The inforff mation required by this item is incorpor rated by referff ence to our definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than March 29, 2024 (120 days afteff r the end of our fiscal year).

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficff ial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The inforff mation required by this item is incorpor rated by referff ence to our definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than March 29, 2024 (120 days afteff r the end of our fiscal year),
except forff the inforff mation required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K, which is provided below.

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes our equity compensation plans as of November 30, 2023:

Plan categoryg y

Number of shares to
be issued upon
exercise of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of shares
remaining available
for futff ure issuance
under equity

compensation plans
(excluding shares
refleff cted in column

(a)) (1)

Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders ........................ 162,338 $ 100.00 11,581,811
Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders .................. — — —

Total .............................................................................................. 162,338 $ 100.00 11,581,811
(1) Both shares of Class A and Class B common stock may be issued.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The inforff mation required by this item is incorpor rated by referff ence to our definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than March 29, 2024 (120 days afteff r the end of our fiscal year).

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The inforff mation required by this item is incorpor rated by referff ence to our definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than March 29, 2024 (120 days afteff r the end of our fiscal year).

91



PART IV

Item 15. Exhibit and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report.

1. The folff lowing financial statements are contained in Item 8:

Financial Statements
Page in

this Report

Report of Independent Registered Publu ic Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID No. 34)................................................. 48
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 2023 and 2022......................................................................... 50
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Years Ended November 30,
2023, 2022 and 2021............................................................................................................................................... 52
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Years Ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 ............................. 53
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows forff the Years Ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 ..................... 54
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements........................................................................................................... 56

2. The folff lowing financial statement schedule is included in this Report:

Financial Statement Schedule
Page in

this Report

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifyiff ng Accounts ................................................................................................. 97

Information required by other schedules has either been incorporrr ated in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes or is not applicable to us.

3. The folff lowing exhibits are filff ed with this Report or incorporr ated by reference:

3.1 Restated Certificff ate of Incorporrr ation of the Company, dated January 14, 2015, as amended by the Certificff ate of
Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated February 1rr 2, 2018 - Incorporrr ated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K forff the fisff cal year ended November
30, 2019.

3.2 Bylaws of the Company, as amended effective September 28, 2022 - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated September 28, 2022.

4.1 Description of Capital Stock - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K forff the fisff cal year ended November 30, 2019.

4.2 Indenturt e, dated as of December 31, 1997, between Lennar Corporr ation and Bank One Trust Company, N.A., as
trusr tee - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3,
Registration No. 333-45527, filed with the Commission on Februar ry 3, 1998.

4.3 Tenth Supplemental Indenturt e, dated as of April 28, 2015, among Lennar Corporr ation, each of the guarantors
identifieff d therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trusrr tee, including the forff m of 4.750% Senior Notes
due 2025 - Incorporrr ated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
April 28, 2015.

4.5 Fourteenth Supplu emental Indenturt e, dated as of April 28, 2017, among Lennar Corporr ation, each of the
guarantors identifieff d therein and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trusr tee, including the forff m of 4.50% Senior
Notes dued 2024 - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
dated April 28, 2017.

4.6 Indenturt e, dated as of November 29, 2017, among Lennar Corporr ration, each of the guarantors identifieff d therein
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trusr tee, including the forff m of 2.95% Senior Notes dued 2020 and the
form of 4.75% Senior Notes dued 2027 - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated November 29, 2017.

4.8 Indenturt e, dated as of February 2rr 0, 2018, among Lennar Corpor ration, each of the guarantors identifieff d therein
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trusr tee, governing the 5.25% Senior Notes dued June 1, 2026 (including
the forff ms of 5.25% Senior Notes dued June 1, 2026) - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Februar ry 16, 2018.
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4.9 Indenturt e, dated as of February 2rr 0, 2018, among Lennar Corpor ration, each of the guarantors identifieff d therein
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trusr tee, governing the 5.00% Senior Notes dued June 15, 2027 (including
the forff ms of 5.00% Senior Notes dued June 15, 2027) - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Februarr ry 16, 2018.

10.1* Lennar Corporr ation 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (Amended and Restated Effeff ctive January 12, 2022) -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Registrant’s Definff itive Proxy Statement on Scheduld e 14A, filff ed
with the Commission on March 1, 2022.

10.2* Lennar Corporr ation 2016 Incentive Compensation Plan, as Amended and Restated effeff ctive January 12, 2022 -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K forff the fisff cal year
ended November 30, 2021.

10.3 Eighth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2022, among Lennar Corpor ration, as
borrower, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as issuing lender and administrative agent, the several lenders from
time to time parties thereto, and the other parties and agents thereto - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 23, 2022.

10.4 Eighth Amended and Restated Guarantee Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2022, among certain of Lennar
Corporation’s subsidiaries in favor of guaranteed parties referred to therein - Incorporr ated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 23, 2022.

10.5 Form of Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement, dated February 1rr 2, 2015, between U.S. Home Corporation and
Lessee - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
Februarr ry 12, 2015.

10.6* Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement, dated December 4, 2023, between U.S. Home, LLC and Stuart Miller -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 4,
2023.

10.7* Aircraft Time Sharing Agreement, dated December 4, 2023, between U.S. Home, LLC and Jonathan M. Jaffe -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 4,
2023.

10.8 Separation Agreement and General Release, dated July 14, 2023, between Lennar Corporrr ation and Rick
Beckwitt - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July
14, 2023.

10.9* Form of 2020 Award Agreement under the Company’s 2016 Equity Incentive Plan forff Mr. Miller, Mr.
Beckwitt, Mr. Jaffe, Ms. Bessette and Mr. McCall - Incorpor rated by referff ence to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Februar ry 28, 2020.

10.10* Master Agreement, dated October 8, 2020, between AG Essential Housing Company 1, L.P. and Essential
Housing Financing, LLC - Incorporrr ated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K forff the fisff cal year ended November 30, 2020.

10.11* Form of 2021 Award Agreement under the Company’s 2016 Equity Incentive Plan forff Mr. Miller, Mr.
Beckwitt, Mr. Jaffe, Ms. Bessette and Mr. McCall - Incorpor rated by referff ence to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Februar ry 26, 2021.

10.12* 2022 Award Agreements under the Company’s 2016 Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended, for Mr. Miller,
Mr. Beckwitt, Mr. Jaffeff , Ms. Bessette, Mr. McCall and Mr. Sustana - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Februarr ry 28, 2022.

10.13* Form of 2022 Award Agreement under the Company’s 2016 Equity Incentive Plan forff Mr. Miller, Mr.
Beckwitt, Mr. Jaffe, Ms. Bessette and Mr. McCall - Incorpor rated by referff ence to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Februar ry 28, 2022.

10.14* Amended and Restated 2022 Award Agreements under the Incentive Plan forff Mr. Miller, Mr. Beckwitt and Mr.
Jaffe - Incorporrr ated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
November 17, 2022.

10.15* Form of the Amended and Restated 2022 Award Agreement under the Equity Plan for Mr. Miller, Mr. Beckwitt
and Mr. Jaffe - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
November 17, 2022.

10.16* Form of the 2022 Award Agreement forff Performance Shares granted under the Equity Plan for Mr. Miller, Mr.
Beckwitt and Mr. Jaffe - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K, dated November 17, 2022.
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10.17* 2023 Award Agreements under the Company’s 2016 Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended, for Mr. Miller,
Mr. Beckwitt, Mr. Jaffeff , Ms. Bessette, Mr. McCall and Mr. Sustana - Incorporr ated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Februarr ry 28, 2023.

10.18* Form of 2023 Award Agreement under the Company’s 2016 Equity Incentive Plan forff Mr. Miller, Mr.
Beckwitt, Mr. Jaffe, Ms. Bessette and Mr. McCall - Incorpor rated by referff ence to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, dated Februar ry 28, 2023.

21** List of subsu idiaries.

22.1** List of guarantor subsu idiaries.

23** Consent of Independent Registered Publu ic Accounting Firm.

31.1** Rule 13a-14a/15d-14(a) Certificff ation of Stuart Miller.

31.2** Rule 13a-14a/15d-14(a) Certificff ation of Jonathan M. Jaffe.ff

31.3** Rule 13a-14a/15d-14(a) Certificff ation of Diane Bessette.

32*** Section 1350 Certificff ations of Stuat rt Miller, Jonathan M. Jaffe aff nd Diane Bessette.

101 The folff lowing financial statements froff m Lennar Corporr ration Annual Report on Form 10-K forff the year ended
November 30, 2023, filff ed on January 26, 2024, forff matted in iXBRL (Inline Extensible Business Reporting
Language); (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss), (iii) Consolidated Statements of Equity (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (v) the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

101.INS** iXBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH** iXBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL** iXBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF** iXBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition.
101.LAB** iXBRL Taxonomy Extension Labea l Linkbase Document.
101.PRE** iXBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.

104*** The cover page froff m Lennar Corporr ation's fisff cal year Report on Form 10-K forff the year ended November 30,
2023 was forff matted in iXBRL.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
** Filed herewith.
*** Furnished herewith.
**** Included in Exhibit 101.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duld y authorized.

LENNAR CORPORATRR ION

StStuauatt rtrt MiMillllerer
Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officff er
Date: January 26, 2024

Jonathan M. Jaffe
Co-Chief Executive Officer and President
Date: January 26, 2024
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Principal Executive Offiff cer:

Stuat rt Miller /S/ STUART MILLER

Executive Chairman, Co-Chief Executive Officer and
Director Date: January 26, 2024

Jonathan M. Jaffe /S/ JONATHAN M. JAFFE

Co-Chief Executive Officer, President and Director Date: January 26, 2024

Principal Financial Offiff cer:

Diane Bessette /S/ DIANEAA BESSETTE

Vice President, Chief Financial Offiff cer and Treasurer Date: January 26, 2024

Principal Accounting Officer:

David Collins /S/ DAVID COLLINS

Vice President and Controller Date: January 26, 2024

Directors:

Amy Banse /S/ AMY BANSAA E

Date: January 26, 2024

Theron I. ("Tig") Gilliam, Jr. /S/ THERON I. ("TIG") GILLIAM, JR.

Date: January 26, 2024

Sherrill W. Hudson /S/ SHERRILL W. HUDSON

Date: January 26, 2024

Sidney Lapidusd /S/ SIDNEY LAPIDUS

Date: January 26, 2024

Teri McClure /S/ TERI MCCLURE

Date: January 26, 2024

Armando Olivera /S/ ARMANDO OLIVERAR

Date: January 26, 2024

Dacona Smith /S/ DACONA SMITH

Date: January 26, 2024

Jeffrey Sonnenfeld /S/ JEFFREY SONNENFELD

Date: January 26, 2024

Serena Wolfeff /S/ SERENA WOLFE

Date: January 26, 2024
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LENNAR CORPORATRR ION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifyiff ng Accounts
Years Ended November 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021

Additions

(In tII hott usands)s
Beginning
balance

Charged to costs
and expenses

Charged
(credited) to
other accounts Deductions

Ending
balance

Year ended November 30, 2023
Allowances deducted froff m assets to
which they appla y:
Allowance forff credit losses against
notes and other receivabla es............ $ 2,179 274 (79) — 2,374

Allowance forff loan losses against
loans receivable ............................. $ 11,130 5,419 — (1,135) 15,414

Allowance against net deferff red tax
assets .............................................. $ 2,903 89 — (659) 2,333

Year ended November 30, 2022
Allowances deducted froff m assets to
which they appla y:
Allowance forff credit losses against
notes and other receivabla es............ $ 2,531 145 (497) — 2,179

Allowance forff loan losses against
loans receivable ............................. $ 2,091 9,127 — (88) 11,130

Allowance against net deferff red tax
assets .............................................. $ 2,693 784 — (574) 2,903

Year ended November 30, 2021
Allowances deducted froff m assets to
which they appla y:
Allowance forff credit losses against
notes and other receivabla es............ $ 2,394 79 59 (1) 2,531

Allowance forff loan losses against
loans receivable ............................. $ 4,012 — (31) (1,890) 2,091

Allowance against net deferff red tax
assets .............................................. $ 4,411 — (1,556) (162) 2,693
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Exhibit 31.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S CERTIFICATION

I, Stuat rt Miller, certify tff hat:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Lennar Corporr ration;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material factff or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial inforff mation included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the finff ancial condition, results of operations and cash floff ws of the registrant as of,
and forff , the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyiff ng offiff cers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as definff ed in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finff ancial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedurd es, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supeu rvision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsu idiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b.Designed such internal control over finff ancial reporting, or caused such internal control over finff ancial
reporting to be designed under our supeu rvision, to provide reasonabla e assurance regarding the reliabia lity of finff ancial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements forff external purposr es in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effeff ctiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedurd es and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedurd es, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over finff ancial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fisff cal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report)
that has materially affeff cted, or is reasonabla y likely to materially affeff ct, the registrant's internal control over finff ancial
reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifyiff ng offiff cers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over finff ancial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonabla y likely to adversely affect the registrant's abia lity to record, process,
summarize and report finff ancial information; and

b.Any fraff ud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal control over finff ancial reporting.

NaNameme: S: Stutuarart Mt Milleillerr
Title: Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Offiff cer

Date: January 26, 2024
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Exhibit 31.2

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S CERTIFICATION

I, Jonathan M. Jaffe, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Lennar Corporr ration;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material factff or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial inforff mation included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the finff ancial condition, results of operations and cash floff ws of the registrant as of,
and forff , the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyiff ng offiff cers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as definff ed in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finff ancial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedurd es, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supeu rvision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsu idiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b.Designed such internal control over finff ancial reporting, or caused such internal control over finff ancial
reporting to be designed under our supeu rvision, to provide reasonabla e assurance regarding the reliabia lity of finff ancial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements forff external purposr es in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effeff ctiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedurd es and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedurd es, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over finff ancial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fisff cal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report)
that has materially affeff cted, or is reasonabla y likely to materially affeff ct, the registrant's internal control over finff ancial
reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifyiff ng offiff cers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over finff ancial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonabla y likely to adversely affect the registrant's abia lity to record, process,
summarize and report finff ancial information; and

b.Any fraff ud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal control over finff ancial reporting.

Name: Jonathan M. Jaffeff
Title: Co-Chief Executive Offiff cer and President

Date: January 26, 2024
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Exhibit 31.3

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S CERTIFICATION

I, Diane Bessette, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Lennar Corporr ration;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material factff or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial inforff mation included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the finff ancial condition, results of operations and cash floff ws of the registrant as of,
and forff , the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyiff ng offiff cers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as definff ed in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finff ancial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedurd es, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supeu rvision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsu idiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b.Designed such internal control over finff ancial reporting, or caused such internal control over finff ancial
reporting to be designed under our supeu rvision, to provide reasonabla e assurance regarding the reliabia lity of finff ancial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements forff external purposr es in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effeff ctiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedurd es and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedurd es, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over finff ancial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fisff cal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report)
that has materially affeff cted, or is reasonabla y likely to materially affeff ct, the registrant's internal control over finff ancial
reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifyiff ng offiff cers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over finff ancial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonabla y likely to adversely affect the registrant's abia lity to record, process,
summarize and report finff ancial information; and

b.Any fraff ud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant's internal control over finff ancial reporting.

Name: Diane Bessette
Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Offiff cer and Treasurer

Date: January 26, 2024
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Exhibit 32

Offiff cers' Section 1350 Certificff ations

Each of the undersigned officers of Lennar Corporr ation, a Delaware corporrr ation (the "Company"), hereby certifieff s that
(i) the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K forff the year ended November 30, 2023 fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and (ii) the inforff mation contained in the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K forff the year ended November 30, 2023 fairly presents, in all material respects, the finff ancial condition
and results of operations of the Company, at and forff the periods indicated.

NaNameme: S: Stutuarart Mt Milleillerr
Title: Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Offiff cer

Name: Jonathan M. Jaffeff

Title: Co-Chief Executive Offiff cer and President

Name: Diane Bessette
Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Offiff cer and Treasurer

Date: January 26, 2024
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